
Incline Village General Improvement District 
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community oriented 

recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin. 
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451 • (775) 832-1100 • EMAIL: info@ivgid.org 

www.yourtahoeplace.com 

 
 

 
 

The Special Meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement District (IVGID) Board of Trustees will be Held Starting at 12:00 
PM on May 20, 2024 in the Boardroom, 893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada. 
 
Public Comment is Allowed and Members of the Public are Welcome to Provide Public Comment via Telephone at (877)853-5247 
(the Webinar ID will be Posted to the IVGID Website on the Day of the Meeting). The Meeting will be Available for Viewing at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/3411104. 

 
  
A.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE*    
    

 

B.  ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES*    
    

 

C.  INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - Unless otherwise determined, the time limit shall be three minutes for each person wishing to make a 
public comment. Unless otherwise permitted by the Chair, no person shall be allowed to speak more than once on any single agenda item. Not to include 
comments on General Business items with scheduled public comment. The Board of Trustees may address matters brought up during public comment at the 
conclusion of the comment period but may not deliberate on any non-agendized item.   

    
 

D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA (for possible action)  
 
The Board of Trustees may make a motion for a flexible agenda which is defined as taking items on the agenda out of order; combining agenda items with 
other agenda items; removing items from the agenda; moving agenda items to an agenda of another meeting, or voting on items in a block.  
-OR- The Board of Trustees may make a motion to accept and follow the agenda as submitted/posted.   

    
 

E.  CONSENT CALENDAR (for possible action)     
    

 

   
 1.  SUBJECT: Approval of the IVGID Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes for April 10, 2024. 

(Requesting Staff Member: District Clerk Heidi White) - pages 3 - 37 
      

 

F.  GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action)     
    

 

   

 1.  SUBJECT: Review, Discuss and Approve Board Practice 6.2.0 - Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach Pricing for Products and Services. (Requesting Staff Member: Director 
of Administrative Services Susan Herron) - pages 38 - 82 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a Motion to Approve the Revisions as 
Provided to Practice 6.2.0. 

 
    

 

   
 2.  SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget Workshop. (Requesting Staff Member: Assistant Director 

of Finance Adam Cripps) - pages 83 - 127 
      

 

G.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - Limited to a maximum of three minutes in duration.    
    

 

H.  ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)     
 

    
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

mailto:info@ivgid.org


 
 

 
Agenda for the Board Meeting of May 20, 2024 - Page 2 

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF THIS AGENDA 
I hereby certify that on or before 9:00 AM on Wednesday, May 15, 2024, a copy of this agenda (IVGID Board of Trustees Session of May 20, 2024) was delivered to 
the post office addressed to the people who have requested to receive copies of IVGID’s agendas; copies were e-mailed to those people who have requested; and a copy 
was posted, physically or electronically, at the following locations in accordance with Assembly Bill 213: 

1. IVGID Anne Vorderbruggen Building (893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada; Administrative Offices) 
2. IVGID’s website (www.yourtahoeplace.com/ivgid/board-of-trustees/meetings-and-agendas) 
3. State of Nevada public noticing website (https://notice.nv.gov/) 
4. IVGID's Recreation Center (980 Incline Way, Incline Village, Nevada) 

 
Persons may request copies of all agenda Materials by contacting the District Clerk or by visiting the Administrative Offices at the address listed above. 

 /s/ Heidi H. White  
Heidi H. White  
District Clerk (e-mail: hhw@ivgid.org/phone # 775-832-1268) 

 

IVGID Board of Trustees: Chair Sara Schmitz, Vice Chair Matthew Dent, Treasurer Raymond Tulloch, Secretary Michaela Tonking, and David Noble 
Notes: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; combined with other items; removed from the agenda; moved to the agenda of another meeting; moved to or 
from the Consent Calendar section; or may be voted on in a block. Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard 
later. Those items followed by an asterisk (*) are items on the agenda upon which the Board of Trustees will take no action. Members of the public who are disabled 
and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to call IVGID at 832-1100 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. IVGID'S agenda 
packets are available at IVGID's website, www.yourtahoeplace.com; go to "Board Meetings and Agendas”. 
 

https://www.yourtahoeplace.com/ivgid/board-of-trustees/meetings-and-agendas
https://notice.nv.gov/


   INCLINE VILLAGE  
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING  
PUBLIC MEETING  

Live and Via Zoom 

Held at the Boardroom 
893 Southwood Boulevard 
Incline Village, Nevada 

Wednesday, April 10, 2024 

Reported by:  Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
Job Number:   IVGID 35 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 2
A P P E A R A N C E S 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
SARA SCHMITZ, CHAIR 

RAY TULLOCH, TREASURER (via Zoom) 
DAVE NOBLE, MEMBER 

ALSO PRESENT 
SERGIO RUDIN, LEGAL COUNSEL 
HEIDI WHITE, DISTRICT CLERK 

-o0o-

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 3
I N D E X 

PAGE 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 5 
B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES 5 
C. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 6 
D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 27 
E. REPORTS TO THE BOARD

E 1.  General Manager's Monthly Report 28
E 2.  Utility Infrastructure Master

Plans for Water and Sewer 33
E 3.  Incline Beach House and Access

Project Verbal Report 52
E 4.  Project Savings Identified

Verbal Report 60

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 61
F 1.  Meeting Minutes for 3/6/24

Approval
F 2.  Meeting Minutes for 3/13/24

Approval
F 3.  Meeting Minutes for 3/28/24

Approval
F 4.  Painting Interior of Chateau

Approval
F 5.  Mountain Golf Course Cart Barn

Roof Approval
F 6.  IVGID Spooner Effluent Pump

Station Easement Amendments
Approval

G. GENERAL BUSINESS
G 1.  Alder Avenue Water Main

Replacement 61
G 2.  Skate Park Enhancement Project 64
G 3.  Full-Time Construction Inspection

and Materials Testing 66

H. REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS
REQUESTS 75

 
I. LONG RANGE CALENDAR 75 
J. BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE 81 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 4
K. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 83 
L. ADJOURNMENT 87 

-o0o-

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Item E.1.

Page 3 of 127



   5
Incline Village, Nevada - 4/10/2024 - 6:00 P.M. 

-o0o- 
 
 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Good evening.  It's six
o'clock here in Incline Village.  It is a regular
meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement
District Board of Trustees on April the 10th at the
Boardroom here on Southwood Boulevard.  

We'll begin the meeting with the Pledge of
Allegiance.
A.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

(Pledge of Allegiance.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Moving on to the roll call

of trustees.
B.  ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Present.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Noble?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Here.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And I believe Trustee Dent

is not joining us this evening, but Trustee Tonking
intended to call in, so we will let the record
reflect when she joins.  Myself, Sara Schmitz, so we
do have a quorum of the Board.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   6
We will move on to initial public comment.

C.  INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
MR. CHURCH:  Good evening.  I am Jeff

Church, also known as Watchdog Jeff Church, and my
website is watchdogjeff.com.  

I'm also a trustee for the Washoe County
School District, District A, so I am your trustee.
I've met many of you before.  I do have to do this
disclaimer:  Views are mine, and I am a candidate
for reelection, so I wanted to introduce myself to
those that don't know me.  

I am a terrible politician.  I tell the
truth, I state my views, I don't mess around on
that, I just have no filter, and that's one reason
I'm here to talk about the TTD and the mobility hub.
I voted no.  I was totally opposed to it.  Now I'm
hearing rumors that they might not use it.  

We sold it to them way under market value,
and if they don't use it, the point is I want it
back.  I want to use for our staff housing, I don't
want it be condos for somebody, I want it for our
people for staff housing, and then maybe potentially
for Washoe County housing or state housing for our
employees, but not for any other purpose.  It was
ours, we sold it under good faith that they were

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   7
going to use it for public purposes, and now maybe
they're not.  

I'm also opposed to the closing of the
Incline Village Middle School.  I have eleven
different reasons I could state why I'm opposed to
closing the middle school, but it's really a
nonstarter for me.

Couple of things I just kind of want to
educate you for in the little time I have left.
There's actually two bites of the apple you're going
to get in voting for school trustees.  You have
District A, which is what I am, there's three
candidates, they're all educated people, I just ask
you to look.  And then there's about seven
candidates for the at-large G.  

The reason I bring that up, I'd love to
have somebody do a forum, let's put us on the hot
seat, ask us tough questions.  How do we believe --
what about the closing of middle school?  If there's
any group that could possibly hold a non-partisan
candidate forum, early voting starts in mid-May, so
let's get 'er done, get us up here and put us on the
hot seat and ask us the tough questions.  

I will say -- I have a little bit of time
left -- there's three candidates in my district,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   8
Stephanie Flores, wonderful lady, I'd call her a
moderate.  I'm clearly conservative, I make no bones
about that.  And then Ms. Hull, for lack of a better
term, progressive, a hand-picked progressive one.
So you have candidates, they're all good, depending
on your point of view.  I think I'm the best.  I
stand on my record.  I'm a retired military officer,
retired Reno PD, multiple college degrees,
successful.  I've lived here so long that I have the
old, blue Nevada plate, which they will pry out of
my cold, dead hands, and I used to live at Incline
Village many years ago until I moved down the hill.  

Thank you for the time and have a good
day.

MR. MOLINELLI:  Good evening.  My name is
Joe Molinelli.  

My comments will be in reference to Mr.
Katz' comments about Tim Kelly during the March 6th
special meeting.  For the record, no one has asked
me to be here, no one has asked me to defend
Mr. Kelly, but after the comments I wanted to speak
up, not only a friend, but a good person's
reputation is wrongly trashed.  

I don't know Mr. Katz personally, but I
don't believe he has any kids in youth sports, and I

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 4 of 127



   9
don't believe he's been involved in the adult sports
leagues organized and run by Mr. Kelly, so I'm not
sure what his accusations are based on.  

My wife and I have been homeowners in
Incline for almost 10 years, full-time residents for
the past five.  We have a nine-year-old son who has
played in almost all the youth sports leagues since
he was three.  I've been a volunteer coach for
almost of all these teams, and I played in many of
the adult leagues, so I believe I have credibility
to speak on this as I've personally seen, firsthand,
how much time Tim puts into his role at IVGID and is
supporting our community through his position.  

Since I first met Tim, I've always said --
and I believe anybody who personally knows him -- no
idea how he does it all, from everything in his
IVGID role, supporting these sports organizations,
coaching the high school team, to being involved in
the church community, taking care of his family, he
does everything.  He puts in countless hours during
the day, evenings, and weekends organizing and
running all these youth sports leagues as well as
the adult leagues.  He's also refereed and coached
many of these league teams and games because there
aren't enough volunteers to help out.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  10
Tim has not only helped our son become a

better athlete, but first and foremost, he's been a
leader for our son.  He's taught him and all of our
kids how to be better people, how to be great
teammates, how to treat each other with respect.  

Tim is a pillar of this community, and
he's done so much good for it through his role at
IVGID, he's impacted hundreds if not thousands of
kids, past and present.  "Evil" is the last word I
would use to describe Tim.  

Mr. Katz' comments I believe were not only
uninformed, but they were reckless and careless.
All anybody has to do is spend time around the Rec
Center in the mornings, or any of the field gyms in
the afternoons, evenings, or weekends and you would
see how much time Tim puts into our kids and to
these organizations.  To suggest anything is just
wrong.

If the Board -- and this is my ask -- is
pursuing these baseless accusations, I hope that you
do the proper diligence to find out the truth.  Tim
is a great man, and he's done a lot for this
community.  

Thank you.
MR. EZO:  Hello.  Ken Ezo.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  11
I just wanted to comment, basically

touching the same topic Joe was speaking on.  I
don't have any agenda, I don't have any awareness of
where those comments about Tim Kelly were coming
from.  I was made aware of them, like many other
people, these last few weeks, and I just wanted to
vouch for Tim as a person and as an employee of the
Rec Center and the people in this community.  

I moved here with my family three years
ago with two young boys.  Tim and his family were
some of the first people we met.  He's just been
absolutely everywhere, running clinics, summer
camps, rec league.  I'm a coach and got to know him
a little bit on some of the rec leagues.  

And, yeah, he's had a huge impact on my
family, and has been an awesome role model for my
boys.  We just see him absolutely everywhere, just
constantly pouring energy and passion into
everything he does.  I think he's just, yeah, been
incredibly important for the community.  

Like I said, I have no idea where those
comments were coming from, but I was very, very
surprised, as I'm sure many people were, and I just
wanted to make that perspective known.  

Thanks.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  12
MR. GROSS:  Good evening.  My name is

Michael Gross, and I've been a resident here in
Incline Village for almost 10 years now.  

On a positive note, I'm here to inform the
Board of a donor-funded memorial plaza proposal that
was submitted to our IVGID General Manager Bobby
Magee last month.  The offering comprises about 360
square feet of cobblestone plaza, which is about the
size of a small backyard patio, a large granite
monument with inscriptions, two granite benches, and
three flagpoles.

The best identified location is a
two-and-a-half-foot-high plateau above the northern
end of the Village Green.  It's along Incline Way
and across the street from the Recreational Center.
The location is currently occupied by two park
benches, which could be easily moved to either side,
and this location is perfect with a list of
attributes that is far too long to list in this
small amount of time.

Prior to proposal submittal, a small team
reached out to various Incline Village organizations
and leadership to assess community interest in the
memorial plaza.  We had a great response, with
endorsements from, of course, the Veteran's Club,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 5 of 127



  13
the Military (inaudible) Association, two Rotary
Clubs, the Incline Village Realtors Association, and
others.  We've also worked with our philanthropic
partners, the Parasol Tahoe Community Foundation,
Claudia Anderson, and the Incline Tahoe Foundation.  

A large number of town, villages, hamlets,
cities have some form of a memorial.  Each bring a
greater sense of community and a shared remembrance
of those who sacrificed their lives for our
community.  

As we all know, Incline Village is
decentralized, there is no town center.  We believe
that the monument would bring a greater focus to the
Village Green, it would be an easily recognized
landmark, and a source of community pride.  It would
also be a gathering point for national holidays,
flag retirement ceremonies, and other events.

All the needed donor funding has been
identified, with an estimated fabrication and
installation costs of around $110,000.  We are
currently collaborating with Bobby Magee on the
process for IVGID evaluation approval.  

We believe we will need to come before the
Board two times; the first would be a conditional
approval.  Is it a good idea?  Is it a good use of

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  14
community property, does the community benefit and
support this monument?  

The second would be final approval.  Going
through the due diligence, design and layout,
detailed statement of work, subcontractor quotes,
terms and conditions, funding.

(Expiration of three minutes.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  You can leave your written

comments.
MR. GROSS:  I left copies of the proposal.
MR. NOLET:  Chris Nolet, resident of

Lakeshore, retired CPA.  
I'm going to make a few comments tonight

to fall under my comments from March 28th with
regard to the notion that we have audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30th, 2023.  We
do have a signed report from our auditors, but the
report is a disclaimer opinion.  And a disclaimer
opinion means the financial statements are not
audited.  

Their disclaimer opinion says:  We do not
express an opinion on the company's financial
statements because of all these reasons.  

I'm just not sure what part of "we do not
express an opinion" we don't understand.  These are

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  15
not audited financial statements as they're
regularly referred to in a press release of late and
other settings.  

Rather than punish you with a recitation
of the auditing literature, I'll just tell you what
dictionary.com says about a disclaimer:  You are
renouncing, repudiating, denying, and disavowing.  

Our auditor said they couldn't finish the
audit, there were too many open items, and that was
it.  So, we do not have audited financial
statements.  This is not a matter of nomenclature or
semantics; I just don't understand how there can be
any confusion on this.  And the press release from
April 3rd certainly compounds this misleading
assertion.  

Moreover, I listened to the GLGF meeting
last week, and what they accepted was our ACFR with
financials in it, which there's a disclaimer of
opinion.  Mr. Magee was asked what kind of report
the auditors had given the District, and he
appropriately responded, "A disclaimer of opinion."
I'm just at a complete loss as why we still keep
calling these "audited," and it has a lot of
important ramifications.  

So I don't understand what the problem is.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  16
If you need help, I'm happy to come in and help you
with the literature.  I will note in my almost two
years of dealing with our audit firm, occasionally
they can get a little laxed with their nomenclature.
If some of the confusion's coming from them, I think
I can help that as well.

I would conclude to say that I don't think
calling these financial things "audited" isn't going
to end well.  Perpetuating a categorically incorrect
narrative, the financial statements audited, will
come to an end at some point.  

I'll just add, the ACFR is not on the
website yet.  I don't know why it's not since it was
accepted over a week ago.  If you go to the
financial transparency page, which is where you
would find that, it says:  If you have questions,
call Paul Navazio.

I'm not going to do that.  Lastly, I'll
just say I'm not the only one that's kind of got
this issue in their craw, and there are two other
groups that I know of that are looking at both
regulatory and legal recourse to set the record
straight.  

Thank you.
MR. SCHULTZ:  Joe Schultz, Incline

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 6 of 127



  17
resident.  

This Board of Trustees is making serious
progress to identify, addressing, and correcting the
many serious problems ignored, created, and
prolonged by weak previous boards and unbridled
general managers.  The majority of the critics of
this Board of Trustees have taken, it seems, little
to no time to appoint themselves with the facts
presented by the long history of community
mismanagement nor the voluminous meeting documents
available before each meeting.  They come armed
primarily with gossip, hearsay, and opinions of
their lesser-informed comrades to these meetings
and/or posts on social media, inaccurate and unjust
criticisms of this board and individual trustees.

Would these critics rather have the next
board revert back to hiring the less competent,
retain ineffective employees, grant promotions based
on longevity and not on performance, and kicking the
can of critical, overdue improvements down the road
for another decade or two?  The penalty for previous
procrastinations has already resulted in costs
doubling.  

What would be better, having a very
personal GM or a highly competent one?  Or hiring

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  18
another finance director who would fall years behind
in accounting requirements, buying then not
implementing new accounting software programs?  Or
continuing to collect your money after bond
obligations are retired?  What about extolling the
virtues of directors and employees who use legal
subterfuge to conceal mismanagement by refusing to
reveal legitimate document requests from concerned
community members?  Would returning to that past
produce a better future?

While many, if not most, of the speakers
at this pubic forum are educated, they are seemingly
unaware that when they veer out of their lane of
expertise, they are devoid of any credibility or
authority to undermine the serious efforts in
deliberations of the current trustees to manage the
affairs of this community.  

At a recent town hall meeting, an informal
session was conducted based on the last Flash
survey.  I wondered about the comments.  However,
unlike most respondents, I withheld my reservations
until the meeting, and the explanations and
information derived from the survey response became
quite clear when reviewed.

Many thanks to all those who offer

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  19
reasoned commentary designed to encourage and help
the IVGID trustees carry out the responsibilities.
All other nonconstructive critics simply pull the
community down while making the job of our publicly
elected officials tedious if not impossible.
Please, in the future, for the good of our
community, offer constructive commentary.  

Thank you.
MS. MARTINI:  Margaret Martini, Incline

Village.  
I have heard around town a lot that our

general manager doesn't even live here.  And I just
wanted to say that he probably doesn't live here
because who in their right mind would completely
uproot themselves from their family and et cetera,
wherever he is governing from, for a two-year, a
paltry two-year contract?  

To completely dismantle your family and
move into an area just for a two-year contract is
asking an unreasonable request.  And so to all those
who are screaming from the rooftops "he doesn't even
live here," well, let's talk about Mr. Winquest, who
didn't even live here, but he was physically here
weekly, as is Mr. Magee, and what did we have then?
We had chaos.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  20
At least with Mr. Magee, and I urge

everybody to go and look at the letter that he
provided of his recommendations, to let everyone
know that he is completely and utterly qualified for
this position.  And if you look and see that we've
even submitted bank statements that were audited for
the short time that he's been here, he has performed
miracles in this accounting department.  And I think
we really need to be thankful because that is one of
the things that everyone was concerned about: the
books, the books, the accounting, the accounting.  

Well, he has done a remarkable job in the
short time that he's been here.  And when you look
at what people are saying about them, I challenge,
even some of those candidates who are CPAs for
Fortune 500 companies, to think that they could have
accomplished any more than he has accomplished,
especially with a computer software program that was
probably defunct by the time we even started to
implement it.  

And so I just want say thank you to
Mr. Magee for stepping in, realizing that, and then
the next thing I think we need is an employee audit.

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  No other public comments

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 7 of 127



  21
in the room.  Any online?

MR. DOBLER:  Cliff Dobler, 995 Fairway.
Davis Farr, LLC, was engaged by IVGID to

perform an audit on the basic financial
statements for the year ended June 30th, 2023.  The
goal was to complete an audit required by auditing
standards and issue an opinion that the financial
statements are presented fairly in all material
respects in the respective positions of all funds.  

Because IVGID staff could not provide the
auditor with the information necessary to complete
the audit, no opinion was given by the auditor.
There was no completed audit.

IVGID staff, the Board of Trustees, and
the outside auditors somehow believe that the
financial statements were audited.  Press releases
were provided to the Tribune, IVGID announcements,
and to the Nevada Department of Taxation that the
financial statements were audited.  These statements
are misrepresentations and carries violations of the
law.  I would highly recommend that these
announcements be withdrawn to avoid the potential
for costly litigation.  

Now, I did a four-hour review of the
financial statements and was appalled at the vast

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  22
number of errors and misrepresentations.  I have
found over 40 errors, which in the aggregate would
be considered substantial, suggesting the financial
statements are worthless.  Here are a few examples:  

In the MDA on page 12, the payment of $1
million made to the county for overpayment of
collection of property taxes was recorded as a
liability three years ago.  The payment should have
reduced the liability and not be a reduction of the
current year's revenues.  

After several years, the money collected
for the pipeline became restricted on the statement
of net position for proprietary funds, page 93, but
was not restricted on page 17 for the proprietary
funds.  

On note 14 on page 44 describes the note
as "unrestricted funds," which is an error; it's the
complete opposite. 

A $1 million transfer was made from the
general fund to the utility fund.  The amount was
recorded in reverse.  Are the balances correct?  

Lastly, 2023 costs for construction and
progress for the utility fund has four different
numbers in four different locations.  The MDA on
page 14 states the amount of 6.5 million.  The

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  23
statement of cash flow on page 25 states the amount
is 3.4 million.  Note 5, capital assets, page 37 and
38, states the amount of 7.5 million.  The
restricted funds on note 14, page 44, states the
amount of the pipeline is only 5.5 million.  Which
one is right?

There is no credibility to the unaudited
financial statements.  

Thank you.  
MR. BRIGGS:  Good evening.  This is

Michael Briggs.  I live at 582 Douglas Court in
Incline Village.  

I wanted to make a few comments about the
golf rates that are on tonight's agenda based upon
the report from last year's golf season that was
submitted to the Golf Advisory Committee by Darren
Howard.

First, 2023 was the first time in
recent years that residents who paid the daily rate
played more rounds than residents with Play Passes,
and I think that was probably intended by the Board
policy.  

Two, the Picture Pass and Play Passes,
basically all residents play, has now dropped from
75 percent in 2020 to 63 percent in 2023.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  24
Third, the average revenue per round paid

for by Play Pass Holders has risen from $50 in 2020
to $80 in 2023.  That's a $30 increase or 60 percent
increase.  I think we are at the point on the Laffer
curve where an increase in rates going forward will
result in a reduction in revenues.  And if there's a
cost or expenses problem at the golf courses, I
think we need to address it, but don't raise rates
further.  

Finally, last year the IVGID Board of
Trustees adopted a policy for free reservations for
residents during the entire season, I think that was
popular, and still tee times were easily available
for residents to obtain.  I would recommend
strongly, though, that if that policy is continued
that the Board put in a no resale or transfer for
value restriction on those passes.  Otherwise, we
could end up with a problem with people getting free
tee times and reselling them.  

Thanks for your time.
MR. WRIGHT:  Frank Wright, Crystal Bay.
I'm a candidate for the board, along with

five other people.  This is a clear-cut election.
You got two choices.  We can continue being the
laughing stock of Washoe County.  Our financials

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 8 of 127



  25
have been, in the past, a disaster, they are getting
better.  We have people working on fixing a lot of
things that are really, really wrong.  And if you
elect the candidates who are here for their
self-serving purposes, then you're going to get the
same thing over and over and over again.

There are some problems here.  There are
employee problems, big time, and if we don't correct
them now and a new board comes in of the same old,
same old, same old, we will be the laughing stock of
Washoe County for another couple of years.  Do you
really want that?  Do you want board members who are
up here serving for their own self-serving interest
and catering to people who elect them that want
freebies, they want other people to pay for their
amenities, or your want people that are responsible,
people that are honest, people that will do what is
necessary for this community to maximize all of our
venues and have the people that are living here
enjoy them, not just few, out-of-town golfers who
join a golf club and get preferred tee times?  I'll
be really interested in seeing what kind of rates
are recommended for golfers.  

We have the ability to sell some tee times
that we've never been able to sell now because in

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  26
the past, all these tee times were given away in
February and you couldn't sell them to people who
would pay a lot of money, which would result in all
of us that live here getting lower rates because the
people who don't live here will be paying more.  If
they're paying more, that means we can charge less
for the citizens who are living here, and the golf
courses won't lose $2 million a year.

My suggestion is see your candidates, find
out the ones who are here to help our community, and
find out the ones who are here to help themselves to
our amenities for their own self-serving purposes.
It's very easy to figure out.  

If anyone is on the list that is running
for office that was part of that disaster called
"the recall," I'd really think twice about what in
the world they brought to our community and how
ridiculous the whole thing was.  The recall was a
major disaster and a major black eye to this
community.  

Our financials are a major black eye to
this is community.  Let's put an end to it.  Let's
put in trustees who care about our community.  I'm
one of them.  

Thank you.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  27
MATT:  That was our last public comment.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That closes out agenda

item C.  Moving on to agenda item D.
D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Staff has requested the
removal of G 1, which was to review, discuss, and
approve recommended 2024/2025 golf rates.  That will
be moved to our next meeting.  That agenda item will
be just deferred for one meeting.  

Are there any other changes to the agenda?
Sergio, do I need a motion if we're

changing the agenda in any way?
MR. RUDIN:  I think since it's an item on

your agenda, you might as well have a motion.  I
think it's pretty straightforward to do it.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move that we
accept the agenda as posted, except for we will
remove item G 1.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do I hear a second?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?  
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.  
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Motion passes.  We will defer that agenda

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  28
item.  Moving on to agenda item E.
E.  REPORTS TO THE BOARD 

E 1.  General Manager's Monthly Report  
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That begins with our

District Manager's monthly status report.  I will
hand the floor over to you, GM Magee.

MR. MAGEE:  I wanted to start out today
with some good news on the Public Works front.  At
the recent California Water Environment Association
annual awards, we had a number of people in Public
Works that won awards.  And so I wanted give a huge
shout-out to Bobby Olson, who received an award for
mechanical technician person of the year.  To Brian
Kambitsch, who received an award for electrical
instrumentation person of the year.  Jeff Donahue
for pretreatment pollution prevention person of the
year.  And to Sarah Vidra for community engagement
and outreach person of the year.  In addition, I'm
very happy to report that IVGID received a team
award for safety plant of the year team.  

I wanted to give a big shout-out to the
Public Works team.  These are things that they
should be exceptionally proud of.

Moving on, the spring edition of IVGID
Magazine was released today.  It is on the

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 9 of 127



  29
yourtahoeplace website now, and the issues have been
mailed out so residents should be receiving those
soon.  

I wanted to highlight a couple of things
that you'll find in the magazine.  One is the
comprehensive IVGID use summer camp guide for
parents looking to enroll their kids in camps this
summer.  There's some listings of programs for
senior and active adults this spring and early
summer.  Youth and adult sports leagues for this
spring and summer.  Some beach rules and updates to
the beach can be found in the magazine.  There's a
photo recap of Diamond Peak special events this
winter.  And finally updates on major capital
improvement projects that the District will be
working on this construction season.  

I would highly encourage people to check
out the spring edition of the IVGID Magazine.  

Then finally the last thing I wanted to
highlight is out at the beaches, with the weather
getting warmer, we've noticed an increase in
activity at the beaches and wanted to let everyone
know that there's limited staff in beach operations
right now with a ramp up that is occurring through
April.  The beach ambassadors are already out there

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  30
full time, but with Diamond Peak staying open,
candidly, some of the employees that are likely to
be working at the beaches are currently working at
Diamond Peak.  Over the next couple of weeks, we
anticipate that there will be a ramp up in staffing
until we're fully staffed sometime in mid to late
April.  

Finally, the last thing I have is that I
wanted to announce that the RFID gate pilot program
with the goose dogs has been a resounding success.
The beach staff is reporting a tremendous amount of
positive feedback from the community, and they
wanted to share with the Board that they have got
nothing but positive comments from the community on
that.  

With that, I'll close out my report, and
if the Board has any questions, I'd be happy to take
those at this time.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'm wondering if you would
like to clarify anything relative to the public
comments about the audit.  Would you like to take
that?

MR. MAGEE:  I certainly can.  So, as I
spoke to the Department of Taxation, the requirement
was that we submitted the audited financial

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  31
statements.  And I do understand that there's some
debate on the semantics of the language that was
used.  I have talked to Jennifer Farr, and her
opinion is that she has issued an opinion.  The
opinion is a disclaimer of opinion.  

And so I understand that there's debate
around that, but at the committee on local
government finance, they did accept the documents,
and the State let us know that they believe we are
in full compliance with the law.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  Is one of that
items of compliance is to submit audited financials?

MR. MAGEE:  Yeah.  We do need to submit
audited financials, and these financials are
considered audited by the committee, by the State,
and so that's why they've shared with us that
they're accepting them as complete at this time.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  General Manager Magee,
I'm looking at the financial report and the Tyler
Munis reimplementation or correction or whatever.
We thought by bringing in an experienced project
manager to run this, rather than just assume that we
can do all part time?

MR. MAGEE:  The answer yes.  We are doing
it both in house, and we're also engaging with some

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  32
of the experts at Baker Tilly and using their
recommendations for the items that they believe we
should look at.  And so ultimately it is Assistant
Director Adam Cripps who is making the decisions on
how to most appropriately set up the internal
controls within the system and the way that the
system works.  And then he's working, obviously,
with Director of IT Mike Gove as well.  And so we do
have an entire team of people that are working this.  

We have not considered bringing forward a
recommendation to the Board at this time, which
would include additional resources for this, but we
are working within the resources that the Board has
already provided and we do have experts on staff
with Baker Tilly that are assisting us with that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I understand that.  
One of the key issues we identified with

the original implementation was the attempts to do
it ourselves without using a system integrator or an
experienced project manager dedicated to that that
could drive the project.  

I'd certainly -- while no disrespect to
the experts at Baker Tilly or whatever, driving an
ERP-type project like this does require some special
skills.  I would ask you to consider it.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 10 of 127



  33
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  The one thing I just

wanted to mention to my fellow board members is that
in discussing with the General Manager, the public
records request that gets published in his monthly
report, we're actually going to bring an agenda item
just to clarify what the Board wants to see because
this list is only going to get longer with every
month.  So, we will be bringing that back as an item
for brief direction of what needs to be included in
the board packet.

Seeing no more questions on the General
Manager report, we'll move on to item E 2.  

E 2.  Utility Infrastructure Master Plans for 
Water and Sewer  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I will hand this over to
the interim Director of Public Works Ms. Nelson and
her team.

MS. NELSON:  As you're aware, in
October of 2022 the Board of Trustees approved the
water and sewer master plan project.  The original
scope included the SKATA master plan as well, but
due to budgetary issues, that was re-budgeted as a
separate project.  Public works staff is currently
preparing the statement of qualifications to be
advertised in the near future for that project.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  34
The master plan's purpose is to document

system trends and capacity, infrastructure condition
and performance, and provide a plan for the near and
long-term capital improvement replacement needs.
DOWL Engineering worked closely with the Public
Works staff to gain knowledge of both systems and
provide their independent review of the overall
systems.  

I'd like to introduce Luke Tipton with
DOWL Engineering.  He is their water and wastewater
leader, and he's going to provide a short
presentation to the Board.  And then we're here to
answer questions.

MR. TIPTON:  Very pleased to present
DOWL's evaluations of the water and sewer utilities
as a result of the completion of the utility master
plans.  

Tonight we're going to go through the
master planning process and some of the key goals,
as well as explaining how we grade the system, and
then looking at the specific results for the water
and sewer systems.  I will note, I'm going to try
and streamline this as much as possible.  I know
we're trying to save some time here, so I will kind
of breeze through a few of these slides here.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  35
First, preparing a utility master plan,

it's a multi-phase process.  It starts with a large
data collection and review stage.  We interview
utility operations staff, we come up and tour your
facilities, do field investigations and field
surveys all so that we can then make some
engineering evaluations of your system capacity and
performance.

Ultimately, all of that information gets
documented in the plan itself.  This plan went
through three rounds of review and improvement.  We
workshopped it with District staff, and ultimately
presented and recommended the capital improvement
program with the plan, which is the primary goal.
Of any utility master plan, that CIP is the roadmap
for the future to answer the question for the
utility and community, what do we need to do and
when do we need to do it?

We're going to look at the water and sewer
system and look at what DOWL's evaluation of those
systems are.  In doing so, we're using a rubric that
was developed by the American Society of Civil
Engineers for the nation's infrastructure report
card.  It's really a scale, A through F scale,
ranging from exceptional to failing.  And I do want

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  36
to note that, while this rubric was developed by
others, all of the grades given to your
infrastructure are opinions of DOWL based on our
professional expertise and working with water and
wastewater utilities.

Looking specifically at the water system,
we can see we broke the water system into four
primary components, and then provided individual
evaluation grades for each of the criteria listed on
this table.  Ultimately then, we average all of
those grades and result in the overall grade which
we see on the column to the right.  

For the water system, the overall grade
for those system components ranged from C to an
A-minus, and really what that tells us is that the
Burnt Cedar facility is in really good shape,
doesn't require significant improvements in the near
future, however routine maintenance and implementing
best management practices are critical to
maintaining that performance into the future.  

Looking at the lowest-scoring component
with a distribution system of a C, that tells that
that component requires attention, and the reason
for that and the reason for the D in the future need
category is that almost half of your system requires

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 11 of 127



  37
replacement of aging water mains, that you're having
multiple failures due to old pipes.

Altogether, we take those individual
component grades which results in a composite grade,
and overall system grade of a B-minus, which really
B-minus says that the system is adequate for now but
it's in danger of declining if the District isn't
proactive.

And then we can also see that of how the
system compares to the national report card grade,
infrastructure report card grade, and the State of
Nevada report card grade, which both were C-minuses
the last time those were conducted.

I mentioned the aging water main
replacement project, here's a figure that identifies
the mains recommended for replacement, which, like I
said, is about half of your distribution system.

Moving quickly on this slide, this slide
is intended to highlight that the seasonal
fluctuations in water demand, primarily tied to
outdoor irrigation, you can see that in the summer,
the average daily demand is around 5 million gallons
per day, whereas in the winter, we're more around 1
million gallons per day.  

Looking now at the sewer system, the sewer

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  38
system, we broke into the components of the
collection system, the lift stations which pump the
sewer to the water resource recovery facility, that
facility is its own component, then the effluent
export system.  Overall, the sewer system scored a
little lower than the water system.  And some items
I want to point out are looking at, under the health
and safety evaluation criterion, the lift stations
and the water resource recovery facility all scored
a D.  

Lift stations, that was primarily due to
your sewer pump station 10, which has some outdated
technology, which makes it very difficult to replace
parts.  That lift station sits directly adjacent to
Lake Tahoe.  

And then on the water resource recovery
facility, the reason for the low score there is the
lack of effluent storage capacity at that facility.
However, we anticipate that grade significantly
increasing once the new effluent storage tank is
online, which is slated for, I think, this
construction season.

As I mentioned, the sewer system score is
a little lower than that water system at an overall
grade of a C-plus, which is really a call for

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  39
attention and improvement.  And the comparison to
the national and state grades there is looking
better than the national report card, but actually
lower than the State of Nevada report grade of a
B-minus.

This figure is of the water resource
recovery facility and some of the uniprocesses we've
identified for improvements in the near future.

With that, prepared to answer any
questions or comments on the plans.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Putting a little more
context with regards to the grades, so with regards
to the WRRF, once that tank gets put into service at
the end of this coming construction season, right
now that grade's a D, where do you expect it to be
after that?

MR. TIPTON:  I expect it to be -- it would
probably be in the low Bs, really.  That category
covers really what could be the consequence of a
failure and not be able to export effluent is a real
high risk for the utility.  Having more storage
capacity if something were to happen on that export
system is a great benefit to the facility.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Then with the effluent
export, overall grade is C-plus, and you're very

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  40
well aware, we've got the replacement of the
effluent pipeline going on for the next
several years.  What do you anticipate that grade
being once that project is complete?

MR. TIPTON:  I would anticipate that
probably being an A-minus, B-plus, somewhere in
there.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Then you mentioned with
lift stations, it's sewer pump station number 10
that is dragging that grade down currently; is that
correct?

MR. TIPTON:  That was the critical
facility because of that outdated technology, and
that's why, in the CIP, it's recommend for
replacement in fiscal year '26.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  '26.  And do you think
fiscal year -- never mind.

Then with regards to the water system
grades distribution, and you referenced replacement
of the water mains is what's driving that degrade at
this point; is that correct?

MR. TIPTON:  Correct.  Yes.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  And so we currently have a

water main replacement program in place now, does
that need to be accelerated in your opinion?

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 12 of 127



  41
MR. TIPTON:  It could be accelerated.  I

mean, that program -- 
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I guess, should it be

accelerated, in your professional opinion?
MR. TIPTON:  I think that the District is

doing a lot in that regard.  And we're recommending
spending $3-, $4-, $5 million a year ever year for
the next ten years to replace, starting with the
steel water mains, which are failing most
frequently, which is a problem for service outages
as well as driving up costs.  It's always more
costly to spot repair instead of wholesale replace.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Do you see the District's
water main replacement program as it currently
stands adequate to address that degrade, and that
over the next ten years that would be a sufficient
response or would you like to see something more
coming from the District with regards to that?

MR. TIPTON:  I think that the plan we've
laid out in the master plan is adequate, and that
the District staff is doing their best to address
this problem and replace those mains.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I did see something
disturbing.  If I go to the executive summary of
your report on page 11, where states that we don't

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  42
have any assessment scoring data or risk evaluation
metrics, yet we've been investing several million
bucks a year in asset replacement, and it's not that
long since we had an asset management -- manager or
director, I can't remember which it was, that
concerns me a bit.  So we haven't really been
properly targeting investment, is that your finding?

MS. NELSON:  Is that in the sewer master
plan or the water master plan?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  It's in the water mater
plan, the executive summary, page 11, under section
2.0, condition assessment and risk analysis.

MR. TIPTON:  When we scoped this project
and originally met with the District staff, it was
the belief this data existed, however, that
infrastructure scoring was not available, and so
that's why we have recommended a program to score
all of your water and sewer assets -- it's in both
plans, really -- here in the near future to better
understand the condition of your facilities.  

On the water side, it's a little less
important than on the sewer side just because it's
difficult to make those investigations.  We are --
the District does maintain an annual leak testing
program, and we're asking to continue that and even

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  43
ramp it up slightly.  

But then on the sewer side, it's to review
all of the videos that currently exist, they just
have not been scored by a NASCO-certified
individual.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  And this would be
normal.  If you look at your risk assessment and the
condition assessment, this concerns me.  Do you have
some recommendations or changes to our current
investment plans and our programs and how we better
target this investment?

MS. NELSON:  I'll answer that.  We are
looking at, in next year's budget, requesting funds
for additional camera equipment, as well as training
for our staff to become NASCO certified.  That's
what we're doing on the operations side to address
those issues.  

We have a robust GIS system where all of
that information can be input and then stored
forever, basically, so that's the direction that we
would like to take.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  But is this -- are we
putting a lot of pause on our current investment
plans to look at better targeting of investment, or
are we just moving it still with the multi-shot and

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  44
not really targeting the critical areas?

MR. TIPTON:  In our opinion, I think
District staff is aware of what the critical areas
are, but, yes, we are recommending that the District
beef up their program and maintain frequent scoring
of their assets, and really see paying off five,
six, seven years down the line.  And not necessarily
that that needs to be completed to know what the
next big problem is.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Understood.  So as part
of the recommendations, accurate targeting rather
than just blanket hitting an area?

MR. TIPTON:  Yes.  You know, that data
would help us more accurately score which areas have
the highest likelihood of failure.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  The next question is
really for Ms. Nelson.  In terms of last year, we
spent a lot of time and money on developing the
financing profile for the next five, ten years.  

Is there anything in these recommendations
in this master plan that is going to change these
and going to require a reassessment of that?

MS. NELSON:  I think there will be.  And
we will -- we're in the midst of budget right now,
so you will probably be seeing some redlined changes

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 13 of 127



  45
in your budget for the next year and then the
out years as well.

We can certainly track that so it's easy
to identify if that helps for the Board.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Will we also be
revisiting the plan and then seeing what the impact
is on rates based on these changes?

MS. NELSON:  Absolutely.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  One final overall

comment, and, I think, for the benefit of the
public.  I'm not surprised that the overall
assessment here, this is not something unique to
Incline Village, it's pretty much common right
across the nation because most of the water
infrastructure has been put in 50, 60 to 100 years
ago.  It's starting to fail across the country, this
isn't something unique to us.

MS. NELSON:  That's correct.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  My question piggybacks on

Trustee Tulloch, and that is we have a history of
scheduling projects, budgeting projects, and then
not getting them complete in that fiscal year and
carrying things over.  

To me, some of these things are critically
important to get addressed in a timely fashion.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  46
Does staff have the capacity to deliver according to
what they're proposing be the capital project plan?

MS. NELSON:  We are reviewing that.  We've
already begun that process.  And we know that we're
short staffed.  General Manager Magee has authorized
us to advertise for the senior engineer position.  I
think that there's two different things going on
there as well because our construction season spans
a fiscal year, you do see a lot of carryover, but we
have that six-month period to get the projects done.  

I think that we've done a pretty good job
about getting the designs done early, bidding, and
moving projects forward over the last couple
of years that we have been more fully staffed.  With
the loss of the director, things have shifted, so
that is where it's really important that we do get
that senior engineer back on board so we can keep
the momentum going.  

But we are evaluating that, our capacity
and then the capacity to actually bring in
consultants to do the work.  You will notice that
the Alder Avenue project, it was done by an outside
engineer.  We're having that engineer continue to do
through the construction administration.  

We're doing different things to try to

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  47
make sure that we can address the projects.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Then to the rate study,
with the rate study, do we need to go back and do a
reevaluation?  Because this year, we decided that we
were going to use the data from last year, use the
recommendation from last year with this updated
information, do we need to go back out to have a
professional reevaluate the rates?

MS. NELSON:  I would highly suggest that;
however for this budget, we don't have time.  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Correct.
MS. NELSON:  However, we will be using

finance staff and myself to evaluate and go through
the changes in the budget versus the year two of the
rate study just to see how close we are and if we do
need to adjust that year two.

Our plan is to bring that rate hearing
forward in May so that at least the rates are in
place for the next fiscal year before July 1.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do you want on the long
range calendar in October/November to potentially
evaluate having a rate study done for next season?

MS. NELSON:  I would actually like to
start that in August.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  In August.  So, we'll just

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  48
need to update the long range calendar to get that
scheduled.

My question that wasn't answered is around
the description that you give about the density of
the sewage.  Okay?  In your description in the
executive summary, you start talking about how the
low-flush toilets and low-flow shower heads actually
is changing the plant and changing the capacity of
the plant.

You had talked about originally the plant
had a capacity for some amount based on a certain
assumption.  Now those assumptions have changed.
I'm wondering if we should go and say what is the
new capacity given the denser materials?  Because we
have a lot of rezoning that has been done, and I
think that we should get ahead of it and understand
where we are with limitations.  

It seems like the sewer side is
potentially more critical to have addressed, the
water might not be as critical of an issue after our
discussion, but I think that would be -- I would
think that would be some helpful analysis for us to
have done.

The other thing I'm wondering if you could
update, in the sewer executive summary in these

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 14 of 127



  49
pages where there's red numbers, I just couldn't see
what it was that you were trying to highlight.  And
it might be good to just add some verbiage so that
others don't have the same question as I did when I
read the document.  That's just a suggestion.

MR. TIPTON:  Okay.
MS. NELSON:  I'd like to just address the

concentration of the wastewater.  
Operations staff is moving in a different

direction, and that's why we came in front of the
Board to request the approval on the probes to be
able to analyze and get ahead of what's coming in
and actually modify the process a little bit.

Next board meeting, you'll see a request
for lab equipment, and that lab equipment is
twofold, it'll help with water system testing that
we have going on, as well as realtime testing of
wastewater that's coming in so we can actually
calibrate and make sure that we're changing things
from reading the probes and making sure that we're
seeing the actual results that we're after.  

That's kind of how we're tweaking the
system at the operation level, but, yes.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Here's just my layman's
question:  With the change, does it actually reduce

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  50
the capacity that the station can handle?  That's
just the nutshell of the question.

MR. TIPTON:  Yeah.  The short answer's
yes.  But I'd also say that DOWL has currently
engaged the District where we're exploring what it
would take to create a biological model of the
facility where we can run analyses and understand
what truly is the current capacity of the plant and
how would that be impacted with future development,
and/or how that would be impacted with changes to
certain unit processes.  

We're just starting that process now.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That's something that'll

be on your plate.  Okay.  Thank you.
I do really appreciate the grading and

it's very simple and easy to understand.  And the
reports, I think it'll really help staff, and it'll
help the Board to prioritize projects and understand
the roadmap we're on in the utilities.

Any other questions?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just with regard to the

rate study, given that we just did a full-blown rate
study, very high cost, it was 12 months ago, I'm
assuming that we still have the supporting
spreadsheets and documentation.  Can I suggest that

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  51
rather than just diving into this later in the fall,
perhaps we plug some numbers based on some of these
proposals for increased capital and probably
increased operating costs?  

Can I suggest that maybe we just plug some
of these numbers in to give us sighting shot to
start with before we start on another full-blown
study?  Once we start doing them every two years,
it's adding a significant level of cost as well.

MS. NELSON:  That was my plan for this
initial rate hearing that you'll come to the Board
in May.  However, what I'm recommending is just an
update to the rate study that was completed.  It
won't be a full-blown rate study, but we can
certainly keep that in mind.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah.  I think my
follow-up question to that is by November or so, are
we really going to have flushed out what this means
in terms of additional investment and additional
affects?

MS. NELSON:  I think we need to be moving
in that direction.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  I would just ask
that we make sure we have that properly flushed out
before we invest more in a further rate study.  In

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  52
the short term, we can plug in numbers to the model.

MS. NELSON:  Understood.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you both very much

for the presentation, the brief presentation, and
also for all of the effort that went into this.
It's really helpful to have a roadmap for our
future.  Thank you.

Moving on.  
E 3.  Incline Beach House and Access Project 

Verbal Report 
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Verbal report and update

on the Incline Beach House and access projects.
MS. NELSON:  The team met this week.  They

had to make up for last week's meeting because it
was spring break and most of the project team was
out of town.

The team is focused on getting all of the
entitlements in order.  That includes reviewing the
site encumbrances, such as site constraints, the
sewer limitations, as well as TRPA allowable
coverage.  We have started the coverage verification
process with TRPA.  The Board will be seeing a
contract for the geotechnical investigation as well
as the soils hydro report probably at the April 24th
meeting.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 15 of 127



  53
Currently, the project is on schedule with

the Board-authorized $4 million, all in budget for
the Beach House project.  It has been mentioned from
members of the Board that the design needs to be
completed without regarding to the authorized
budget.  If this is the desire of the entire Board
to revisit the authorized dollar amount, please note
that this is not an agendized item for this evening,
but I would suggest it come back maybe during the
long range calendar discussion and put it on the
Board agenda at that time.

Staff is planning to receive the
preliminary budget from the project team on Monday.
Staff will be meeting with the finance team to
review the budget, update, and provide an update at
the following meeting, April 24th meeting.  It might
be a good opportunity to start the discussion of
bonding at that point because we will have both
preliminary project costs for the Beach House as
well as the access project.

And with that, I will turn over to the
Board for any questions.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any questions?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  In terms of the overall

design, have we reached out to Incline Spirits, who

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  54
have been running the bar very successfully, that we
have their input for that as well, assuming that we
continue the same operating model going forward to
make sure that we can have a situation where we
could have different bar providers as to food
providers?

MS. NELSON:  I don't know that we've
reached out to date, but we do have that planned
for, hopefully, within the next week.

We have meetings going on on Monday to
discuss, again, the budget portion of it, and then
we will reach out to Incline Spirits just to get
their feedback on where the project is and what
needs they may have or see any changes that they
might suggest.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Let's make sure that the
two operations can operate independently if
required, that there's no conflict.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I, too, think that we need
to have a design that segregates the food aspect of
it from the bar aspect of it, because we potentially
in the future could have different vendors providing
food service compared to bar service, and so we
wouldn't want to have commingling of property and
access and that sort of thing.  I think that's very

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  55
important.

One of the things -- I sat in on the
meeting this past week, it was very informative, and
one of things on the design that I've thought about
that I think we should potentially also reconsider
is in the design, it included four outdoor showers,
full showers, and that I think that we would be
better served by having foot showers as opposed to
full-on showers.  I think that would be a prudent
decision.

The other thing, Trustee Dent had asked me
to share some things.  He had asked me to share he
doesn't think we should have showers, he said you
could have the foot showers, that makes sense, but
that we should really design for the future and that
we may have different vendors.  We need to have that
separation.  

The other thing that he wanted to bring to
staff's attention, because I don't know if it has
been, but the general manager of the Hyatt had
informed us that they are going to be dismantling
that brand-new bar that they just built at the beach
at the Hyatt, and he basically said if you are
interested in any of the infrastructure or
equipment, let me know because it's going.  So it

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  56
might be worthwhile to take a look at how they have
it, and if we had the ability to lift things, that
potentially could be a huge cost savings.  That was
Trustee Dent.  

I have not been down to look it, so I
can't speak to how it's different from the design,
but I think the team is going on the right
direction.  But I do think there's an aspect of what
are the requirements of the design, and then what
was that do to the cost?  And I think we need to
take things in a step-by-step, okay, here's what the
Board really would like to see.

And I would encourage you to reach out to
Incline Spirits, because one of the things they had
shared with me is that the design of the kitchen at
the Burt Cedar facility is very inefficient, and
they have to actually have more staff at that
kitchen than they do at the Incline.  

And given that we're always struggling to
get summer staff and staffing, we need to make sure
that it is designed efficiently so that it minimizes
the number of staff that needs to be there in order
serve the public.  

Are there any other questions or comments?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I don't have any real

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 16 of 127



  57
comments at this point because I haven't seen the
design.  I've seen a couple of pictures but that's
it, so I have no basis upon which to make any
informed comments or decisions or recommendations
today.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Does staff feel
comfortable -- Trustee Dent, I think, was thinking
that when the fascia pictures were shared with us
that we were also just seeing sort of basics of the
bar and the kitchen layout, but that wasn't
included.  

It is too preliminary at this point to
share it?

MS. NELSON:  I believe so.  I think
they're still working with the kitchen designer and
staff for layout, that kind of thing.  The
schematics that are being developed are very
preliminary.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I guess I would just
encourage staff to share with the Board, because I
think having input from the Board sooner rather than
later helps to keep the design costs down, and we
don't want to get to the end of a design phase and
then have board members saying, well, this doesn't
quite work for this reason or that reason.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  58
I think if there's some way to keep us

somewhat informed as we're going along, I think it
would be helpful, especially because you're going to
be giving us updates at every meeting.

MS. NELSON:  Um-hum.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  The next milestone is the

30 percent design schematics, and what I don't want
to see is the Board trying to micromanage every
little minutia piece.  I'm waiting for those 30
percent schematics, and then I think we can take
that and then provide any feedback at that point.  

But this weekly feedback, unless there's
questions that they have, I don't want get in the
way of staff and the contractors at this point.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Absolutely.  But the way
to keep costs down is to make sure that you're going
in with design constraints that you understand.  

This separation, that was an assumption
that was being made is that they could be comingled,
and when I discovered that, I thought I don't think
that is what the Board is asking for.  It's not
micromanagement; it's making sure that our design is
going to meet what we feel as a board we want for
the future.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would just respectfully

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  59
disagree.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you for that.  
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I would just say I'm a

little bit concerned, I maybe misheard it, but I
heard some things, well, we can just open up the
funding now.  I think let's see the 30 percent
design at the agreed budget because we've judged all
the proposed vendors based on that.  I don't think
at this state we suddenly tell the vendors, no, it's
okay, we can suddenly rip through the budget.  I
think that would be unfair to the other contestants
as well.  

I would expect to see the 30 percent
design that comes to us at the end of the month
based on the existing budget.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I agree.  But I also don't
want a design coming back that doesn't meet basic
constraints about separation of food and the bar.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I totally agree.  I
think, to me, that's an essential to run the
operations effectively.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Is this sufficient
feedback and direction for you?

MS. NELSON:  Yeah, I believe so.  
We will just move forward, see what the

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  60
preliminary budgets come in at, and then we'll
update the Board at the next meeting.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All right.  Thank you.
E 4.  Project Savings Identified Verbal Report 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Verbal report and update
on the project savings identified for the Board for
the reappropriating of funds for the operating
account from the augmentation of the '23/'24 budget.  

MS. NELSON:  At the board meeting on
March 13th, the Board requested that staff find
savings and unused funds throughout the water
utility fund to cover the costs of the $300,000
increase to the distribution main and repair budget.

We did work with finance.  There was over
$278,000 in the Crystal Peak water line replacement
project, so we are requesting that the 300,000 be
helped with the $278,000 from that project.  

We also have the line item in the water
utility shared expense budget of $25,000 for the
portion of the utility rate study that we did not
move forward, so we will take the remainder, the
$22,000, from that budget to augment the water
transmission repair and maintenance budget.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Are there any questions?
Seeing none, that closes out agenda item

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 17 of 127



  61
E.  Would you like to move on to the consent
calendar or take a quick break first?
F.  CONSENT CALENDAR  

F 1.  Meeting Minutes for 3/6/24 Approval 
F 2.  Meeting Minutes for 3/13/24 Approval 
F 3.  Meeting Minutes for 3/28/24 Approval 
F 4.  Painting Interior of Chateau Approval 
F 5.  Mountain Golf Course Cart Barn Roof 
       Approval 
F 6.  IVGID Spooner Effluent Pump Station 

  Easement Amendments Approval 
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move that we

approve items F 1 through F 6, as recommended in the
agenda notice.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  There's a motion.  Is
there a second?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
The consent calendar is approved.  We will

take a short break, and we'll be back at 7:35 and
begin with former G 2.

(Recess from 7:23 p.m. to 7:35 p.m.)
G.  GENERAL BUSINESS 

G 1.  Alder Avenue Water Main Replacement 
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Beginning with new item G

1, formerly G 2, review, discuss, and approve a

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  62
construction contract for the water main replacement
on Alder Avenue and to authorize staff to execute
change orders if required up to 10 percent
additions.  

MS. NELSON:  For your consideration
tonight is the construction contract with Gerhardt &
Berry Construction.  The proposed work is to
eliminate approximately 1,300 linear feet of steel
line; 800 feet of that is within a private parcel
that does not currently have an easement, and the
remaining 500 feet is within the Northwood Boulevard
right-of-way.

The project consists of replacing
approximately 1,000 -- actually, installing new,
1,000 linear feet of PVC water main within the Alder
Avenue right-of-way.  This serves a couple of
benefits to the water system.  It provides
redundancy and loops the system where it connects to
dead ends, basically, so it will provide the
capacity needed to serve the fire flows as well as
domestic needs in that area.

At this time, I will turn it over to the
Board for any questions.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I have question about the
overall long-term project.  We talked about the data

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  63
sheet, did you put that information together?

MS. NELSON:  I ran out of time.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  The question I had asked

is since this is a multi-year project, we used to
get the data sheets, would say what the original
engineering estimate was, what we have spent to
date, where we are.  And this just only the talks
about the carryover as opposed to the bigger scope.  

And when this is done as a project
closure, you'll need to have that information
anyway, so I was just asking for that information.

MS. NELSON:  This is a multi-year project.
It is part of the water main replacement project.
We did separate it into design funds last
fiscal year and moving forward to construction.  And
I do apologize for not getting that completed.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I just was asking because
I was thinking you had it and forgot to share it.
That's really the only question I had.  I just
wanted to kind of know where we were in the overall
project plan that's this multi-year project.

No other questions?  Do I hear a motion
from the board?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move to approve
the recommendation as it appears in now item G 1 of

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  64
the Board agenda.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do I hear a second?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Thank you.  Motion passes 3/0.  Moving on

to G 2, formerly G 3.  
G 2.  Skate Park Enhancement Project  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Discuss and approve the
agreement for the 30 percent schematic design
contract for the skate park enhancement.

MS. NELSON:  Tonight I'm bringing forward
the 30 percent schematic design with Spohn Ranch.
The Public Works staff advertised for statements of
qualifications in January.  We had intended to open
those in early February, but we extended the time
frame because there was very little interest in the
project.  We did finally receive two design-build
firms that submitted packages, and Spohn Ranch was
the responsive package.  

Their work will include two designs; one
design for a 2,000-square foot project and another
design for a 4,000-square foot project.  The designs

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 18 of 127



  65
and cost estimates will be brought back to the Board
at the second meeting in June to advance the
project.  

On another important note, the extension
of time request for the grant has been approved by
Washoe County, and it's extended through December
31st of 2025.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  You answered
my question.

Questions?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  In terms of doing this

design, we're doing a 30 percent design first, and
then going to have to go out for bid for a hundred
percent, or will this just flow through?  It seems
quite an elaborate process, two-step process for a
relatively straightforward project.

MS. NELSON:  In the meeting, we were
directed by the Board to basically utilize the grant
funds at $250,000 or see what could happen if we
used $500,000, which was approved by the Board at
the May 25th board meeting.  That is why you see
this sort of two-step project.  

Once the designs are brought forward to
the Board, that will be at that meeting that you can
opt to go with design one, design two, or whatever

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  66
option you may come up with as a board.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Is there actually
sufficient space there for an extra 2,000-feet
extension given it's a fairly irregularly shaped
parcel?

MS. NELSON:  It is an irregularly shaped
parcel, but the area is larger than you visually see
due to, I think, overgrowth.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I don't have any further
questions.  You answered mine proactively.  Thank
you.

I'd like to take a motion.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move that we

approve the recommendations as they appear in item G
2 of the Board notice.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  A motion's been made and

seconded.  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Motion passes three to zero.
Moving on to new G 3, formerly G 4.  

G 3.  Full-Time Construction Inspection and 
Materials Testing 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  67
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Review, discuss, and

approve an agreement for professional services for a
full-time construction inspection and materials
testing.  

MS. NELSON:  We are bringing forward the
contract with Construction Materials Engineers
for 24-hour, full-time inspection and materials
testing services to be completed during the 2024
construction season of the export pipeline project.

If there are any questions I can answer, I
am here.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Is this just for the
coming construction season?

MS. NELSON:  Correct.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Is there a reason this

is not just covering the rest, the following two
construction seasons as well?

MS. NELSON:  Staff has taken the position
that we, you know, we used one company last season,
we went out for RFPs again this season, and we would
like to keep our options open based on the overall
performance during the construction season.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  How did the
pricing compare?

MS. NELSON:  The pricing is more than it

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  68
was last season, but last season we did not work
July and August.  This year, we are working through
July and August.  Comparatively, it's about, based
on schedule, it comes in fairly equally.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  So the cost
per hour is fairly similar?

MS. NELSON:  Correct.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other questions?

Would anyone care to make a motion?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move that we

approve the recommendations as they appear in item G
3 of the Board notice.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Motion carries.  Thank you.  Moving on to

new G 4, formerly G 5.
G 5.  Bargaining Unit Negotiations, Kamer Zuker 

Abbott Engagement  
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Review, discuss, and

approve a letter of engagement for labor and
employment legal services.  

MR. MAGEE:  The next item on tonight's

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 19 of 127



  69
agenda is consideration of a letter of engagement
for labor and employment legal services with Kamer
Zuker Abbott for bargaining unit negotiation
purposes.  As a matter of best practice, it is
recommended that the District use a professional
labor negotiator with the requisite experience to
act on behalf of the District as the lead
negotiator.  

Staff first reached out to BBK to see if
their firm had any available attorneys with both the
experience and capacity to act on the District's
behalf.  BBK did not have anybody readily available;
however, they did make a referral for Mr. Scott
Abbott.  

Director of Human Resources Erin Feore
thoroughly vetted the law firm, and Mr. Abbott
specifically, both Ms. Feore and myself are
recommending his services.  

Initially Mr. Abbott's firm requested to
hold the engagement letter as confidential, and the
staff report as presented recommends --
recommendations reflected that request.
Subsequently, the firm has agreed to attaching the
engagement letter as supplemental material, which
the Board received earlier today.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  70
The recommended action tonight includes a

little bit of a change, and we're asking that the
Board direct staff to sign the engagement letter,
and then also to direct staff to have a
not-to-exceed, total contract amount of $50,000
without returning to the Board with updates on the
status of negotiations.  And if there were
protracted negotiations at that point, we would need
to ask for an additional amount, but that's what we
are recommending to the Board at this time.  

Ms. Feore and I are available to answer
any questions that the Board may have.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Are there questions from
either of you?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Couple questions.  Do we
realistically think that the 50,000 is going to
cover it?

MR. MAGEE:  I believe that based on
current information we have that will be enough to
cover it.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Second question is does
this come out of the general fund, or which District
operation covers the union staff primarily?

MR. MAGEE:  This is very likely to come
out of a number of funds.  We do believe that each

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  71
fund, it would be appropriate for them to pay their
fair share.  

At this time, we believe that we have
existing appropriations that we can cover this, no
matter where it is, however where this ultimately
gets paid for will be determined through the course
of negotiations.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I just wanted to make
sure it was not just being picked by the general
fund, but it's been allocated appropriately.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I have a question,
probably does go to Director Feore.  In years past,
roughly how many hours has this labor negotiation
process taken in the past?

MS. FEORE:  Last year, we were on track
for having approximately four meetings, each meeting
lasting anywhere from an hour to an hour and a half
or two hours if we had more folks that we were
speaking to.  And what we had done at the beginning
of that meeting was we kind of set up a playbook,
we're going to have four meetings, this is how we're
going to design this, everybody agreed to the terms,
and then we moved forward.

That was the only year that since I've
been with the District that I was involved in that.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  72
I do know that there was one year in the past where
I believe it did end up going to mediation, but that
was -- I hope I'm not speaking out of turn, but I
believe that was in 2020, 2019, or something like
that.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Last year, I do recall --
probably last year and maybe the prior negotiation
as well -- there was all of management, the director
of finance was there, the director of HR, will that
still be the case if we hire this attorney or will
the attorney be handling things themselves?

MS. FEORE:  The attorney would be -- as
General Manager Magee and I have discussed, the
attorney would be designated as the lead negotiator,
and then I would be present to help facilitate the
meetings.  Then there would be meetings with those
folks, the Director of Public Works, the Assistant
Director of Finance, General Manager Magee, and
myself would talk about our side of the table, and
then we would go back.  

But in the actual meetings, I believe the
design was that I would be there as the facilitator
to help move the meetings along.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  So it might be a more
effective use because staff time isn't being

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 20 of 127



  73
consumed?  

MS. FEORE:  Very much so.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  It might be an offset

there.
MS. FEORE:  Right.  And we'll know a

little bit more once we have had an opportunity to
engage with this firm and with Mr. Scott Abbott
himself.  We'll get an idea of what his
recommendations are, and then we can always make
sure that we keep the Board informed as to that as
well.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Who is directing his
efforts, is that the General Manager?

MR. MAGEE:  Ultimately, we'll accept
direction from the full Board, and that's what will
be presented to the lead negotiator.  But, yes, I'll
be coordinating his efforts along with Ms. Feore.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  I appreciate
that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just a quick one.
Director Feore, did I hear you say General Manager
Magee will not be directly involved in the
negotiations; is that correct?

MS. FEORE:  He won't be in the room as
we're working through the negotiations, but he

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  74
absolutely will be involved in that when it comes to
engaging with staff as to IVGID's requests and their
part of the negotiations, that is where General
Manager Magee, Assistant Director of Finance Adam
Cripps, and interim Director of Public Works Kate
Nelson would be in the room to discuss.  

So it's far more limited.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Excellent.  That was

what I was hoping for.  I was very uncomfortable
last year when we had the general manager directly
in the negotiations because then there's nowhere to
go to.  With the general manager out of the
negotiations, there's always a reason to take things
back and avoid making decisions on the fly.

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Would anyone care to make

a motion?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I move that we approve the

recommendations as they appear in item G 4, along
with the directive for staff to ensure that the
language in the engagement letter is updated to note
that the agreement will not exceed $50,000 without
further approval from the Board of Trustees.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  75
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Motion passes three to zero.  Moving on to

item H.  
H.  REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I don't believe we have
any.  
I.  LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We will go on to the long
range calendar on pages 590 through 594 of the board
packet.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I just highlight the last
item, consideration of a donation to Red, White, and
Tahoe Blue.  There is a request that has come in,
and I would just ask that staff evaluate the request
and bring back a recommendation at the next board
meeting on whether or not that's something that is
worth pursuing.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I hear you.  
Sergio, one of things that came -- was

brought to my attention by another trustee is that
they were concerned that this would violate Dillon's
Rule.  So can we have legal at least evaluate this

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  76
before we have staff spending time on it?

MR. RUDIN:  I have looked into that issue
already.  I'm not concerned about it from the aspect
of Dillon's Rule.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Would this potentially
come from the beach fund or would this be coming out
of the general fund?

MR. MAGEE:  I also received the request
for this consideration.  We have not evaluated it
any further at this point.  We have not looked into
where this would be coming from.  Unless we hear
different from the Board tonight, we intend to
evaluate that over the next couple of weeks and
bring a recommendation forward related to the
request that has been received on the April 24th
meeting.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Has a specific amount been
specifically requested?  

MR. MAGEE:  Yes, it has.  
Sergio, can I disclose that this time,

what the request was for?  
MR. RUDIN:  (Inaudible response.)
MR. MAGEE:  The request was for a donation

to Red, White, and Tahoe Blue in an amount of
$25,000.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 21 of 127



  77
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And that would be over and

above our staff dealing with 4th of July, which I
know is a cost to the District as well.

MR. MAGEE:  That is correct.  The request
was for the monetary donation to support the event.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  All right.  Thank
you.

I'm going to hand it over to the General
Manager because I know that he has been diligently
taking notes as we've gone on with this meeting, and
he and I reviewed the long range calendar today and
made some additional updates.  I'm going to hand the
floor over to him.

MR. MAGEE:  One of the things that I will
note that has changed on the April 24th meeting, it
currently shows the adoption of the final budget.
That's definitely incorrect, we will not be bringing
forward a request to adopt the final budget before
the Board has had an opportunity to even look at the
thing.  That's going to be pushed, and we'll have
some thoughts on when we'll actually bring those
items forward at a later date.  We have been working
with the Chair, I'm trying to pin down some specific
dates that are in full compliance in the NRS and the
direction we have received from the Nevada

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  78
Department of Taxation.  

As the Board noted earlier tonight, one of
the things that I've requested the Public Works
staff bring forward at each meeting is a Beach House
project update.  I've heard from all of the trustees
that there is significant interest among all
five trustees in knowing where that project's at.
And so we've requested that they continue to bring
these types of reports forward and seek direction
and any input from the full Board.

And with that, if there's anything else
that the Board would like to see moved around, moved
up, re-prioritized, I'm happy to receive any
direction at this time.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Can I ask that we move

the CIC recommendations to the capital policy back
to the May meeting?  I'm looking at my calendar over
the next few weeks, probably move that back to
the 8th of May.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'm confused on that
because I believe staff was bringing that forward;
correct?  Are you saying that you want to have that
reviewed by the CIC before coming back to the Board?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I wasn't aware this was

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  79
a recommendation coming from staff.  It's the first
I've heard of it.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I thought that staff had
shared a draft with all of us for input.  Am I
mistaken?

MR. MAGEE:  No, you are not mistaken.  We
did send out the policy to the full Board, and we
asked if there was any thoughts or comments back to
staff that we would be happy to consider individual
thoughts before putting together what will
ultimately be the final staff recommendation on
this.  

Staff has continued to work on putting
this together, and I think that moving it back to
the May 8th meeting would be appropriate given where
it's at at this time, though.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I think the confusion is
is it going to the CIC or is this coming from staff?
That's what I'm trying to get clarified with Trustee
Tulloch.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Forgive me.  Yeah, if
this went out, I've missed it somewhere.  Perhaps it
could be re-sent or advise me when it was re-sent,
General Manager Magee.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And were you -- Trustee

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  80
Tulloch, were you wanting the CIC to weigh in on
this?  It was a draft that finance took a leadership
role on.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, I can't say at
this moment because without reviewing the draft,
it's hard to say.  I've obviously missed the draft
somewhere, so if somebody can advise me what date it
was sent.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  It was some time ago.
I'll ask General Manager Magee if he could please
have staff resend it to -- do you need to resend it
to potentially all of the Trustees?  Did you get any
feedback from any Trustees?

MR. MAGEE:  I have received feedback from
a couple of Trustees, yes, already.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  All right.  Thank
you.

MR. MAGEE:  But we're happy to resend it
to Trustee Tulloch.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Then my question is on the
24th, the golf club recommendations, I want to be
clear, this is not recommendations from the golf
club.  This is trying to make more transparent the
agreement between golf clubs and the District.  

And that is something -- is legal counsel

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 22 of 127



  81
bringing that forward, is staff bringing that
forward?  Because I don't believe it's Trustee
Tonking any longer.  

MR. MAGEE:  The intention is that General
Manager of Golf Tim Sands would be bringing that
forward.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you
for the clarification.

I don't have any other comments or
feedback, and hopefully you captured the public
records requests and a couple of the other things
that we talked about tonight.  If you can just let
Heidi know, that would be terrific.  

Is there anything else on long range
calendar?

Seeing none, we'll move on to Board of
Trustees updates.
J.  BOARD OF TRUSTEE UPDATES 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch, do you
have an update from the CIC?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  No update at this stage.
Thank you.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  What about the
Audit Committee at this point?  We have interviews
coming up -- correct? -- on the 24th.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  82
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  That is correct.  We'll

delay the next Audit Committee meeting until the
appointments are made.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I believe that we'll have
to do a little bit of research to just clarify terms
because when Trustee Tulloch was on the Audit
Committee, then he became a trustee, so we'll just
have to identify whether both of these are for
two-year terms or if one is a one-year term and one
is a two-year term because there are two positions
on the audit committee that we would potentially be
appointing on the 24th.  

Have we had applicants coming in?
MR. MAGEE:  Yes, we've had a tremendous

amount of interest in this.  And we have received
some exceptionally well-qualified individuals for
the committee and the Board to consider.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do we need to set a
specific time for those interviews at the meeting on
the 24th?  Do we want to start it at the very
beginning?  I mean, I want to be respectful of
people's time.  

MR. MAGEE:  Sure.  We can certainly do
that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just with regard to

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  83
two-year and one-year positions.  My recollection is
when we started the audit committee, the only reason
probably for having one of the positions as a
one-year position was to make sure that we got a
regular rotation, we didn't all three been appointed
or are leaving at the same time.  My recollection
was that the Audit Committee charter was that, going
forward, all the positions would become two years,
provided there wasn't a case of all three terms
surviving at the same time.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  You are correct.  And we
will have to look and see when Mr. Brandle's term is
up because that might be the staggered year.  Good
call on that.  Thank you.

Trustee Noble, any updates on Snowflake
Lodge or the housing?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  No.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I don't have any updates

that I jotted down.  That's concludes the Trustee
updates.  I believe we move on to final public
comment.
K.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Seeing no public comments
in the room, do we have any online?

MS. KNAAK:  Hi.  This is Yolanda Knaak.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  84
It was a good meeting.  I wanted to get

more information, if you could put out to the public
more information on the request of the Red, White,
and Tahoe Blue financial donation.  I know -- I
thought that group had some financial issues in the
past, and so I wanted to get more information on
that.  

Thank you so much.
MS. DOBLER:  Hi.  This is Ellie Dobler,

995 Fairway.  
In my past 30 years in Incline, I

volunteered to be treasurer for various
organizations in town.  I have a strong math
background and am a graduate of UCLA, familiar with
both Quicken and Quick Books for reporting purposes.  

When I presented my first treasurer's
report to -- I believe it was the Mountain Niners
golf group, I asked for approval of the report.  I
was then corrected by the board chair stating that
the report can only be accepted but not approved
until someone reviewed it.

So when the Department of Taxation
accepted our unaudited financials that were
delivered the night before, it does not mean that
they are approved.  Understand the difference.  They

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 23 of 127



  85
were delivered, they were accepted not approved.
Had they been approved, they wouldn't be requesting
another meeting in August of this year.

Thank you very much.
MR. DOBLER:  This is Cliff Dobler, 995

Fairway.
I'd like to talk a little bit about this

capital projects as we get started into the new
budget.  Now, first of all, tonight you approved
that Alder water pipeline.  There was
a million-two-fifty budget, the project is only
going to cost $700,000.  The $550,000 should have
been put back into the reserves, but instead -- and
probably you didn't look at -- the staff is
suggesting that it be carried over into next year.
Now, that's no consistency with what has happened in
the past, and my biggest objection is how many times
do we have to tell staff that it goes into the
reserves and not to be carried over into
another year.  

Now, when I was in the committee meeting
last week, I stated that the carryover projects were
getting quite substantial.  I said it was somewhere
around 20 million.  Indeed, it was even more than
that with 23 million.  $23 million.  And when Ms.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  86
Nelson turns around and tells me, well, you know, if
we take out the big projects, it's only like $4- or
$5 million, that really doesn't matter.  What
matters is you got 95 to 100 projects that are being
carried forward, and my experience of seven years in
being with IVGID is they don't have the capacity to
do ten.  Five, maybe.

So I think we need to get this carryover
under control.  And you may want to adjust a policy
position on that because I've seen three instances
where they try to bring on an ice skating rink and
try to bring in $4 million for tennis courts, and
and this $550,000 they want to plug into next year.
And they want to plug it in for future water mains.
Well, we know from what we were told tonight that we
got 116 miles of water mains that are in C
condition, so I make you a bet we could have 50 to
75 million that we're going to have to be replacing
over the next four to five years.  Let's get serious
about this capital projects and carryovers.  

I guess the last thing I want to say is
photographs don't do anything.  Why don't these
engineers sit down and do a graphic plan and attach
that so we kind of know what we're talking about?
You got a picture of a fence with a tree over it,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  87
and you say we've got to spend $450,000 to repair
this fence.  You don't know how long it is, you
don't know anything about it.  The idea is if the
engineer sat down and actually designed a schematic
and put it in there, someone might actually know
what the hell they're --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MATT:  That was our last caller, Chair.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other public comments

in the room?
L.  ADJOURNMENT 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Seeing none, we will
adjourn tonight's meeting at 8:10 p.m.  Thank you
all.  Thank you staff.  

(Meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.)

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  88
STATE OF NEVADA ) 

)  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 

 
I, BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH, do hereby 

certify: 
That I was present on April 10, 2024, at 

the Board of Trustees public meeting, via Zoom, and 
took stenotype notes of the proceedings entitled 
herein, and thereafter transcribed the same into 
typewriting as herein appears. 

That the foregoing transcript is a full, 
true, and correct transcription of my stenotype 
notes of said proceedings consisting of 88 pages, 
inclusive. 

DATED:  At Reno, Nevada, this day of 17th 
day of April, 2024. 
 

    /s/ Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
 

 
___________________________ 
BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 24 of 127



Page 25 of 127



Page 26 of 127



Page 27 of 127



Page 28 of 127



Page 29 of 127



Page 30 of 127



Page 31 of 127



Page 32 of 127



Page 33 of 127



Page 34 of 127



Page 35 of 127



Page 36 of 127



INVOICE
BAVS SM-LLC

brandiavsmith@gmail.com
United States

BILL TO
Incline Village General Improvement
District
Susan Herron / Heidi White

775-832-1218
AP@ivgid.org

Invoice Number: IVGID 35

Invoice Date: April 17, 2024

Payment Due: May 10, 2024

Amount Due (USD): $878.00

Items Quantity Price Amount

Base fee
April 10, 2024 BOT meeting

1 $350.00 $350.00

Per page fee
April 10, 2024 BOT meeting

88 $6.00 $528.00

Subtotal: $878.00

Total: $878.00

Amount Due (USD): $878.00

Page 37 of 127



Item F.1.

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Susan A. Herron
Director of Administrative Services

THROUGH: Bobby Magee
District General Manager

SUBJECT: Review, Discuss and Approve Revisions to Board 
Practice 6.2.0 - Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach Pricing for 
Products and Service

DATE: May 20, 2024

I. RECOMMENDATION

Review, discuss, and approve the changes as provided to Practice 
6.2.0.

II. BACKGROUND

An internal report was provided to the Board of Trustees by the 
District General Manager on or about April 15, 2024. Staff 
presented a draft of the practice at the May 8, 2024 Board of 
Trustees meeting and received the following additional information:

1. The practice needs to be transparent
2. The practice needs to be consistent across the venues.
3. On rates, include how the rates are set using the pricing 

pyramid.

Page 38 of 127



Review, Discuss and Approve Revisions to Board -2- May 20, 2024
Practice 6.2.0; Budgeting and Fiscal Management
Community Services and Beach Pricing for Products and Services

4. Ensure that the food and beverage discount is consistent 
at all venues.

5. Address how the pyramid and the budget are related.

Following the May 9, 2024 meeting, the practice was revisited and 
determined that it should be rewritten in large part so that everyone 
reading it could understand it and put items into a table for easier 
understanding. Additionally, the paragraphs that were requested 
by Staff to be changed have been incorporated with the practice 
and requirements for information was also added.

A redline version is not provided as this practice was largely 
rewritten. The current version of the practice is included as a 
reference as is a presentation from 2021 which gives an overview 
of the whys of the practice. The program proposal form is also 
included and then the newly written practice. It should also be 
noted that the practice would not go into effect until July 1, 2024 as 
it is too late for this updated direction to be incorporated into the 
current proposed budget.

III. ATTACHMENTS

Exhibit A – Practice 6.2.0 – current version
Exhibit B – Presentation from 2021
Exhibit C – Program Proposal Form (Recreation)
Exhibit D – Practice 6.2.0 – as rewritten

Page 39 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0 

Revised August 31, 2022 -1- 

 

 

RELEVANT POLICIES: 6.1.0 Adoption of Financial Policies 
 
PRACTICE. It is the practice of the District to establish the manner in which fees 
and charges for services are set and the extent to which they cover the cost of 
services provided (per Policy 6.1.2.2) 

 
1.0 Scope 

 

This Practice shall be used to ensure consistent application of pricing policy across 
the District’s Community Services and Beach venues in order to meet venue- 
specific revenue and cost-recovery targets established through the annual budget 
process. 

 
The objective of the District’s pricing policy is to: 

 
• Ensure that revenues, including Charges for Services and applicable 

Recreation or Beach Facility Fees are sufficient to cover the full cost of 
providing services to IVGID Picture Pass holders, guests of IVGID Picture 
Pass holders and others. 

• Utilize sound financial planning principles to avoid volatility in charges and 
fees from year-to-year. 

• Promote consistent framework for pricing across all venues and programs, 
while providing for venue-specific pricing considerations. 

• Establish conditions for management to modify pricing during the fiscal year 
based on market conditions, and for the determination of pricing new 
programs. 

 
2.0 Definitions – for purposes of this practice, the following definitions shall be 

applied: 
 

• Full-Cost is intended to represent the per-unit cost of providing access 
to, or use of, District venues, services and programs, and shall include 
operating costs (including overhead), capital depreciation and debt, 
as reflected in the annual budget. 

 
• Operating Costs are defined to include direct personnel costs, non- 

personnel costs and overhead costs. For purposes of this definition, 
overhead applied to programs and services shall include appropriate 
allocation of Central Services Overhead as well as Department- 
specific administrative overhead. 

EXHIBIT A 

Page 40 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0 

Revised August 31, 2022 -2- 

 

 

 

• Direct Costs are defined as the incremental cost of providing for 
access or services for a specific event or purpose. Examples would 
include incremental cost (staffing, supplies, etc.) of providing access 
to a venue during normal business hours versus outside of normal 
operations. 

 
• Capital Costs for programs and services provided through the 

District’s Community Services and Beach Enterprise Funds shall be 
defined as the annual depreciation budgeted and allocated to each 
fund and cost center. 

 
• Debt Costs for purposes of establishing full-cost recovery shall include 

principal and interest on outstanding debt allocated to each fund as 
included in the annual budget. 

 
3.0 Community Services Pricing 

 

The District operates recreational facilities, venues, services and programs. 
To support the Community Services facilities, venues, services, and 
programs, the District establishes, through the annual budget process, a 
Recreation Facility Fee assessed on parcels and/or dwelling units within the 
District. 

 
Pricing for IVGID Picture Pass holders and others is defined as follows: 

 
3.1 Others (Non IVGID Picture Pass holders): 

 
3.1.1 Rates charged for use of venues, services, and programs shall 

be set to cover no less than 100% of the Full-Cost of the venue 
rental, venue access, service provided and programs made 
available. 

 
3.1.2 Pricing for services and merchandise sold at District profit 

centers (ex. Golf Shop, Food and Beverage, Ski Rentals) shall 
incorporate mark-up over costs based on market-driven 
targeted profit margins established as part of the budget 
process. 

 
3.1.3 As it applies to daily rates charged for venue rental, venue 

access, programs, and services, management is authorized to 

Page 41 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0 

Revised August 31, 2022 -3- 

 

 

utilize dynamic pricing, based on changing market conditions, 
provided that doing so contributes positively to the net operating 
income of the venue. (The Board may establish a “floor” such 
as no lower than the IVGID Picture Pass-holder rate). 

 
3.2 Guests: 

 
3.2.1 Guest rates may be set at a discount, provided that the guest 

rates shall, at a minimum, cover the Operating Costs of access 
to venues, or program. 

 
3.2.2 Where Guest Rates are established, the Guest must be 

accompanied by an IVGID Picture-Pass holder. 
 

3.3 IVGID Picture Pass holders: 
 

3.3.1 Rates charged to IVGID Picture-Pass Holders shall be 
discounted from the Full-Cost of services, in recognition of the 
Recreation Facility Fee assessed. 

 
Rates established for IVGID Picture-Pass holders shall 
generally be set at no greater than the rate required to cover 
the Operating Costs of programs and services. In some cases, 
rates charged may exceed Operating Costs (to the extent that 
the Facility Fee approved through the budget process is 
insufficient to cover the cost of annual Capital Costs and Debt 
Costs). 

3.4 Discounts 
 

3.4.1 Group Rates – Access to and/or rental of venues for qualifying 
groups can be provided at a discount, provided that the 
discounted pricing is set so as to cover the Direct Costs of 
venue access. Discounts may vary based on venue availability 
(example: peak versus off-peak, mid-week versus weekend). 

 

3.4.2 Community Focused Non-Profits – Access to and/or rental of 
District facilities and venues, and participation in programs 
and/or services by community-focused non-profits, as defined 
(Policy & Procedure 141, Resolution 1895) may be provided at 
a discount at no less than the Direct Costs of providing venue 

Page 42 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0 

Revised August 31, 2022 -4- 

 

 

access/ rental, program or service. 
 

3.4.3 The annual budget could provide a funding allocation from the 
District’s General Fund to be used to offset discounts 
anticipated to be provided to community focused non-profit 
organizations. This funding is to be allocated to venues, 
programs or services based on utilization by community 
focused non-profits in order mitigate the impact on overall 
financial performance of the venue, program or service. 

 
3.4.4 A quarterly report will be provided to the Board of Trustees 

detailing the financial impact of the discount extended to the 
various groups and/or non-profits. 

 
3.5 Venue-Specific Pricing 

 

While applying the Community Services pricing guidelines as set forth in this 
practice, each venue, as a unique business enterprise, may incorporate 
modifications to its pricing for access/rentals, programs, and services, 
provided the venue is able to achieve overall financial results consistent with 
the net income targets established through the annual budget process. Such 
modifications may include, but are not limited to: 

 
3.5.1 Golf Course Fees 

 
3.5.1.1 Fees charged to IVGID Picture-pass holders their 

guests and others may vary based on season, day of 
the week, time-of-day, and partial (9-hole) use of the 
golf courses. 

3.5.1.2 Play-Passes offered to IVGID Picture Pass holders 
may be priced at a discount from daily fees. 

3.5.1.3 Management shall track and report average revenue- 
per-round, in relation to the defined cost-recovery 
targets. 

 
3.5.2 Chateau & Aspen Grove Rentals / Special Events 

 
3.5.2.1 Fees set for Facility rentals and Special Events will be 

based on cost-recovery targets for the Facilities 

Page 43 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0 

Revised August 31, 2022 -5- 

 

 

Enterprise Fund established through the budget 
process. 

3.5.2.2 Rental fees for use of facilities by non-IVGID Picture 
Pass holders will take into account the historical 
utilization rates and incorporate a mark-up required to 
achieve overall cost-recovery targets. 

3.5.2.3 Rentals provided to IVGID Picture-Pass holders will 
incorporate discounts, as appropriate. 

3.5.2.4 Fees charged for catered (Food and Beverage 
service) events will be set to cover the Full-Cost of 
staff, operations and food and beverage, plus mark- 
up based on market conditions. 

3.5.2.5 Consideration shall be given to maintain Facility rental 
and Special Events services competitive within the 
regional marketplace. 

 
3.5.3 Ski 

 
3.5.3.1 Rates charged to non-IVGID Picture Pass holders for 

daily tickets and season passes will be set so as to 
remain competitive within the market. 

3.5.3.2 Rates charged to non-IVGID Picture Pass holders for 
daily tickets shall be no less than the Full-Cost of 
access to the ski venue. 

3.5.3.3 Rates charged to IVGID Picture Pass holders for daily 
tickets and season passes shall be set at a discount 
– to the extent that revenues from tickets and passes 
are sufficient to meet overall net revenue targets for 
the season. 

3.5.3.4 Rates charged may vary based on peak periods, day 
of the week, and full-day versus half-day passes. 

3.5.3.5 The Ski Rental Shop and Ski Lessons operate as 
Profit-Centers, with rates being largely market-driven, 
to include appropriate profit margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly, with no discounts. 

 
3.5.4 Parks, Recreation, and Tennis Center 

 
3.5.4.1 The District’s Parks, Recreation Center, Tennis 

Center and recreation programming are community 
amenities open to residents, guests and visitors. 

Page 44 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0 

Revised August 31, 2022 -6- 

 

 

Program pricing is based on industry-standard “Cost- 
Recovery Pyramid” which provides for increasing 
levels of cost-recovery based on whether programs 
provide community benefit versus individual benefit. 
(See Appendix A) 

3.5.4.2 Programs and memberships are provided to IVGID 
Picture-Pass holders at a discount. 

3.5.4.3 Recreation Center and Tennis Center membership 
pricing is adjusted based on age, season, time-of-day 
and day of the week (peak and non-peak hours). 

3.5.4.4 Management shall review memberships and program 
fees annually, and may adjust rates based on industry 
and regional rates. 

 
4.0 Beach Pricing 

 

District-owned beaches are restricted to deeded parcel owners within the 
District and their guests. To support the Beaches, services, and programs, 
the District establishes, through the annual budget process, a Beach Facility 
Fee assessed on eligible parcels and/or dwelling units within the District. 

 
4.1.1 Beach access is restricted for use by IVGID Picture Pass 

holders with beach access and their guests. 
4.1.2 Funding to support the District beaches comes directly from the 

annual Beach Facility Fee assessed on parcels and/or dwelling 
units within the District and, as such, beach access to IVGID 
Picture-pass holders with beach access is made available at no 
additional charge. 

4.1.3 The daily Guest beach access fee is to be set annually in 
relation to Operating Costs (per beach visit) as established 
through the annual budget process. 

4.1.4 The daily Beach access fee may vary based on time of year, 
and peak periods. Management shall report on the average 
daily rates for the season to ensure that pricing policy and 
beach revenue targets are met. 

 
5.0 Administration of Community Services and Beach Pricing Policy 

 

5.1 The Board of Trustees will establish overall financial performance 
targets for each venue through the annual budget process. 

5.2 The Board of Trustees will approve, through the budget process or 

Page 45 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0 

Revised August 31, 2022 -7- 

 

 

when appropriate during the fiscal year Key Rates to include: 
 

5.2.1 Golf Rates for IVGID Picture Pass Holders, Play Passes, 
Guests and others. 

 
5.2.2 IVGID Picture-Pass holder and others, Season Pass Rates and 

Picture-Pass holder Daily Pass Rates for Diamond Peak. 
 

5.2.3 IVGID Picture-Pass holder Recreation Center and Tennis 
Membership Rates 

 
5.2.4 IVGID Picture-Pass holder rental rates for District Facilities / 

Special Events. 
 

5.3 The General Manager is authorized to approve daily and group rates 
for all other programs, based on the recommendations of venue 
managers, consistent with the parameters of the District’s Pricing 
Policy. 

 
5.4 The District’s Director of Golf/Community Services is authorized to 

approve pricing for Food and Beverage and retail merchandise. 
 

5.5 Fee Schedules shall be placed on the District’s website, and shall be 
updated, as needed, to reflect current pricing, to the extent practical. 

Page 46 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0 

Revised August 31, 2022 -8- 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Appendix A 
Cost-Recovery Pyramid 

Recreation and Community Programs 
 
 

Page 47 of 127



EXHIBIT B

Page 48 of 127



INCLINE 
VILLAGE. ___ 

GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ONE DISTRICT - ONE TEAM 

Objectives of Pricing Policy 
Considerations in Pricing 

Setting and Administering Pricing 

SAMPLE Cost-Recovery Analysis 

1 

Page 49 of 127



Overview of Pricing Policy Presentation 

• Board Policy 6.1 (current) 

• Developing a Formal District Pricing Policy 

• Objectives of Pricing Policy 

• Considerations in Pricing 

• Setting and Administering Pricing 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Cost-of-Service Analysis - Foundation for Applying Pricing Policy 

2 

....... 
0 Page 50 of 127



--

Board Policies & Practices 
Budget and Fiscal Management 
Financial Practices - Policy 6.1.0 

• 2.0 Revenues 

• 2. 1 Revenue Diversification 

• 2.2 Fees and Charges. The District shall adopt process that identifies the manner in which 
fees and charges for services are set and the extent to which they cover the cost of the 
service provided. 

3 

Page 51 of 127



....... 
N) 

Objectives of District Pricing Policy 
--------------

GLOBAL OBJECTIVES 
District Pricing Structure should ensure that revenues are sufficient to cover full cost of providing services to its residents, guests and visitors. 

Pricing should be based on sound financial planning principles to avoid volatility from year-to-year 

To the extent possible, pricing principles should be applied consistently across all venues and programs 

Picture-Pass Holders 
Charges for Service: 

Facility 
Fees: 

Provide maximum discount in relation to annual 
Facility Fees assessed on parcels within the District. 

Where Charges for Services are paid by Picture 
Pass Holders: 
• Rates should be set to cover 100% of 

Operating Costs 

Community Services - covers cost of Capital Outlay 
and Debt Service Payments 

Beach - covers cost of Capital Outlay, Debt Service 
AND Operating Costs (No cost for PPH Beach access) 

Resident Pricing (Charges and Facility Fees) should 
be established so as to ensure that revenue from 
residents does not subsidize Non-Resident use of 
facilities or programs. 

Guest rates should be established to recover direct 
cost of services (less capital and debt) 

Guest rates may provide for discounts over Non
Resident Rates (Discounted to Resident Rate): 
• With Punch Cards 
• When accompanied by Picture-Pass Holders 

Non-Resident 

Rates for Non-resident use of facilities and 
programs should be set to cover (no less 
than) 100% of fu ll cost of services. 

Pricing for Profit Centers should include 
specified minimum margin over cost. 

Management should retain flexibility to 
utilize DYNAMIC pricing in response to 
market conditions (within parameters) 

4 

Page 52 of 127



Consideration in District Pricing Policy 
• Need for consistent Cost-of-Service Analysis for District venues and programs 

• Operating Costs (Programs and Services) 

• Capital Outlay / Depreciation / Replacement Costs 

• Non-capital costs associated with Upkeep of District FACILITIES 

• Overhead cost burdens allocated to District Community Services and Beach venues 

• Role of Facility Fees in Resident Pricing (Discounted Charges for Services) 
• Consider STANDARD Picture-Pass Holder Discount (as% of Non-Resident Rate) 

• Consider VARIABLE Picture-Pass Holder Discount, by venue, based on annual on level of Facility Fee 

• How SURPLUS funds from profit-generating activities are applied to support other venues 
• Diamond Peak 

• Food & Beverage / Retail 

• Dynamic Pricing for Non-Resident Rates 

• Recreation and Community Programming 
• Cost-Recovery Pyramid -> Differing levels of Cost Recovery 

• Role of Facil ity Fees in covering "subsidies" 

• Role of General Fund in covering "subsidies" 
5 

__.. 
w Page 53 of 127



Framework for Pricing Policy - GOLF 

Picture-Pass Holder GUEST NON-RESIDENT 

Charges for Services 100% of Variable Operating Costs 100% of Variable Operating Costs 100% of Variable Operating Costs 

100% of Fixed Operating Costs 100% of Fixed Operating Costs 100% of Fixed Operating Costs 

100% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 100% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 100% of Total Operarting Costs 

0% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) % of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 100% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

0% of Debt Service Costs % of Debt Service Costs 100% of Debt Service Costs 

-- - ---- -
% ofTotal Costs (Oper., Capita l, Debt) % ofTotal Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) 100% of Total Costs/ Round 

- - 1- -

Facility Fee 
2A ; : I*. J : : - J!I -· I Operating Costs 0.0% of Operating Costs - I • .Ii, -- -

-
of Capital Costs (Depreciation) -~ ' ·H .. .. . 

Capital Improvements 100% - - !1!!.R, ..._. .. ·"" ........ " .. ..I .a;.R ....ii ... , 'II ...... .. .. J 

- - --m::--r.4 

' ~.I!' .. ' 
;:w==..:. h 

Debt 100% of Debt Service Costs 
.. ... 1111111"' lii- 1' .. l'!l .. ff"I - ' a ... .... ..;. ...... Iii ---

6 

__., 
J::i,.. Page 54 of 127



Framework for Pricing Policy - BEACH 

Picture-Pass Holder GUEST NON-RESIDENT 

Charges for Services 0% of Variable Operating Costs X% of Variable Operating Costs 

0% of Fixed Operating Costs X% of Fixed Operating Costs 

0% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round X% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 

0% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) % of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

0% of Debt Service Costs % of Debt Service Costs 

% of Tota l Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) % of Total Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) 

Facility Fee .......,., ....... 
Operating Costs 100% of Operating Costs 

-• .. ~ ! ·t . -,~ l_ 'f~ '"1'• 
m . 

-
Capital Improvements 100% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) ~ ;_· l l . ..,. J !, .. 

/:\ 
-"----'·--

--- . ~--\ ··~" 
Debt 100% of Debt Service Costs r. 

ilii ~ .,.,... Iii; .,,._ 
"'9111'"' 

7 

-c.n Page 55 of 127



Framework for Pricing Policy - SKI 

Picture-Pass Holder GUEST NON-RESIDENT 

- -- - t• ~-- -

Charges for Services 100% of Variable Operating Costs 100% of Variable Operating Costs 

100% of Fixed Operating Costs 100% of Fixed Operating Costs 

100% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 100% of Total Operarting Costs 

0% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 100% of Capital Costs (Depreciat ion) 

0% of Debt Servi ce Costs 100% of Debt Service Costs -
$$$ Dynamic Pricing- Market 

% of Total Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) ,, Market-driven Pricing (2x-3x Cost) 

I 
I 

Facility Fee ' 
Operating Costs 0% of Operating Costs C 

j 
11. 

,.,,ti •' . :r . 

~;·. -- -

' I J :-:: . -~ -Capital Improvements 0% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) ~--1· I 

Debt 0% of Debt Service Costs ?I' 1 I 
,, ~ ... .. , 

' 

8 

__., 
O"> Page 56 of 127



--.J 

Framework for Pricing Policy - RECREATION 

Cost 
Recovery 
Pyramid 

COMMUNITY/ Individual 
Benefit 

COMMUNITY 
Benefit 

0 2001 G~. LLC 

• 

Cost-Recovery Targets 

> 100% 

100% 

67% 

33% 

0% 

9 

Page 57 of 127



....... 
00 

Setting and Administering Pricing 

• District Pricing Policy should set clear roles/ expectations 

• Board: 

• Set Pricing Policy and Parameters 

• Approval of KEY Rates (to be defined) 
• Resident Rates 

• Staff: 

• Propose KEY Rates for Board-approval - through Budget Process 

o Set and COMMUNICATE Rates to Board and Public 

• Manage DYNAMIC Pricing - (market-driven rates); as defined in Board Policy 

10 

Page 58 of 127



.....1, 

(0 

District-Wide Pricing Policy - Outline 

• Objective 

• District-wide Pricing Guidelines 

• Venue Pricing Guidelines 

o Golf 

• Facilities 

• Ski 

• Recreation / Tennis 

• Beaches 

• Dynamic Pricing 

• Discounts 

• Marketing / Promotions 

• Non-Profits 

• Employees 

• Administration of Pricing Policy - Roles 

11 

Page 59 of 127



N) 

0 

Background Information 

COST-OF-SERVICE ANAL VSIS 

12 

Page 60 of 127



Framework for Pricing Policy - CHAMP GOLF 

Charges for Services 

Facility Fee 

Operati ng Costs 

Capita l Improvements 

Debt 

Cost Per Round 

N -

Opera rting Costs 

Operating Costs+ OVHD 

Oper. Costs, OVHD, Capita l 

Oper. Costs, OVHD, Capital, Debt 

$ 78.09 

$ 94.90 

$ 125.60 

$ 133.25 

Picture-Pass Holder 

100% of Variabl e Operating Costs 

100% of Fixed Operating Costs 

100% of Total Operarti ng Costs/ Round 

0% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

0% of Debt Service Costs 

% ofTotal Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) 

0.0% of Operating Costs 

100% of Capital Costs {Depreciation) 

~ 
100% of Debt Service Costs _,.__ 

Residents 

Mon-Thurs ___ _Avg. 
7am- 2pm $ 90.00 

2pm- 4pm $ 65.00 

After 4pm $ 45.00 

Afte r 5:30pm (9 holes $ 30.00 

$ I 64.22 

Fri-Sun & Holiday 

7am - 2pm $ 95.00 

2pm - 4pm $ 75.00 

After 4pm $ 55.00 

Afte r 5:30pm (9 holes $ 37.00 

Play Pass LJ 62.19 

GUEST NON-RESIDENT 

100% of Variable Operating Costs 100% of Variable Operating Costs 

100% of Fixed Operating Costs 100% of Fixed Operating Costs 

100% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 100% of Total Operarting Costs 

% of Capita l Costs (Depreciation) 100% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

% of Debt Service Costs 100% of Debt Service Costs 

. -- . 
% of Total Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) 100% of Total Costs/ Round ,._, .. 1, 

i 1,· I L( ) .~ .. ~· ... ' 
. _t .l •• ·" ~ ,-. -- ;,,;_ ... . 

-~~ 
~ f ~:a --

__.. • 
-- _.__ . .. . .. " .. .. 

.. 
~ .1.. ·'i • . .,., 

, • T 

.i/1. J _,_ I ~ . .,- '14!:. - - .. 11·1_ 

Guests Non-Residents 

Mon-Thurs Mon-Thurs 

7am - 2pm $ 127.00 7am - 2pm $ 199.00 

2pm - 4pm $ 99.00 2pm - 4pm $ 140.00 

After 4pm $ 79.00 After4pm $ 95.00 

After 5:30pm (9 holes $ 50.00 After 5:30pm (9 holes $ 60.00 

$ 118.19 $ I 148.18 
Fri-Sun & Holiday Fri-Sun & Holiday 

7am - 2pm $ 132.00 7am - 2pm $ 220.00 

2pm - 4pm $ 110.00 2pm - 4pm $ 150.00 

After 4pm $ 88.00 After 4pm $ 105.00 

After 5:30pm (9 holes $ 57.00 After 5:30pm (9 holes $ 75.00 

13 

Page 61 of 127



Framework for Pricing Policy - MOUNTAIN GOLF 

Charges for Services 

Facility Fee 

Operating Costs 

Capital Improvements 

Debt 

Rounds of Golf 18,920 

Cost Pe r Round 

N) 
N) 

Operarting Costs 

Operating Costs + OVHD 

Oper. Costs, OVHD, Capitol 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Oper. Costs, OVHD, Capital, Debt $ 

41.22 

50.49 

62.13 

62.23 

Picture-Pass Holder 

100% of Variable Operating Costs 

100% of Fixed Operating Costs 

100% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 

0% of Capital Costs (Depreciati on ) 

0% of Debt Service Costs 

% of Total Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) 

0.0% of Operating Costs 

100% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

100% of Debt Service Costs 

Residents 

7am- 12pm 

12pm · 4pm 

Afte r 4pm 

7am · 12pm 

12pm · 4pm 
Afte r 4pm 

Play_ Pass 

Mon~Thurs 

$ 44.00 

$ 44.00 

$ 26.00 

Fri-Sun & Holiday 

$ 48.00 

$ 48.00 

$ 29.00 

_____ Avg. 

29.80 

i_] 19.27 

-

GUEST 

100% of Variable Operating Costs 

100% of Fixed Operating Costs 

100% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 

% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

% of Debt Service Costs 

% of Total Costs (Oper., Capital , Debt) 

· r 1'~ ~ 

... I; : 

-,r.:z, :. :t 1-~ l !~. -
Ii Ill • ..• ..ii . 

Guests 

Mon-Thurs 

7am - 12pm $ 59.00 

12pm · 4pm $ 52.00 

After 4pm $ 29.00 

$ I 47.07 

Fri-Sun & Holiday 

7am - 12pm $ 64.00 

12pm - 4pm $ 58.00 

After 4pm $ 32.00 

NON-RESIDENT 

100% of Variab le Operating Costs 

100% of Fixed Operating Costs 

100% of Total Operarting Costs 

100% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

100% of Debt Service Costs 

-
100% of Total Costs/ Round 

. 3 ~· l r=J .. ·~::::J 
v· ·r 

L 

~ ~~·-, .. t 

Non-Residents 

7am -12pm 

12pm · 4pm 

After4pm 

7am-12pm 

12pm · 4pm 

After 4pm 

Mon-Thurs 

$ 70.00 

$ 65.00 

$ 45.00 

Fri-Sun & Holiday 

$ 75.00 

$ 70.00 

$ 50.00 

- J -

I' l._. 

54.43 

14 

Page 62 of 127



"' w 

Framework for Pricing Policy - BEACH 
Picture-Pass Holder GUEST NON-RESIDENT 

Charges for Services 0% of Variable Operating Costs X% of Variable Operating Costs 

0% of Fixed Operating Costs X% of Fixed Operating Costs 

0% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round X% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 

' 
0% of Capita l Costs (Depreciation) % of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

0% of Debt Service Costs % of Debt Service Costs 

% of Total Costs (Oper. , Capital, Debt) % of Total Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) 

Facility Fee 

100% of Operating Costs ' "" - < 'ti ' \ ~ 
Operating Costs . - _., 

r , I 
,_ 

--
Capita l Improvements 100% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) i, ., p ... .. .a. •-Ai ·I 

~ - - ... -
-

Debt 100% of Debt Service Costs . .ff i: ....-;-;-··,;......--..,......,- . 

Cost Per Beach Visit- Beach Visits = ______ 1_99_,_so_2 ___________________ ~i-----
Operating Costs $ (7.98) 

BEACH PRICING 

DAILY ADMISSIO N 

Operating with Ovhd $ (10.81) 
Operating, OVHD & Co pita/ $ ( 12.03} 
Operating, OVHDCapital&Debt ______ ,,__ _ ____ --~----- $ JU.();) 

Picture Pass Holder 

F RCC A DMISSION 

Punch Card Holder 

$ 12 .0 0 
PUNCI I C ARD D EDUCT -12,_QQ 
N ET A DMIS S IO N F EE • $ 0 .00 

-Dally Guest • Peak 

$ 12 .00 $15.00 

• M USTBEA C COMPANIED 
B l~P/Cn.JR£PASSH OL.Do-"R 

15 

Page 63 of 127



Framework for Pricing Policy - SKI 

Picture-Pass Holder 

Charges for Services 100% of Variab le Operating Costs 

100% of Fi xed Operating Costs 

100% of Total Operarting Costs/ Round 
. 

0% of Capital Costs (Depreciation) 

0% of Debt Service Costs 

% of Total Costs (Oper., Capital, Debt) 

Facility Fee .. 
Operating Costs 0% of Operating Costs 

Capita l Improvements 0% of Capita l Costs (Depreciation) 

Debt 0% of Debt Service Costs 

Resident Rates 

Val ue Weeke nd Pe ak 

Skier Visist 110,000 Ad ult $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 35.00 
Cost Per Skier Visit Youth s 20.00 s 20.00 s 30.00 

Operarting Cost s $ 33.03 Seni o r $ 20.00 $ 20.00 $ 30.00 
Operating Cost s + OVHD $ 43. 89 Child s 15.00 $ 15.00 $ 25.00 
Oper. Costs, OVHD, Capita l $ 56.33 Begi nne r $ 18.00 $ 18.00 $ 28.00 
Oper. Costs, OVHD, Capita l, Debt $ 56.51 Under 6/0ver 80 Free Free Free 

N 
J::i,. 

GUEST 

...... , -· 
100% 

" 100% 
- - - -

100% 

-
100% 

' 
100% 

$$$ 

"'l 
,-. 

~ 

-·~ 
Non-Resident Rates 

Adult $ 
Youth $ 
Senior $ 
Ch ild $ 
Beginner $ 
Under 6/ Over 80 

NON-RESIDENT 

of Variable Operating Costs 

of Fi xed Operating Costs 

of Total Operarting Costs 

of Capita l Costs (Depreciation) 

of Debt Service Costs 

Dynamic Pricing- Market 

Market-driven Pricing (2x-3K Cost) 

~- :: ; 
101 • ·== 

·-. - ,, 

"" ..... 11111111.1 ,..~ -- ~p ..,. . ... • .,·, . ii ~· 

Val ue Weeke nd Peak 

109.00 $ 124.00 $ 134.00 
89. 00 $ 104.00 $ 129.00 

89.00 $ 104.00 $ 129.00 

44.00 $ 54.00 $ 64.00 

59.00 $ 59 .00 $ 89.00 

Free Free Free 

16 

Page 64 of 127



#

Submitted by:

Activity, Program or Event 

Program Name

Description
(This will be on the 
website)

Goals

Flex Reg?

Questions

Special
instructions to 
participants

General Information

Days of the week

Location

Time Start time: 

Dates (mm/dd/yy) Registration start: 

Program start: 

Program
supervisor

Other: 

Registrants (if applicable)

Participant Age Minimum age:  5 years old

End time:  

 Program Proposal Form

Date Submitted:

Maximum age: 

1) 

2) 

3) 

Registration deadline: 

Program end: 

Exclude date(s): 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday SundayAll

Gwynne Cunningham Kimberly Monte

Kristen Ferrall Shelia Leijon Jennifer Moore

Pandora Bahlman

Yes No N/A

Sarah Morris Meagan Ballew  

Tim Kelly  Adia van Peborgh  

EXHIBIT C

Page 65 of 127



Page 2 of 6

Participant Grade Minimum grade: 

Registrants Minimum number: 

Additional notes

Program Pricing

Allow pro rate?  

Rates

Standard Rate Day: Course:

Employee Day: Course: 

IVGID PPH Day: Course: 

Rec Ctr. Member Day: Course: 

Early Bird

Extra fee Amount: 

Budget

Deferred revenue?

Additional Financials

Staffing

Ratio

Volunteers

10 to 1

Maximum  number: Waitlist number: 

Third Revenue/fees account number ==========> Please Select One

Pyramid recovery cost methodology placement

Alternative funding sources (e.g., partnerships, etc)

Week: 

Second Revenue/fees account number ========>

Description: 

Revenue/fees account number ==============>

Please Select One

Supplies account number ==================>

350-46-811-4210 - Program Registration - PPH - Youth Sports

Please Select One

Week: 

Week: 

Week: 

Maximum grade: 

Yes No N/A

Community & Individual Individual & Community

Mostly Individual Highly Individual

Community

Yes No N/A

Page 66 of 127



Page 3 of 6

Special licensing
and certifications 
needed

Outside Resources

Supplies

Entertainment
and vendors

Equipment What is it? / Where is it from? Who cleans up? / Who returns?

Additional notes

Marketing 
Research 

Marketing Checklist

Who picks up? / Who sets up?

Is anyone in the community doing a similar program? 

We supply basketballs 

Food Handler Permit Alcohol Awareness Certification

Liquor License Sheriff's Card Health Department

Special Events Permit

Vermont

Facebook/Instagram

Website

Banners

E-flyer on website

Flyers

Rec User Calendar

Recreation Counter

no  yes (provide justification for duplicate program) 

Page 67 of 127



Page 4 of 6

Entered by:

Date received:

Date entered:

Notes:

  Administering Staff:

Page 68 of 127



Prepared by

Program Dates

Program

Location Days Hours/Day

REVENUE Count Fee Total Count Fee Total

Sponsor Fees

Team/Resident/Registration Fees

Non-Resident Registration Fees

Extra Roster/Late Fees

Personal Services

Miscellaneous Revenue

Compensation # Hrs./Games Rate Total # Hrs./Games Rate Total

Crdntr/Mngr/Sprvsr/BNFT $0.00 $0.00

Site Supervisor $0.00 $0.00

Other: $0.00 $0.00

Rec Clerk $0.00 $0.00

Other Earnings 0.00% $0.00 $0.00

EQUIP./SUPPLIES Quantity Price Per Item Total Quantity Price Per Item Total

Wages $0.00 Wages $0.00
Payroll Taxes & Fringe @ 12% $0.00 Payroll Taxes & Fringe @ 12% $0.00

Equipment/Supplies $0.00 Equipment/Supplies $0.00
Benefits @ 20% $0.00 Benefits @ 20% $0.00

(Director)

Program Evaluation:

(Date)

(Coordinator) (Date)

(Manager) (Date)

Total Revenue $0.00 Total Revenue $0.00

Total Profit or (Loss) $0.00 Total Profit or (Loss) $0.00

Total Equip./Supplies -$            Total Equip./Supplies -$            

Total Expenses $0.00 Total Expenses $0.00

 Profit or (Loss)/Total Revenue #DIV/0!  Profit or (Loss)/Total Revenue #DIV/0!

Postage/Flyers/Ads $0.00

$0.00

Misc. $0.00 $0.00

Champ Trophy $0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Referee Travel $0.00 $0.00

Total Wages -$            Total Wages -$            

Oatmeal $0.00

Total Revenue -$            Total Revenue -$            

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

Budget Proposal Post Program Financial

Pre and Post Program Financial Report

Date Budget
Proposal Completed

Date Post Program 
Financials Completed

Page 69 of 127



General Information

Program Name:

Update/change effective date

Details

Days of the week

Location

Time Start time: End time:  

Dates (mm/dd/yy)
Registration 
start: 

Registration 
deadline: 

Program start: Program end: 

Exclude date(s):

Rates

Standard Rate

Employee 

IVGID PPH

Rec Ctr. Member

Early Bird

Extra fee

Participants

Participant Age

Participant Grade

Registrants

Notes

Minimum grade: 

Maximum age: 

Maximum grade: 

Minimum number: Maximum  number: Waitlist number: 

Description: Amount: 

Minimum age:  

Week: 

Week: 

Week: 

Week: 

Course: 

Course: 

Course: 

Course: 

Day: 

Day: 

Day: 

Day: 

(Just update information that is changing)

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday SundayAll

Page 70 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-1-

1-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

RELEVANT POLICIES: 6.1.0 Adoption of Financial Policies

PRACTICE. It is the practice of the District to establish the manner in which fees 
and charges for services are set and the extent to which they cover the cost of 
services provided (per Policy 6.1.2.2)

1.0 Scope

This Practice shall be used to ensure consistent application of pricing across the 
District’s Community Services and Beach venues in order to meet venue- specific 
revenue objectives.

The objective of the District’s pricing policy is to:

• Ensure that revenues, including Charges for Services and applicable 
Recreation and/or Beach Facility Fees, as annually approved in May of each 
year for the forthcoming fiscal year by the Board of Trustees, are sufficient 
to cover the full cost of providing services to IVGID Picture Pass holders, 
guests of IVGID Picture Pass holders and others.

• Utilize sound financial planning principles to avoid volatility in charges and 
fees from year-to-year.

• Promote consistent framework for pricing across all venues and programs.
• Establish conditions for management to modify pricing during the fiscal year 

based on market conditions and for the determination of pricing new 
programs.

2.0 Definitions – for purposes of this practice, the following definitions shall be 
applied:

• Full-Cost is intended to represent the per-unit cost of providing access 
to, or use of, District venues, services and programs, and shall include 
operating costs (including overhead), capital depreciation and debt, 
as reflected in the annual budget.

• Operating Costs are defined to include direct personnel costs, non- 
personnel costs and overhead costs. For purposes of this definition, 
overhead applied to programs and services shall include appropriate 
allocation of Central Services Overhead as well as Department- 
specific administrative overhead.

• Direct Costs are defined as the incremental cost of providing for 
access or services for a specific event or purpose. Examples would 
include incremental cost (staffing, supplies, etc.) of providing access 

Page 71 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-2-

2-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

to a venue during normal business hours versus outside of normal 
operations. [Informational Note: As of June 2023, we had just under 
$400,000 in recreational debt.]

• Capital Costs for programs and services provided through the 
District’s Community Services and Beach Funds shall be defined as 
the annual depreciation budgeted and allocated to each fund and cost 
center.

• Debt Costs for purposes of establishing full-cost recovery shall include 
principal and interest on outstanding debt allocated to each fund as 
included in the annual budget.

3.0 Community Services Pricing

The District operates recreational facilities, venues, services and programs. To 
support the Community Services facilities, venues, services, and programs, the 
Board of Trustees shall establish, in January of each calendar year, a Recreation 
Facility Fee and a Beach Facility Fee that it may adopt through the annual budget 
process, and that is assessed on parcels and/or dwelling units within the District. This 
Recreation Facility Fee and Beach Facility Fee will be effective in the following fiscal 
year.

4.0 Pricing Model by Venue and Customer Type

Customer Type Customer Type Customer Type
VENUE PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
NON-PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
GUEST* OF A 

PICTURE PASS 
HOLDER

Championship Golf 
Course – see Note (1)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

Venue Utilization
What does the Board 
want to see?

Rates charged to IVGID 
Picture-Pass Holders shall 
be discounted from the 
Full-Cost of services, in 
recognition of the 
Recreation Facility Fee if 
assessed.

Rates established for 
IVGID Picture-Pass 
holders shall generally be 
set at no greater than the 
rate required to cover the 
Operating Costs of 
services. In some cases, 
rates charged may exceed 
Operating Costs (to the 
extent that the Facility Fee 
approved through the 
budget process is 
insufficient to cover the 
cost of annual Capital 
Costs and Debt Costs).

Rates charged for shall 
be set to cover no less 
than 100% of the Full-
Cost of the venue 
service provided with a 
floor on pricing of that of 
the Picture Pass Holder.

Guest rates may be set 
at a discount, provided 
that the guest rates 
shall, at a minimum, 
cover the Operating 
Costs of access to this 
venue and have a floor 
on pricing of that of the 
Picture Pass Holder.

Page 72 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-3-

3-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

Customer Type Customer Type Customer Type
VENUE PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
NON-PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
GUEST* OF A 

PICTURE PASS 
HOLDER

Championship Golf 
Course Pro Shop

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

In general, soft goods 
(example clothing) gets 
a 20% discount and 
hard goods gets a 5% 
discount (example 
clubs) and there is no 
sales tax charged.

No discount is offered. No discount is offered.

The Grille (Food 
Services)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

A 10% discount will be 
applied to all menu 
pricing for the picture 
pass holder only.

No discount is offered. No discount is offered.

Mountain Golf Course – 
See Note (1)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

Venue Utilization
What does the Board 
want to see?

Rates charged to IVGID 
Picture-Pass Holders 
shall be discounted from 
the Full-Cost of 
services, in recognition 
of the Recreation 
Facility Fee if assessed.

Rates established for 
IVGID Picture-Pass 
holders shall generally 
be set at no greater than 
the rate required to 
cover the Operating 
Costs of services. In 
some cases, rates 
charged may exceed 
Operating Costs (to the 
extent that the Facility 
Fee approved through 
the budget process is 
insufficient to cover the 
cost of annual Capital 
Costs and Debt Costs)

Rates charged for shall 
be set to cover no less 
than 100% of the Full-
Cost of the venue 
service provided with a 
floor on pricing of that of 
the Picture Pass Holder.

Guest rates may be set 
at a discount, provided 
that the guest rates 
shall, at a minimum, 
cover the Operating 
Costs of access to this 
venue and have a floor 
on pricing of that of the 
Picture Pass Holder.

Mountain Golf Course 
Pro Shop

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

In general, soft goods 
(example clothing) gets 
a 20% discount and 
hard goods gets a 5% 
discount (example 
clubs) and there is no 
sales tax charged.

No discount is offered. No discount is offered.

Page 73 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-4-

4-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

Customer Type Customer Type Customer Type
VENUE PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
NON-PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
GUEST* OF A 

PICTURE PASS 
HOLDER

Diamond Peak Ski 
Resort – See Note (2)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

Venue Utilization
What does the Board 
want to see?

Rates charged to IVGID 
Picture-Pass Holders 
shall be discounted from 
the Full-Cost of services 
in recognition of the 
Recreation Facility Fee, 
if assessed.

Rates established for 
IVGID Picture-Pass 
holders shall generally 
be set at no greater than 
the rate required to 
cover the Operating 
Costs of services. In 
some cases, rates 
charged may exceed 
Operating Costs (to the 
extent that the Facility 
Fee approved through 
the budget process is 
insufficient to cover the 
cost of annual Capital 
Costs and Debt Costs)

Rates charged for shall 
be set to cover no less 
than 100% of the Full-
Cost of the venue 
service provided with a 
floor on pricing of that of 
the Picture Pass Holder.

No discount is offered.

Diamond Peak Ski 
Resort Merchandise 
Shop

OUTSOURED VIA A 
SEPARATE 
CONTRACT

OUTSOURED VIA A 
SEPARATE 
CONTRACT

OUTSOURED VIA A 
SEPARATE 
CONTRACT

Diamond Peak Ski 
Resort Food Court

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

A 10% discount may be 
applied to all menu 
pricing for the picture 
pass holder only.

No discount is offered. No discount is offered.

Diamond Peak Ski 
Resort Rental Shop

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

The Ski Rental Shop 
rates are being largely 
market-driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly, with 
no discounts.

The Ski Rental Shop 
rates are being largely 
market-driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly, with 
no discounts.

The Ski Rental Shop 
rates are being largely 
market-driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly, with 
no discounts.

Diamond Peak Ski 
Resort Ski Lessons

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

The Ski Lessons rates 
are being largely market-
driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly, with 
no discounts.

The Ski Lessons rates 
are being largely market-
driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly, with 
no discounts.

The Ski Lessons rates 
are being largely market-
driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly, with 
no discounts.

Page 74 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-5-

5-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

Customer Type Customer Type Customer Type
VENUE PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
NON-PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
GUEST* OF A 

PICTURE PASS 
HOLDER

Tennis Center – See 
Note (3)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and falls under Mostly 
Individual Benefit with a 
cost recovery target of 
100%.

Rates charged to IVGID 
Picture-Pass Holders 
shall be discounted from 
the Full-Cost of services 
in recognition of the 
Recreation Facility Fee, 
if assessed.

Rates established for 
IVGID Picture-Pass 
holders shall generally 
be set at no greater than 
the rate required to 
cover the Operating 
Costs of services. In 
some cases, rates 
charged may exceed 
Operating Costs (to the 
extent that the Facility 
Fee approved through 
the budget process is 
insufficient to cover the 
cost of annual Capital 
Costs and Debt Costs)

Rates charged for shall 
be set to cover no less 
than 100% of the Full-
Cost of the venue 
service provided with a 
floor on pricing of that of 
the Picture Pass Holder.

No discount is offered.

Pickleball – See Note (3)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and falls under Mostly 
Individual Benefit with a 
cost recovery target of 
100%.

Rates charged to IVGID 
Picture-Pass Holders 
shall be discounted from 
the Full-Cost of services 
in recognition of the 
Recreation Facility Fee, 
if assessed.

Rates established for 
IVGID Picture-Pass 
holders shall generally 
be set at no greater than 
the rate required to 
cover the Operating 
Costs of services. In 
some cases, rates 
charged may exceed 
Operating Costs (to the 
extent that the Facility 
Fee approved through 
the budget process is 
insufficient to cover the 
cost of annual Capital 
Costs and Debt Costs)

Rates charged for shall 
be set to cover no less 
than 100% of the Full-
Cost of the venue 
service provided with a 
floor on pricing of that of 
the Picture Pass Holder.

No discount is offered.

Page 75 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-6-

6-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

Customer Type Customer Type Customer Type
VENUE PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
NON-PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
GUEST* OF A 

PICTURE PASS 
HOLDER

Tennis Center Pro Shop

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue.

NEED TO GET THIS 
INFORMATION

NEED TO GET THIS 
INFORMATION

NEED TO GET THIS 
INFORMATION

Recreational Programs 
(Adult) – See Note (4)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to these 
programs and falls 
under 
INDIVIDUAL/Community 
Benefit with a cost 
recovery target of 
between 67% to 100%.

The Recreational 
Programs (Adult) rates 
are being largely market 
driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly with a 
small discount being 
applied if participant is a 
picture pass holder.

The Recreational 
Programs (Adult) rates 
are being largely market 
driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly with 
no discounts.

The Recreational 
Programs (Adult) rates 
are being largely market 
driven to include 
appropriate profit 
margins. Rates are 
charged uniformly with 
no discounts.

Recreational Programs 
(Youth) – See Note (4)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and falls under 
COMMUNITY/Individual 
Benefit with a cost 
recovery target of 
between 0% and 33%.

The Recreational 
Programs (Youth) rates 
are what the market will 
bear. Rates are charged 
uniformly with a small 
discount being applied if 
participant is a picture 
pass holder.

The Recreational 
Programs (Youth) rates 
are what the market will 
bear.

The Recreational 
Programs (Youth) rates 
are what the market will 
bear.

Recreational Programs 
(Senior) – See Note (4)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and falls under 
COMMUNITY/Individual 
Benefit with a cost 
recovery target of 
between 0% and 33%

The Recreational 
Programs (Senior) rates 
are below market rates 
because these are 
subsidized programs by 
the Recreation Facility 
Fee. An additional small 
discount may apply if 
participant is a picture 
pass holder.

The Recreational 
Programs (Senior) rates 
are below market rates 
because these are 
subsidized programs by 
the Recreation Facility 
Fee.

The Recreational 
Programs (Senior) rates 
are below market rates 
because these are 
subsidized programs by 
the Recreation Facility 
Fee.

Fields (Ballfields) – See 
Note (3)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and it falls under 
COMMUNITY Benefit 
with no cost recovery 
and full subsidy.

Fields, if rented for 
tournaments, etc., 
switch to the following:
The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and falls under Mostly 
Individual Benefit with a 
cost recovery target of 
100%.

Page 76 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-7-

7-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

Customer Type Customer Type Customer Type
VENUE PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
NON-PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
GUEST* OF A 

PICTURE PASS 
HOLDER

Parks (Preston Field) – 
See Note (3)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and it falls under 
COMMUNITY Benefit 
with no cost recovery 
and full subsidy.

Parks, if rented for 
tournaments, etc., 
switch to the following:
The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and falls under Mostly 
Individual Benefit with a 
cost recovery target of 
100%

Skatepark

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and it falls under 
COMMUNITY Benefit 
with no cost recovery 
and full subsidy.

This venue is free to all 
users

This venue is free to all 
users

This venue is free to all 
users

Disc Golf Course – See 
Note (5)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and it falls under 
COMMUNITY Benefit 
with no cost recovery 
and full subsidy.

This venue is free to all 
users.

This venue is free to all 
users.

This venue is free to all 
users.

Bocce Ball Courts – See 
Note (6)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and it falls under 
COMMUNITY Benefit 
with no cost recovery 
and full subsidy.

This venue is free to all 
users.

This venue is free to all 
users.

This venue is free to all 
users.

Robin and Robert 
Holman Family Bike 
Park – See Note (6)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
applicable to this venue 
and it falls under 
COMMUNITY Benefit 
with no cost recovery 
and full subsidy

This venue is free to all 
users.

This venue is free to all 
users.

This venue is free to all 
users.

Page 77 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-8-

8-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

Customer Type Customer Type Customer Type
VENUE PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
NON-PICTURE PASS 

HOLDER
GUEST* OF A 

PICTURE PASS 
HOLDER

The Chateau and Aspen 
Grove Meeting Space – 
See Note (3) and (7)

The Cost Recovery 
Pyramid, Appendix A, is 
not applicable to this 
venue except as stated 
in Note (7).

Venue Utilization
What does the Board 
want to see?

Rates charged to IVGID 
Picture-Pass Holders 
shall be discounted from 
the Full-Cost of 
services, in recognition 
of the Recreation 
Facility Fee if assessed.

Rates established for 
IVGID Picture-Pass 
holders shall generally 
be set at no greater than 
the rate required to 
cover the Operating 
Costs of services. In 
some cases, rates 
charged may exceed 
Operating Costs (to the 
extent that the Facility 
Fee approved through 
the budget process is 
insufficient to cover the 
cost of annual Capital 
Costs and Debt Costs)

No discount is offered. No discount is offered.

*A guest is defined as Guest for Recreation Facilities other than the Beaches means 
any person invited by an Owner of a Parcel to use District owned Recreation 
Facilities other than the Beaches. [Informational Note: This text is the same as in 
Ordinance 7.] Further, where Guest Rates are established, the Guest must be 
accompanied by an IVGID Picture-Pass holder.

Notes

(1) Key rates are presented to the Board of Trustees for their review and approval 
in February of each calendar year. The key rates, once approved, will go into 
effect for the following golfing season.

(2) Key rates are presented to the Board of Trustees for their review and approval 
in January of each calendar year. The key rates, once approved, will go into 
effect for the following ski season.

(3) Key rates are presented to the Board of Trustees for their review and approval 
in March of each calendar year. The key rates, once approved, will go into 
effect at the start of the next fiscal year. 

(4) Rates may be presented to the Board of Trustees for their review and approval 

Page 78 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-9-

9-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

and a fixed sum amount of money is presented in the annual budget for both 
Adult and Youth Programming combined into one fixed sum. It is then the 
Staff’s job to work within that fixed sum of money for all its Adult and Youth 
programming.

(5) Donations are solicited and donations go to Parks revenue for maintenance of 
the facility.

(6) Rentals are or will be available and the rental fees generated will go to Parks 
revenue.

(7) This venue may be used for internal District events and discounts may be 
offered in off peak seasons in accordance with the key rates submitted and 
approved.

As it applies to daily rates charged for venue rental, venue access, programs, and 
services, management is authorized to utilize dynamic pricing, based on changing 
market conditions, provided that doing so contributes positively to the net operating 
income of the venue. (The Board may establish a “floor” such as no lower than the 
IVGID Picture Pass-holder rate).

5.0 Discounts

Group Rates – Access to and/or rental of venues for qualifying groups can be 
provided at a discount, provided that the discounted pricing is set so as to cover the 
Direct Costs of venue access. Discounts may vary based on venue availability 
(example: peak versus off-peak, mid-week versus weekend).

6.0 Community Focused Nonprofits
Community Focused Nonprofits shall be eligible for complimentary or discounted 
use of District facilities and recreational programs. Eligible non-profits shall be a 
local non-profit, a national nonprofit with a local chapter, or local government 
agency or school district providing services to the local community. Local shall be 
defined as the Incline Village/Crystal Bay community. Organizations shall provide 
supporting documentation of their nonprofit status prior to receiving complimentary 
or discounted use of District facilities or recreational programs. Non-government 
agencies shall be an IRS 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation or similar organization. All 
entities shall otherwise comply with all applicable terms and conditions for use of 
the facility or participating in the program, including insurance, indemnity, damage 
deposits, and similar requirements. Blackout Dates. IVGID prioritizes the use of 
IVGID facilities for resident or revenue-generating use. As such, IVGID staff shall, 
on an annual basis, identify dates in which complimentary or discounted use of 
District facilities are unavailable. Moreover, resident or revenue-generating use 
shall take priority over complimentary or discounted use. IVGID may provide other 
special pricing, discount, or promotional programs to the general public or to a 

Page 79 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-10-

10-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

category of the general public. Examples may include complimentary lift tickets to 
Diamond Peak for local students or a round of golf at the Mountain Golf Course. 
Categories of the general public shall not include IVGID employees, retirees, or 
similar group provided benefits under personnel or similar policies. Special pricing, 
discount, or promotional programs shall be identified, budgeted, and approved 
through the annual budget. On an annual basis, the General Manager or designee 
shall provide a report to the Board of Trustees listing any use of District facilities 
and recreational programs pursuant to this Resolution. The Board of Trustees may 
authorize additional complimentary or discounted use of District facilities and 
recreational programs at its discretion. In addition, the Board of Trustees may 
authorize monetary contributions to Community Focused Non-Profits or other 
entities to the extent permitted by NRS 318 and other applicable law. This policy 
does not affect or invalidate any existing joint use or similar agreement with a 
Community Focused Non-Profit, which be deemed an additional use subject to this 
policy.

The annual budget could provide a funding allocation from the District’s General 
Fund to be used to offset discounts anticipated to be provided to community focused 
non-profit organizations. This funding is to be allocated to venues, programs or 
services based on utilization by community focused non-profits in order mitigate the 
impact on overall financial performance of the venue, program or service.

7.0 Reporting

An annual report will be provided to the Board of Trustees, no later than August 31 
and beginning with Fiscal Year ending 2024/2025, that will detail the financial impact 
of the discount extended to the various groups and/or non-profits.

8.0 Caveats to this Practice

While applying the Community Services pricing guidelines as set forth in this practice, 
each venue, as a unique business enterprise, may incorporate modifications to its 
pricing for access/rentals, programs, and services. The measurement for success 
will be the overall performance of the fund/sub-fund that these venues make up i.e. 
the Community Services Fund and more specifically the working capital (cash) 
balance.

9.0 Beach Pricing

District-owned beaches are restricted to deeded parcel owners within the District and 
their guests. To support the Beaches, services, and programs, the District may 
establish in January, a Beach Facility Fee assessed on eligible parcels and/or 

Page 80 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-11-

11-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

dwelling units within the District.

9.1 Beach access is restricted for use by IVGID Picture Pass holders with beach 
access and their guests.

9.2 Funding to support the District beaches comes directly from the annual Beach 
Facility Fee assessed on parcels and/or dwelling units within the District and, 
as such, beach access to IVGID Picture-pass holders with beach access is 
made available at no additional charge. 

9.3 The daily Guest beach access fee is to be set during key rate approvals.
9.4 The daily Beach access fee may vary based on time of year, and peak periods. 

Management shall report on the average daily rates for the season to ensure 
that pricing policy and beach revenue targets are met.

10.0 Administration of Community Services and Beach Pricing Policy

10.1 The Board of Trustees will establish overall financial performance targets for 
each venue through the annual budget process.

10.2 The General Manager is authorized to approve daily and group rates for all 
other programs, based on the recommendations of venue managers, 
consistent with the parameters of the District’s Pricing Policy (Policy 6.1.2.2).

10.3 The District’s respective Directors are authorized to approve pricing for Food 
and Beverage and retail merchandise as long as the District General Manager 
is informed.

10.4 Fee Schedules shall be placed on the District’s website, and shall be updated, 
as needed, to reflect current pricing, to the extent practical.

Page 81 of 127



Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Community Services and Beach 

Pricing for Products and Services 
Practice 6.2.0

Proposed May 20, 2024, 
effective July 1, 2024

-12-

12-
-9-

EXHIBIT D

Appendix A
Cost-Recovery Pyramid 

Recreation and Community 
Programs

Page 82 of 127



GENERAL FUND WITHOUT PROPOSED CHANGES

General Fund Summary
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 Budget 

to FY25 
Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to 

FY24 Est. Act

% Change 
FY24 Budget 

to FY25 
Budget 

% Change 
FY25 Budget 
to FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues

Sales and Fees 2,520 57,190 57,190 63,735 6,545 6,545 11.44% 11.44%
Taxes

Ad Valorem Property Tax 2,008,289 2,013,975  2,145,020 2,145,020 2,228,155 83,135 83,135 3.88% 3.88%
Personal Property Tax 12,480 17,537   13,000 13,000 18,000 5,000 5,000 38.46% 38.46%
Consolidated Taxes 1,821,440 1,719,029  1,910,494 1,910,494 1,816,461 (94,033) (94,033) -4.92% -4.92%
Local Government Tax Act 258,965 307,309   269,300 269,300 312,000 42,700 42,700 15.86% 15.86%
Sub-Total Taxes 4,101,174 4,057,850 4,337,814 4,337,814 4,374,616 36,802 36,802 0.85% 0.85%

Intergovernmental
Operating Grants 97  800 800 22,875 22,075 22,075 2759.38% 2759.38%
Operating Contributions 12,100 12,100 12,100 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Charges 145,903 145,903 145,903 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total Intergovernmental 97  158,803   158,803   180,878  22,075 22,075 13.90% 13.90%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 13,308 211,780   111,000 111,000 (111,000) (111,000) -100.00% -100.00%

Total Revenues and Other Sources 4,117,002 4,269,727 4,664,807 4,664,807 4,619,229 (45,578) (45,578) -0.98% -0.98%
Expenditures and Uses
Wages and Benefits 4,279,462 3,780,099  5,404,483 5,024,639 6,898,510 1,494,027 1,873,871 27.64% 37.29%
Professional Services 461,475 287,831   855,045 448,287 572,045 (283,000) 123,758 -33.10% 27.61%
Services and Supplies 1,124,356 701,176   2,107,171 1,103,457 1,641,195 (465,976) 537,738 -22.11% 48.73%
Insurance 57,900 62,268   85,300 122,689 35,341 (49,959) (87,348) -58.57% -71.19%
Utilities 117,212 117,027   230,400 247,782 260,100 29,700 12,318 12.89% 4.97%
Central Services Cost (1,319,400) (1,331,154) (1,956,300) (1,956,300) (2,417,072) (460,772) (460,772) 23.55% 23.55%
Settlement Expense 100,000 375,113   100,000 (100,000) 0 -100.00%

Sub-Total Expenditures and Uses 4,821,005 3,992,360 6,826,099 4,990,554 6,990,119 164,020 1,999,565 2.40% 40.07%
Capital Outlay 
Capital Outlay 633,000 483,103 2,518,892 263,000 900,000 (1,618,892) 637,000 -64.27% 242.21%
Debt Service
Principal 104,998
Interest 20,000
Sub-Total Debt Service 124,998
Transfers Out
Transfers Out 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total Expenditures and Uses 6,454,005 5,600,461 9,344,991 5,253,554 7,890,119 (1,454,872) 2,636,565 -15.57% 50.19%
Net Sources and Uses (2,337,003) (1,330,734) (4,680,184) (588,747) (3,270,890) 1,409,294 (2,682,143) -30.11% 455.57%
Fund Balance, July 1 (Est. Actuals) 6,013,261 4,682,526 4,093,779
Fund Balance, June 30 4,682,526 4,093,779 822,889

Item F.2.

Page 83 of 127



GENERAL FUND WITH WAGE ALLOCATION CHANGE

General Fund Summary
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 Budget 

to FY25 
Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to 

FY24 Est. Act

% Change 
FY24 Budget 

to FY25 
Budget 

% Change 
FY25 Budget 
to FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues

Sales and Fees 2,520 57,190 57,190 63,735 6,545 6,545 11.44% 11.44%
Taxes

Ad Valorem Property Tax 2,008,289 2,013,975     2,145,020 2,145,020 2,228,155 83,135 83,135 3.88% 3.88%
Personal Property Tax 12,480 17,537           13,000 13,000 18,000 5,000 5,000 38.46% 38.46%
Consolidated Taxes 1,821,440 1,719,029     1,910,494 1,910,494 1,816,461 (94,033) (94,033) -4.92% -4.92%
Local Government Tax Act 258,965 307,309         269,300 269,300 312,000 42,700 42,700 15.86% 15.86%
Sub-Total Taxes 4,101,174 4,057,850 4,337,814 4,337,814 4,374,616 36,802 36,802 0.85% 0.85%

Intergovernmental
Operating Grants 97                  800 800 22,875 22,075 22,075 2759.38% 2759.38%
Operating Contributions 12,100 12,100 12,100 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Charges 145,903 145,903 145,903 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total Intergovernmental 97 158,803 158,803 180,878 22,075 22,075 13.90% 13.90%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 13,308 211,780         111,000 111,000 (111,000) (111,000) -100.00% -100.00%

Total Revenues and Other Sources 4,117,002 4,269,727 4,664,807 4,664,807 4,619,229 (45,578) (45,578) -0.98% -0.98%
Expenditures and Uses

Wages and Benefits 4,279,462 3,780,099     5,404,483 5,024,639 5,138,672 (265,811) 114,033 -4.92% 2.27%
Professional Services 461,475 287,831         855,045 448,287 572,045 (283,000) 123,758 -33.10% 27.61%
Services and Supplies 1,124,356 701,176         2,107,171 1,103,457 1,641,195 (465,976) 537,738 -22.11% 48.73%
Insurance 57,900 62,268           85,300 122,689 35,341 (49,959) (87,348) -58.57% -71.19%
Utilities 117,212 117,027         230,400 247,782 260,100 29,700 12,318 12.89% 4.97%
Central Services Cost (1,319,400) (1,331,154) (1,956,300) (1,956,300) (2,417,072) (460,772) (460,772) 23.55% 23.55%
Settlement Expense 100,000 375,113         100,000 (100,000) 0 -100.00%
Sub-Total Expenditures and Uses 4,821,005 3,992,360 6,826,099 4,990,554 5,230,281 (1,595,818) 239,727 -23.38% 4.80%
Capital Outlay 
Capital Outlay 633,000 483,103 2,518,892 263,000 900,000 (1,618,892) 637,000 -64.27% 242.21%
Debt Service
Principal 104,998
Interest 20,000
Sub-Total Debt Service 124,998
Transfers Out
Transfers Out 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total Expenditures and Uses 6,454,005 5,600,461 9,344,991 5,253,554 6,130,281 (3,214,710) 876,727 -34.40% 16.69%
Net Sources and Uses (2,337,003) (1,330,734) (4,680,184) (588,747) (1,511,052) 3,169,132 (922,305) -67.71% 156.66%
Fund Balance, July 1 (Est. Actuals) 6,013,261 4,682,526 4,093,779
Fund Balance, June 30 4,682,526 4,093,779 2,582,727

Page 84 of 127



GENERAL FUND WAGE ALLOCATION AND MOVE PARKS

General Fund Summary
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Sales and Fees 2,520 57,190 57,190 (57,190) (57,190) -100.00% -100.00%
Taxes

Ad Valorem Property Tax 2,008,289 2,013,975      2,145,020 2,145,020 2,228,155 83,135 83,135 3.88% 3.88%
Personal Property Tax 12,480 17,537           13,000 13,000 18,000 5,000 5,000 38.46% 38.46%
Consolidated Taxes 1,821,440 1,719,029      1,910,494 1,910,494 1,816,461 (94,033) (94,033) -4.92% -4.92%
Local Government Tax Act 258,965 307,309         269,300 269,300 312,000 42,700 42,700 15.86% 15.86%
Sub-Total Taxes 4,101,174 4,057,850 4,337,814 4,337,814 4,374,616 36,802 36,802 0.85% 0.85%

Intergovernmental
Operating Grants 97                   800 800 (800) (800) -100.00% -100.00%
Operating Contributions 12,100 12,100 -100.00% -100.00%
Interfund Charges 145,903 145,903 -100.00% -100.00%
Sub-Total Intergovernmental 97 158,803 158,803 0 (158,803) (158,803) -100.00% -100.00%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 13,308 211,780         111,000 111,000 (111,000) (111,000) -100.00% -100.00%

Total Revenues and Other Sources 4,117,002 4,269,727 4,664,807 4,664,807 4,374,616 (290,191) (290,191) -6.22% -6.22%
Expenditures and Uses

Wages and Benefits 4,279,462 3,780,099      5,404,483 5,024,639 4,413,166 (991,317) (611,473) -18.34% -12.17%
Professional Services 461,475 287,831         855,045 448,287 572,045 (283,000) 123,758 -33.10% 27.61%
Services and Supplies 1,124,356 701,176         2,107,171 1,103,457 1,087,646 (1,019,525) (15,811) -48.38% -1.43%
Insurance 57,900 62,268           85,300 122,689 19,742 (65,558) (102,947) -76.86% -83.91%
Utilities 117,212 117,027         230,400 247,782 134,100 (96,300) (113,682) -41.80% -45.88%
Central Services Cost (1,319,400) (1,331,154) (1,956,300) (1,956,300) (2,417,072) (460,772) (460,772) 23.55% 23.55%
Settlement Expense 100,000 375,113         100,000 (100,000) 0 -100.00%
Sub-Total Expenditures and Uses 4,821,005 3,992,360 6,826,099 4,990,554 3,809,627 (3,016,472) (1,180,927) -44.19% -23.66%
Capital Outlay 
Capital Outlay 633,000 483,103 2,518,892 263,444 275,000 (2,243,892) 11,556 -89.08% 4.39%
Debt Service
Principal 104,998
Interest 20,000
Sub-Total Debt Service 124,998
Transfers Out
Transfers Out 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total Expenditures and Uses 6,454,005 5,600,461 9,344,991 5,253,998 4,084,627 (5,260,364) (1,169,371) -56.29% -22.26%
Net Sources and Uses (2,337,003) (1,330,734) (4,680,184) (589,191) 289,989 4,970,173 879,180 -106.20% -149.22%
Fund Balance, July 1 (Est Actuals) 6,013,261 4,682,526 4,093,335
Fund Balance, June 30 4,682,526 4,093,335 4,383,324

Page 85 of 127



General Fund - Parks 

Community Services Fund - Parks
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to 

FY24 Est. Act

% Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget 

% Change 
FY25 

Budget to 
FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 63,115 153,962 57,190 57,190 63,735 6,545 6,545 11.44% 11.44%
Facility Fee 73,191 73,369 0 0
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 22,875 25,275 800 800 22,875 22,075 22,075 2759.38%
Interfund Services 107,267 128,812 145,903 145,903 145,903 0 0
Sub-total 266,448 381,418 203,893 203,893 232,513 28,620 28,620 14.04% 14.04%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (180) (1,016)
Capital Grants 100,000
Operating Contributions 12,100 12,100 12,100 12,100
Sub-total 111,920 (1,016) 12,100 12,100 12,100 0.00% 0.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 378,368 380,402 215,993 215,993 244,613 28,620 28,620 13.25% 13.25%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 532,171 583,125 580,160 698,454 725,506 145,346 27,052 25.05% 3.87%
Professional Services 1,170 1,170 1,170 (1,170) (1,170) -100.00%
Services & Supplies 410,892 206,812 479,670 249,194 553,549 73,879 304,355 15.40% 122.14%
Insurance 14,500 15,624 17,100 17,100 15,599 (1,501) (1,501) -8.78% -8.78%
Utilities 112,091 120,653 121,600 132,653 126,000 4,400 (6,653) 3.62% -5.02%
Central Service Cost 60,810 60,432
Sub-total 1,131,634 986,646 1,199,700 1,098,571 1,420,654 220,954 322,083 18.42% 29.32%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 297,362 152,620 1,572,443 50,000 625,000 (947,443) 575,000 -60.25% 1150.00%
Debt Service
Principal 2,972 2,974
Interest 33
Sub-total 3,005 2,974 0 0 0
Total Expenditures and Uses 1,432,001 1,142,240 2,772,143 1,148,571 2,045,654 (726,489) 897,083 -26.21% 78.10%
Net Sources and Uses (1,053,633) (761,838) (2,556,150) (932,578) (1,801,041) 755,109 (868,463) -29.54% 93.12%

Page 86 of 127



UTILITIES FUND WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Utility Fund Sources and Uses
2022-23 
Budget 

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 14,289,893 14,644,009 16,034,772 15,316,198 17,389,865 1,355,093 2,073,667 8% 14%
Interfund Services 236,500 57,332 170,714 170,714 158,000 (12,714) (328,714) -7% -7%
Sub-Total 14,526,393 14,701,341 16,205,486 15,486,912 17,547,865 1,342,379 (33,034,777) 8% 13%

Other Financing Sources

Investment Earnings 41,688 200,999 352,600 352,600 (352,600) (352,600) -100% -100%
Capital Grants 204,258 5,529,250 5,529,250 10,039,089 4,509,839 4,509,839 82% 82%
Debt Proceeds 3,710,000 50,889,877 5,834,888 10,000,000 (40,889,877) 4,165,112 -80% 71%
Sub-Total 3,955,946 200,999 56,771,727 11,716,738 20,039,089 (36,732,638) 8,322,351 -65% 71%

Total Revenues & Other Sources 18,482,339 14,902,340 72,977,213 27,203,650 37,586,954 (35,390,259) (22,967,473) -48% 38%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages & Benefits 5,653,680 4,804,610 5,712,748 5,146,387 7,068,597 1,355,849 1,922,210 24% 37%
Professional Services 167,050 160,254 172,050 134,508 183,050 11,000 48,542 6% 36%
Services & Supplies 4,088,195 2,115,760 3,837,487 3,138,948 5,875,956 2,038,469 2,737,008 53% 87%
Insurance 221,900 238,881 261,200 382,000 242,712 (18,488) (139,288) -7% -36%
Utilities 958,691 1,185,815 1,112,376 1,142,882 1,327,400 215,024 184,518 19% 16%
Defensible Space 100,000 89,956 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0% 0%
Central Service Cost 837,930 837,930 851,718 13,788 13,788 2% 2%
Sub-Total 11,189,516 8,595,276 12,033,791 10,882,655 15,649,433 3,615,642 4,766,778 30% 44%

Capital Expenditures

Capital Improvements 22,862,012 7,735,445 63,745,000 15,000,000 22,055,000 (41,690,000) 7,055,000 -65% 47%
Debt Service

Interest 73,728 65,779 58,730 58,730 150,010 91,280 91,280 155% 155%
Principal 569,407 569,407 455,827 455,827 468,184 12,357 12,357 3% 3%
Sub-Total 643,135 635,186 514,557 514,557 618,194 103,637 103,637 20% 20%

Interfund Transfers & Adjustments
Capital Contribution 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Expenditures & Uses 35,694,663 17,965,907 76,293,348 26,397,212 38,322,627 (37,970,721) 11,925,415 -50% 45%
Net Sources and Uses (17,212,324) (3,063,567) (3,316,135) 806,438 (735,673) 2,580,462 1,774,024 -78% -191%
Fund Balance, July 1 (based on Est Act) 18,117,479 18,923,917
Fund Balance, June 30 18,117,479 18,923,917 18,188,244

Page 87 of 127



UTILITIES FUND NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Utility Fund Sources and Uses
2022-23 
Budget 

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 14,289,893 14,644,009 16,034,772 15,316,198 17,389,865 1,355,093 2,073,667 8% 14%
Interfund Services 236,500 57,332 170,714 170,714 158,000 (12,714) (328,714) -7% -7%
Sub-Total 14,526,393 14,701,341 16,205,486 15,486,912 17,547,865 1,342,379 (33,034,777) 8% 13%

Other Financing Sources

Investment Earnings 41,688 200,999 352,600 352,600 (352,600) (352,600) -100% -100%
Capital Grants 204,258 5,529,250 5,529,250 10,039,089 4,509,839 4,509,839 82% 82%
Debt Proceeds 3,710,000 50,889,877 5,834,888 10,000,000 (40,889,877) 4,165,112 -80% 71%
Sub-Total 3,955,946 200,999 56,771,727 11,716,738 20,039,089 (36,732,638) 8,322,351 -65% 71%

Total Revenues & Other Sources 18,482,339 14,902,340 72,977,213 27,203,650 37,586,954 (35,390,259) (22,967,473) -48% 38%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages & Benefits 5,653,680 4,804,610 5,712,748 5,146,387 6,675,724 962,976 1,529,337 17% 30%
Professional Services 167,050 160,254 172,050 134,508 166,000 (6,050) 31,492 -4% 23%
Services & Supplies 4,088,195 2,115,760 3,837,487 3,138,948 5,875,956 2,038,469 2,737,008 53% 87%
Insurance 221,900 238,881 261,200 382,000 242,712 (18,488) (139,288) -7% -36%
Utilities 958,691 1,185,815 1,112,359 1,142,882 1,327,400 215,041 184,518 19% 16%
Defensible Space 100,000 89,956 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0% 0%
Central Service Cost 837,930 837,930 851,718 13,788 13,788 2% 2%
Sub-Total 11,189,516 8,595,276 12,033,774 10,882,655 15,239,510 3,205,736 4,356,855 27% 40%

Capital Expenditures

Capital Improvements 22,862,012 7,735,445 63,745,000 15,000,000 22,055,000 (41,690,000) 7,055,000 -65% 47%
Debt Service

Interest 73,728 65,779 58,730 58,730 150,010 91,280 91,280 155% 155%
Principal 569,407 569,407 455,827 455,827 468,184 12,357 12,357 3% 3%
Sub-Total 643,135 635,186 514,557 514,557 618,194 103,637 103,637 20% 20%

Interfund Transfers & Adjustments
Capital Contribution 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Expenditures & Uses 35,694,663 17,965,907 76,293,331 26,397,212 37,912,704 (38,380,627) 11,515,492 -50% 44%
Net Sources and Uses (17,212,324) (3,063,567) (3,316,118) 806,438 (325,750) 2,990,368 2,183,930 -90% -140%
Fund Balance, July 1 (based on Est Act) 18,117,479 18,923,917
Fund Balance, June 30 18,117,479 18,923,917 18,598,167

Page 88 of 127



PW WATER NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Public Works - Water
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 Budget 

to FY25 
Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 5,957,177 6,045,578 6,679,580 6,023,529 17,429,157 10,749,577 11,405,628 160.93% 189.35%
Interfund Services 236,500 57,332 170,714 170,714 158,000 (12,714) (12,714) -7.45% -7.45%
Sub-Total 6,193,677 6,102,910 6,850,294 6,194,243 17,587,157 10,736,863 11,392,914 156.74% 183.93%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 20,844 100,499 176,300 176,300 (176,300) (176,300) -100.00%
Capital Grants 204,258 0 0
Sub-Total 225,102 100,499 176,300 (176,300) 0 -100.00%

Total Revenues and Other Sources 6,418,779 6,203,409 7,026,594 6,370,543 17,587,157 10,560,563 11,216,614 150.29% 176.07%
Expenditures and Uses

Wages and Benefits 2,444,421 2,125,757 2,495,524 2,176,765 3,062,259 566,735 885,494 22.71% 40.68%
Professional Services 80,350 72,630 83,350 45,808 83,000 (350) 37,192 -0.42% 81.19%
Services & Supplies 2,449,236 1,077,617 2,149,235 1,528,600 3,464,037 1,314,802 1,935,437 61.18% 126.62%
Insurance 121,900 131,215 143,500 213,067 117,956 (25,544) (95,111) -17.80% -44.64%
Utilities 474,748 596,809 564,880 595,834 620,100 55,220 24,266 9.78% 4.07%
Central Service Cost 402,206 402,206 408,825 6,619 6,619 1.65% 1.65%
Defensible Space 50,000 44,978 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 5,620,655 4,049,006 5,888,695 5,012,280 7,806,177 1,917,482 2,793,897 32.56% 55.74%

Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 2,236,977 1,681,464 2,634,500 2,634,500 1,875,000 (759,500) (759,500) -28.83% -28.83%
Debt Service

Principal 256,288 256,288 263,172 263,172 (263,172) (263,172) -100.00% -100.00%
Interest 50,732 63,576 43,848 43,848 (43,848) (43,848) -100.00% -100.00%
Sub-Total 307,020 319,864 307,020 307,020 (307,020) (307,020) -100.00% -100.00%

Interfund Transfers & Adjustments 
Total Expenditures & Uses 8,164,652 6,050,334 8,830,215 7,953,800 9,681,177 850,962 1,727,377 9.64% 21.72%

Net Sources or Uses (1,745,873) 153,075 (1,803,621) (1,583,257) 7,905,980 9,709,601 9,489,237 -538.34% -599.35%

Page 89 of 127



PW WATER WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Public Works - Water
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 Budget 

to FY25 
Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change 
FY24 Budget 

to FY25 
Budget 

% Change 
FY25 Budget 
to FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 5,957,177 6,045,578 6,679,580 6,023,529 7,429,157 749,577 1,405,628 11.22% 23.34%
Interfund Services 236,500 57,332 170,714 170,714 158,000 (12,714) (12,714) -7.45% -7.45%
Sub-Total 6,193,677 6,102,910 6,850,294 6,194,243 7,587,157 736,863 1,392,914 10.76% 22.49%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 20,844 100,499 176,300 176,300 (176,300) (176,300) -100.00%
Capital Grants 204,258 0 0
Sub-Total 225,102 100,499 176,300 (176,300) 0 -100.00%

Total Revenues and Other Sources 6,418,779 6,203,409 7,026,594 6,370,543 7,587,157 560,563 1,216,614 7.98% 19.10%
Expenditures and Uses

Wages and Benefits 2,444,421 2,125,757 2,495,524 2,176,765 3,258,695 763,171 1,081,930 30.58% 49.70%
Professional Services 80,350 72,630 83,350 45,808 83,000 (350) 37,192 -0.42% 81.19%
Services & Supplies 2,449,236 1,077,617 2,149,235 1,528,600 3,464,037 1,314,802 1,935,437 61.18% 126.62%
Insurance 121,900 131,215 143,500 213,067 117,956 (25,544) (95,111) -17.80% -44.64%
Utilities 474,748 596,809 564,880 595,834 620,100 55,220 24,266 9.78% 4.07%
Central Service Cost 402,206 402,206 408,825 6,619 6,619 1.65% 1.65%
Defensible Space 50,000 44,978 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 5,620,655 4,049,006 5,888,695 5,012,280 8,002,613 2,113,918 2,990,333 35.90% 59.66%

Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 2,236,977 1,681,464 2,634,500 2,634,500 1,875,000 (759,500) (759,500) -28.83% -28.83%
Debt Service

Principal 256,288 256,288 263,172 263,172 (263,172) (263,172) -100.00% -100.00%
Interest 50,732 63,576 43,848 43,848 (43,848) (43,848) -100.00% -100.00%
Sub-Total 307,020 319,864 307,020 307,020 (307,020) (307,020) -100.00% -100.00%

Interfund Transfers & Adjustments 
Total Expenditures & Uses 8,164,652 6,050,334 8,830,215 7,953,800 9,877,613 1,047,398 1,923,813 11.86% 24.19%

Net Sources or Uses (1,745,873) 153,075 (1,803,621) (1,583,257) (2,290,456) (486,835) (707,199) 26.99% 44.67%

Page 90 of 127



PW SEWER NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Public Works - Sewer
Sources and Uses

Sewer - Sources and Uses 2022-23 Budget 2022-23 Actual 2023-24 Budget
2023-24 Est. 

Actual 2024-25 Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 7,816,716 8,007,966 8,821,791 8,736,364 9,374,520 552,729 638,156 6.27% 7.30%
Interfund Services
Sub-Total 7,816,716 8,007,966 8,821,791 8,736,364 9,374,520 552,729 638,156 6.27% 7.30%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 20,844 101,080 176,300 176,300 (176,300) (176,300) -100.00% -100.00%
Debt Proceeds 3710000 50,889,877 5,834,888 10,000,000 (40,889,877) 4,165,112 -80.35% 71.38%
Capital Grants 5,529,250 5,529,250 9,339,089 3,809,839 3,809,839 68.90% 68.90%
Sub-Total 3,730,844 101,080 56,595,427 11,540,438 19,339,089 (37,256,338) 7,798,651 -65.83% 67.58%

Total Revenues and Other Sources 11,547,560 8,109,046 65,417,218 20,276,802 28,713,609 (36,703,609) 8,436,807 -56.11% 41.61%
Expenditures and Uses

Wages and Benefits 2,860,089 2,382,318 2,873,459 2,669,159 3,070,243 196,784 401,084 6.85% 15.03%
Professional Services 86,700 87,624 88,700 80,000 83,000 (5,700) 3,000 -6.43% 3.75%
Services & Supplies 1,409,034 855,342 1,467,479 988,491 2,175,685 708,206 1,187,194 48.26% 120.10%
Insurance 100,000 107,666 117,700 169,291 124,756 7,056 (44,535) 5.99% -26.31%
Utilities 481,963 587,047 545,479 679,717 705,500 160,021 25,783 29.34% 3.79%
Central Service Cost 377,068 283,108 383,273 6,205 100,165 1.65% 35.38%
Defensible Space 50,000 44,978 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 4,987,786 4,064,975 5,519,885 4,919,766 6,592,457 1,072,572 1,672,691 19.43% 34.00%

Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 20,625,035 6,770,956 61,100,000 13,000,000 20,060,000 (41,040,000) 7,060,000 -67.17% 54.31%
Debt Service .

Principal 313,119 313,119 192,655 192,655 468,184 275,529 275,529 143.02% 143.02%
Interest 22,996 2,203 14,882 14,882 150,010 135,128 135,128 908.00% 908.00%
Sub-Total 336,115 315,322 207,537 207,537 618,194 410,657 410,657 197.87% 197.87%

Interfund Transfers & Adjustments 
Capital Contribution 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Expenditures & Uses 25,948,936 11,151,253 66,827,422 18,127,303 27,270,651 (39,556,771) 9,143,348 -59.19% 50.44%
Net Sources or Uses (13,401,376) (2,042,207) 1,410,204 2,149,499 1,442,958 32,754 (706,541) 2.32% -32.87%

Page 91 of 127



PW SEWER WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Public Works - Sewer
Sources and Uses

Sewer - Sources and Uses 2022-23 Budget 2022-23 Actual 2023-24 Budget
2023-24 Est. 

Actual 2024-25 Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 7,816,716 8,007,966 8,821,791 8,736,364 9,374,520 552,729 638,156 6.27% 7.30%
Interfund Services
Sub-Total 7,816,716 8,007,966 8,821,791 8,736,364 9,374,520 552,729 638,156 6.27% 7.30%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 20,844 101,080 176,300 176,300 (176,300) (176,300) -100.00% -100.00%
Debt Proceeds 3710000 50,889,877 5,834,888 13,919,835 (36,970,042) 8,084,947 -72.65% 138.56%
Capital Grants 5,529,250 5,529,250 4,339,089 (1,190,161) (1,190,161) -21.52% -21.52%
Sub-Total 3,730,844 101,080 56,595,427 11,540,438 18,258,924 (38,336,503) 6,718,486 -67.74% 58.22%

Total Revenues and Other Sources 11,547,560 8,109,046 65,417,218 20,276,802 27,633,444 (37,783,774) 7,356,642 -57.76% 36.28%
Expenditures and Uses

Wages and Benefits 2,860,089 2,382,318 2,873,459 2,669,159 3,266,679 393,220 597,520 13.68% 22.39%
Professional Services 86,700 87,624 88,700 80,000 83,000 (5,700) 3,000 -6.43% 3.75%
Services & Supplies 1,409,034 855,342 1,467,479 988,491 2,175,685 708,206 1,187,194 48.26% 120.10%
Insurance 100,000 107,666 117,700 169,291 124,756 7,056 (44,535) 5.99% -26.31%
Utilities 481,963 587,047 545,479 679,717 705,500 160,021 25,783 29.34% 3.79%
Central Service Cost 377,068 283,108 383,273 6,205 100,165 1.65% 35.38%
Defensible Space 50,000 44,978 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 4,987,786 4,064,975 5,519,885 4,919,766 6,788,893 1,269,008 1,869,127 22.99% 37.99%

Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 20,625,035 6,770,956 61,100,000 13,000,000 20,060,000 (41,040,000) 7,060,000 -67.17% 54.31%
Debt Service .

Principal 313,119 313,119 192,655 192,655 468,184 275,529 275,529 143.02% 143.02%
Interest 22,996 2,203 14,882 14,882 168,158 153,276 153,276 1029.94% 1029.94%
Sub-Total 336,115 315,322 207,537 207,537 636,342 428,805 428,805 206.62% 206.62%

Interfund Transfers & Adjustments 
Capital Contribution 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Expenditures & Uses 25,948,936 11,151,253 66,827,422 18,127,303 27,485,235 (39,342,187) 9,357,932 -58.87% 51.62%
Net Sources or Uses (13,401,376) (2,042,207) 1,410,204 2,149,499 148,209 (1,261,995) (2,001,290) -89.49% -93.10%

Page 92 of 127



PW SOLID WASTE

Public Works - Solid Waste
Sources and Uses

Solid Waste Sources and Uses
2022-23 
Budget 

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 356,000 404,802 373,800 396,705 400,000 26,200 3,295 7.01% 0.83%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 356,000 404,802 373,800 396,705 400,000 26,200 3,295 7.01% 0.83%
Expenditures and Uses

Wages and Benefits 286,834 197,539 237,769 194,890 229,646 (8,123) 34,756 -3.42% 17.83%
Services & Supplies 160,326 124,385 161,172 101,026 184,434 23,262 83,408 14.43% 82.56%
Utilities 1,780 1,767 1,800 1,369 1,600 (200) 231 -11.11% 16.87%
Central Service Cost 41,897 41,897 42,586 689 689 1.64% 1.64%
Sub-Total 448,940 323,691 442,638 339,182 458,266 15,628 119,084 3.53% 35.11%

Capital Outlay 
Capital Improvements 120,000 120,000 120,000

Total Expenditures & Uses 448,940 323,691 442,638 339,182 578,266 135,628 239,084 30.64% 70.49%
Net Sources or Uses (92,940) 81,111 (68,838) 57,523 (178,266) (109,428) (235,789) 158.96% -409.90%

Page 93 of 127



PW TAHOE WATER SUPPLIER'S ASSOCIATION

Public Works - Tahoe Water Supplier's Assoc.
Sources and Uses

TWSA
2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 
Est. Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
Budget to 

Budget
$ Change Est. 
Act to Budget

% Change 
Budget to 

Budget 

% Change 
FY25 Budget 

to Est Act
Revenues

Sales & Fines 160,000 178,720 159,600 159,600 186,188 26,588 26,588 16.66% 16.66%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 160,000 178,720 159,600 159,600 186,188 26,588 26,588 16.66% 16.66%
Expenditures & Uses

Benefits and Wages 62,336 98,996 105,996 105,573 117,140 11,144 11,567 10.51% 10.96%
Services & Supplies 69,600 58,416 59,600 41,843 51,800 (7,800) 9,957 -13.09% 23.80%
Central Service Cost 16,759 16,759 17,034 275 275 1.64% 1.64%
Utilities 200 192 200 200 200 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Total Expenditures & Uses 132,136 157,604 182,555 164,375 186,174 3,619 21,799 1.98% 13.26%
Net Sources or Uses 27,864 21,116 (22,955) (4,775) 14 22,969 4,789 -100.06% -100.29%

Page 94 of 127



COMMUNITY SERVICE NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 20,437,223 20,579,508 22,129,162 20,909,921 21,747,963 (381,199) 838,042 -1.72% 4.01%
Facility Fee 3,692,700 3,911,100 0 0 3,699,152
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 139,875 156,995 116,984 17,085 67,000 (49,984) 49,915 -42.73% 292.16%
Interfund Services 123,002 128,812 14,985 0 0 (14,985) 0 -100.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 24,392,800 24,776,415 22,261,131 20,927,006 25,514,115 3,252,984 4,587,109 14.61% 21.92%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 40,008 153,114 407,900 407,900 0 (407,900) (407,900) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 129,074 131,864 128,950 129,000 128,950 0 (50) 0.00% -0.04%
Capital Grants 1,239,421 1,139,421 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 43,585 0 11,520 0 0 (11,520) 0.00% -100.00%
Operating Contributions 12,100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 43,369 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 1,420,603 1,511,353 536,850 548,420 128,950 (407,900) (419,470) -75.98% -76.49%

Total Revenues & Other Sources 25,813,403 26,287,768 22,797,981 21,475,426 25,643,065 2,845,084 4,167,639 12.48% 19.41%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages and Benefits 11,323,967 11,053,958 10,793,059 11,505,500 12,576,435 1,783,376 1,070,935 16.52% 9.31%
Professional Services 41,425 29,427 40,255 32,235 38,675 (1,580) 6,440 -3.92% 19.98%
Services & Supplies 5,755,092 6,349,111 5,222,389 4,253,100 6,187,355 964,966 1,934,255 18.48% 45.48%
Insurance 427,200 495,552 485,900 611,383 578,937 93,037 (32,446) 19.15% -5.31%
Utilities 1,300,863 1,567,973 1,162,500 1,546,000 1,557,800 395,300 11,800 34.00% 0.76%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 1,808,069 1,726,032 1,692,125 1,230,200 1,755,829 63,704 525,629 3.76% 42.73%
Central Service Cost 1,178,206 1,204,069 1,552,682 1,555,700 1,400,784 (151,898) (154,916) -9.78% -9.96%
Defensible Space 100,000 89,956 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 21,934,822 22,516,078 21,048,911 20,834,118 24,195,815 3,146,904 3,361,698 14.95% 16.14%

Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 6,999,563 3,725,766 2,551,943 2,681,500 3,102,200 550,257 420,700 21.56% 15.69%
Debt Service

Principal 384,705 384,980 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 6,157 1,742 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 390,862 386,722 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% 0.00%

Total Expenditures and Uses 29,325,247 26,628,566 23,600,854 23,516,711 27,298,015 3,697,161 3,781,305 15.67% 16.08%
Net Sources and Uses (3,511,844) (340,798) (802,873) (2,041,285) (1,654,950) (852,077) 386,334 106.13% -18.93%
Beg Fund Balance (Est Act) 11,634,502 9,593,217
Ending Fund Balance 11,634,502 9,593,217 7,938,267

Page 95 of 127



COMMUNITY SERVICES WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE AND MOVE PARKS

Community Services Fund
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 20,437,223 20,579,508 22,129,162 20,909,921 21,811,698 (317,464) 901,777 -1.43% 4.31%
Facility Fee 3,692,700 3,911,100 0 0 3,699,152
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 139,875 156,995 116,984 17,085 89,875 (27,109) 72,790 -23.17% 426.05%
Interfund Services 123,002 128,812 14,985 0 145,903 130,918 145,903 873.66% 0.00%
Sub-Total 24,392,800 24,776,415 22,261,131 20,927,006 25,746,628 3,485,497 4,819,622 15.66% 23.03%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 40,008 153,114 407,900 407,900 0 (407,900) (407,900) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 129,074 131,864 128,950 129,000 128,950 0 (50) 0.00% -0.04%
Capital Grants 1,239,421 1,139,421 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 43,585 0 11,520 0 0 (11,520) 0.00% -100.00%
Operating Contributions 12,100 0 0 0 12,100 12,100 12,100 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 43,369 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 1,420,603 1,511,353 536,850 548,420 141,050 (395,800) (407,370) -73.73% -74.28%

Total Revenues & Other Sources 25,813,403 26,287,768 22,797,981 21,475,426 25,887,678 3,089,697 4,412,252 13.55% 20.55%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages and Benefits 11,323,967 11,053,958 10,793,059 11,505,500 14,692,950 3,899,891 3,187,450 36.13% 27.70%
Professional Services 41,425 29,427 40,255 32,235 38,675 (1,580) 6,440 -3.92% 19.98%
Services & Supplies 5,755,092 6,349,111 5,222,389 4,253,100 6,740,904 1,518,515 2,487,804 29.08% 58.49%
Insurance 427,200 495,552 485,900 611,383 594,536 108,636 (16,847) 22.36% -2.76%
Utilities 1,300,863 1,567,973 1,162,500 1,546,000 1,683,800 521,300 137,800 44.84% 8.91%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 1,808,069 1,726,032 1,692,125 1,230,200 1,755,829 63,704 525,629 3.76% 42.73%
Central Service Cost 1,178,206 1,204,069 1,552,682 1,555,700 1,400,784 (151,898) (154,916) -9.78% -9.96%
Defensible Space 100,000 89,956 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 21,934,822 22,516,078 21,048,911 20,834,118 27,007,478 5,958,567 6,173,360 28.31% 29.63%

Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 6,999,563 3,725,766 2,551,943 2,681,500 3,727,200 1,175,257 1,045,700 46.05% 39.00%
Debt Service

Principal 384,705 384,980 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 6,157 1,742 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% -100.00%
Sub-Total 390,862 386,722 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% -100.00%

Total Expenditures and Uses 29,325,247 26,628,566 23,600,854 23,516,711 30,734,678 7,133,824 7,217,967 30.23% 30.69%
Net Sources and Uses (3,511,844) (340,798) (802,873) (2,041,285) (4,847,000) (4,044,127) (2,805,715) 503.71% 137.45%
Beg Fund Balance (Est Act) 11,634,502 9,593,217
Ending Fund Balance 11,634,502 9,593,217 4,746,217

Page 96 of 127



COMMUNITY SERVICES WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Sales & Fees 20,437,223 20,579,508 22,129,162 20,909,921 21,747,963 (381,199) 838,042 -1.72% 4.01%
Facility Fee 3,692,700 3,911,100 0 0 3,699,152
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 139,875 156,995 116,984 17,085 67,000 (49,984) 49,915 -42.73% 292.16%
Interfund Services 123,002 128,812 14,985 0 0 (14,985) 0 -100.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 24,392,800 24,776,415 22,261,131 20,927,006 25,514,115 3,252,984 4,587,109 14.61% 21.92%

Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 40,008 153,114 407,900 407,900 0 (407,900) (407,900) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 129,074 131,864 128,950 129,000 128,950 0 (50) 0.00% -0.04%
Capital Grants 1,239,421 1,139,421 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 43,585 0 11,520 0 0 (11,520) 0.00% -100.00%
Operating Contributions 12,100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 43,369 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 1,420,603 1,511,353 536,850 548,420 128,950 (407,900) (419,470) -75.98% -76.49%

Total Revenues & Other Sources 25,813,403 26,287,768 22,797,981 21,475,426 25,643,065 2,845,084 4,167,639 12.48% 19.41%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages and Benefits 11,323,967 11,053,958 10,793,059 11,505,500 13,967,444 3,174,385 2,461,944 29.41% 21.40%
Professional Services 41,425 29,427 40,255 32,235 38,675 (1,580) 6,440 -3.92% 19.98%
Services & Supplies 5,755,092 6,349,111 5,222,389 4,253,100 6,187,355 964,966 1,934,255 18.48% 45.48%
Insurance 427,200 495,552 485,900 611,383 578,937 93,037 (32,446) 19.15% -5.31%
Utilities 1,300,863 1,567,973 1,162,500 1,546,000 1,557,800 395,300 11,800 34.00% 0.76%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 1,808,069 1,726,032 1,692,125 1,230,200 1,755,829 63,704 525,629 3.76% 42.73%
Central Service Cost 1,178,206 1,204,069 1,552,682 1,555,700 1,400,784 (151,898) (154,916) -9.78% -9.96%
Defensible Space 100,000 89,956 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 21,934,822 22,516,078 21,048,911 20,834,118 25,586,824 4,537,913 4,752,707 21.56% 22.81%

Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 6,999,563 3,725,766 2,551,943 2,681,500 3,102,200 550,257 420,700 21.56% 15.69%
Debt Service

Principal 384,705 384,980 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 6,157 1,742 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% -100.00%
Sub-Total 390,862 386,722 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% -100.00%

Total Expenditures and Uses 29,325,247 26,628,566 23,600,854 23,516,711 28,689,024 5,088,170 5,172,314 21.56% 21.99%
Net Sources and Uses (3,511,844) (340,798) (802,873) (2,041,285) (3,045,959) (2,243,086) (1,004,675) 279.38% 49.22%
Beg Fund Balance (Est Act) 11,634,502 9,593,217
Ending Fund Balance 11,634,502 9,593,217 6,547,258

Page 97 of 127



CS CHAMPION GOLF NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Championship Golf
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 3,778,822 3,831,915 4,522,308 4,004,200 4,131,784 (390,524) 127,584 -8.64% 3.19%
Facility Fee 520,251 521,513 0 0 717,811 717,811 717,811 100.00% 100.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 11,305 0 1 0 0 (1) 0.00% -100.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 4,299,073 4,364,733 4,522,308 4,004,201 4,849,595 327,287 845,394 7.24% 21.11%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (2,748) (6,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 21,850 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (2,748) 15,850 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 4,296,325 4,380,583 4,522,308 4,004,201 4,849,595 327,287 845,394 7.24% 21.11%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 1,992,829 2,050,351 2,117,359 2,320,200 2,333,985 216,626 13,785 10.23% 0.59%
Professional Services 6,380 4,960 6,380 1,035 3,150 (3,230) 2,115 -50.63% 204.35%
Services & Supplies 1,078,693 705,477 1,076,359 724,800 1,183,214 106,855 458,414 9.93% 63.25%
Insurance 81,800 88,080 96,300 103,884 114,890 18,590 11,006 19.30% 10.59%
Utilities 252,595 260,885 268,100 293,300 312,100 44,000 18,800 16.41% 6.41%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 615,505 725,193 598,955 354,000 619,755 20,800 265,755 3.47% 75.07%
Central Service Cost 231,348 232,561 334,174 335,000 291,065 (43,109) (43,935) -12.90% -13.11%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 4,259,150 4,067,507 4,497,627 4,132,219 4,858,159 360,532 725,940 8.02% 17.57%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 1,281,417 773,706 229,500 229,500 337,000 107,500 107,500 46.84% 46.84%
Debt Service
Principal 183,496 183,496 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 2,055 1,586 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% -100.00%
Sub-total 185,551 185,082 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% -100.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 5,726,118 5,026,295 4,727,127 4,362,812 5,195,159 468,032 832,347 9.90% 19.08%
Net Sources and Uses (1,429,793) (645,712) (204,819) (358,611) (345,564) (140,745) 13,047 68.72% -3.64%

Page 98 of 127



CS CHAMPION GOLF WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Championship Golf
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 3,778,822 3,831,915 4,522,308 2,993,900 4,131,784 (390,524) 1,137,884 -8.64% 38.01%
Facility Fee 520,251 521,513 0 0 718,107 718,107 718,107 100.00% 100.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 11,305 0 1 0 0 (1) 0.00% -100.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 4,299,073 4,364,733 4,522,308 2,993,901 4,849,891 327,583 1,855,990 7.24% 61.99%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (2,748) (6,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 21,850 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (2,748) 15,850 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 4,296,325 4,380,583 4,522,308 2,993,901 4,849,891 327,583 1,855,990 7.24% 61.99%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 1,992,829 2,050,351 2,117,359 2,320,200 2,525,016 407,657 204,816 19.25% 8.83%
Professional Services 6,380 4,960 6,380 1,035 7,830 1,450 6,795 22.73% 656.52%
Services & Supplies 1,078,693 705,477 1,076,359 723,600 1,183,214 106,855 459,614 9.93% 63.52%
Insurance 81,800 88,080 96,300 103,884 114,890 18,590 11,006 19.30% 10.59%
Utilities 252,595 260,885 268,100 293,300 312,100 44,000 18,800 16.41% 6.41%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 615,505 725,193 598,955 354,000 619,755 20,800 265,755 3.47% 75.07%
Central Service Cost 231,348 232,561 334,174 335,000 292,900 (41,274) (42,100) -12.35% -12.57%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 4,259,150 4,067,507 4,497,627 4,131,019 5,055,705 558,078 924,686 12.41% 22.38%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 1,281,417 773,706 229,500 229,500 337,000 107,500 107,500 46.84% 46.84%
Debt Service
Principal 183,496 183,496 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 2,055 1,586 0 1093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% -100.00%
Sub-total 185,551 185,082 0 1,093 0 0 (1,093) 0.00% -100.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 5,726,118 5,026,295 4,727,127 4,361,612 5,392,705 665,578 1,031,093 14.08% 23.64%
Net Sources and Uses (1,429,793) (645,712) (204,819) (1,367,711) (542,814) (337,995) 824,897 165.02% -60.31%

Page 99 of 127



CS MOUNTAIN GOLF NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Mountain Golf
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 1,004,338 831,033 1,132,212 1,090,800 1,108,375 (23,837) 17,575 -2.11% 1.61%
Facility Fee 1,139,874 1,142,639 0 0 272,455 272,455 272,455 100.00% 100.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,144,212 1,973,672 1,132,212 1,090,800 1,380,830 248,618 290,030 21.96% 26.59%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (2,748) (6,000) 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 43,989 42,130 44,383 44,400 44,383 0 (17) 0.00% -0.04%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 9,880 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 12,069 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 41,241 58,079 44,383 44,400 44,383 0 (17) 0.00% -0.04%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 2,185,453 2,031,751 1,176,595 1,135,200 1,425,213 248,618 290,013 21.13% 25.55%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 663,122 534,941 564,276 624,900 728,590 164,314 103,690 29.12% 16.59%
Professional Services 2,570 1,880 2,570 1,100 4,220 1,650 3,120 64.20% 283.64%
Services & Supplies 399,290 285,077 381,680 370,500 457,442 75,762 86,942 19.85% 23.47%
Insurance 18,800 20,265 22,100 23,841 22,933 833 (908) 3.77% -3.81%
Utilities 98,346 102,103 108,300 114,900 122,600 14,300 7,700 13.20% 6.70%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 113,366 124,234 108,100 98,000 113,266 5,166 15,266 4.78% 15.58%
Central Service Cost 77,236 70,989 107,057 108,000 93,757 (13,300) (14,243) -12.42% -13.19%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,372,730 1,139,489 1,294,083 1,341,241 1,542,808 248,725 201,568 19.22% 15.03%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 1,138,000 128,215 260,000 460,000 13,000 (247,000) (447,000) -95.00% -97.17%
Debt Service
Principal 0 131 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 1,874 156 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,874 287 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 2,512,604 1,267,991 1,554,083 1,801,241 1,555,808 1,725 (245,432) 0.11% -13.63%
Net Sources and Uses (327,151) 763,760 (377,488) (666,041) (130,595) 246,893 535,445 -65.40% -80.39%

Page 100 of 127



CS MOUNTAIN GOLF WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Mountain Golf
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget 2022-23 Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 1,004,338 831,033 1,132,212 1,090,800 1,108,375 (23,837) 17,575 -2.11% 1.61%
Facility Fee 1,139,874 1,142,639 0 0 272,751 272,751 272,751 0.00% 0.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,144,212 1,973,672 1,132,212 1,090,800 1,381,126 248,914 290,326 21.98% 26.62%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (2,748) (6,000) 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 43,989 42,130 44,383 44,400 44,383 0 (17) 0.00% -0.04%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 9,880 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 12,069 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 41,241 58,079 44,383 44,400 44,383 0 (17) 0.00% -0.04%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 2,185,453 2,031,751 1,176,595 1,135,200 1,425,509 248,914 290,309 21.16% 25.57%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 663,122 534,941 564,276 624,900 808,828 244,552 183,928 43.34% 29.43%
Professional Services 2,570 1,880 2,570 1,100 4,220 1,650 3,120 64.20% 283.64%
Services & Supplies 399,290 285,077 381,680 370,500 457,442 75,762 86,942 19.85% 23.47%
Insurance 18,800 20,265 22,100 23,841 22,933 833 (908) 3.77% -3.81%
Utilities 98,346 102,103 108,300 114,900 122,600 14,300 7,700 13.20% 6.70%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 113,366 124,234 108,100 98,000 113,266 5,166 15,266 4.78% 15.58%
Central Service Cost 77,236 70,989 107,057 108,000 96,631 (10,426) (11,369) -9.74% -10.53%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,372,730 1,139,489 1,294,083 1,341,241 1,625,920 331,837 284,680 25.64% 21.23%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 1,138,000 128,215 260,000 460,000 13,000 (247,000) (447,000) -95.00% -97.17%
Debt Service
Principal 0 131 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 1,874 156 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,874 287 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 2,512,604 1,267,991 1,554,083 1,801,241 1,638,920 84,837 (162,320) 5.46% -9.01%
Net Sources and Uses (327,151) 763,760 (377,488) (666,041) (213,411) 164,077 452,629 -43.47% -67.96%

Page 101 of 127



CS FACILITES NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Facilities
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 2,117,586 1,623,836 1,942,550 1,270,500 1,830,429 (112,121) 559,929 -5.77% 44.07%
Facility Fee 187,130 187,584 0 0 201,394 201,394 201,394 100.00% 100.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,304,716 1,811,420 1,942,550 1,270,500 2,031,823 89,273 761,323 4.60% 59.92%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (180) (857) 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (180) (857) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 2,304,536 1,810,563 1,942,550 1,270,500 2,031,823 89,273 761,323 4.60% 59.92%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 773,006 720,225 817,256 902,100 815,529 (1,727) (86,571) -0.21% -9.60%
Professional Services 1,170 980 1,170 0 1,170 0 1,170 0.00% 100.00%
Services & Supplies 577,245 391,465 415,518 286,800 609,444 193,926 322,644 46.67% 112.50%
Insurance 12,800 13,812 15,100 16,289 3,534 (11,566) (12,755) -76.60% -78.30%
Utilities 56,129 75,403 59,700 70,400 79,800 20,100 9,400 33.67% 13.35%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 464,700 367,475 427,100 304,800 419,100 (8,000) 114,300 -1.87% 37.50%
Central Service Cost 106,807 97,040 139,878 140,000 125,556 (14,322) (14,444) -10.24% -10.32%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,991,857 1,666,400 1,875,721 1,720,389 2,054,133 178,411 333,744 9.51% 19.40%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 20,000 55,942 12,000 12,000 75,000 63,000 63,000 525.00% 525.00%
Debt Service
Principal 175,168 175,292 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 1,962 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 177,130 175,292 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 2,188,987 1,897,634 1,887,721 1,732,389 2,129,133 241,411 396,744 12.79% 22.90%
Net Sources and Uses 115,549 (87,071) 54,829 (461,889) (97,310) (152,138) 364,579 -277.48% -78.93%

Page 102 of 127



CS FACILITES WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Facilities
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 2,117,586 1,623,836 1,942,550 1,270,500 1,830,429 (112,121) 559,929 -5.77% 44.07%
Facility Fee 187,130 187,584 0 0 201,394 201,394 201,394 100.00% 100.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,304,716 1,811,420 1,942,550 1,270,500 2,031,823 89,273 761,323 4.60% 59.92%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (180) (857) 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (180) (857) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 2,304,536 1,810,563 1,942,550 1,270,500 2,031,823 89,273 761,323 4.60% 59.92%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 773,006 720,225 817,256 902,100 902,293 85,037 193 10.41% 0.02%
Professional Services 1,170 980 1,170 0 1,170 0 1,170 0.00% 0.00%
Services & Supplies 577,245 391,465 415,518 286,800 609,444 193,926 322,644 46.67% 112.50%
Insurance 12,800 13,812 15,100 16,289 3,534 (11,566) (12,755) -76.60% -78.30%
Utilities 56,129 75,403 59,700 70,400 79,800 20,100 9,400 33.67% 13.35%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 464,700 367,475 427,100 304,800 419,100 (8,000) 114,300 -1.87% 37.50%
Central Service Cost 106,807 97,040 139,878 140,000 126,904 (12,974) (13,096) -9.28% -9.35%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,991,857 1,666,400 1,875,721 1,720,389 2,142,245 266,523 421,856 14.21% 24.52%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 20,000 55,942 12,000 12,000 75,000 63,000 63,000 525.00% 525.00%
Debt Service
Principal 175,168 175,292 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 1,962 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 177,130 175,292 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 2,188,987 1,897,634 1,887,721 1,732,389 2,217,245 329,523 484,856 17.46% 27.99%
Net Sources and Uses 115,549 (87,071) 54,829 (461,889) (185,422) (240,250) 276,467 -438.19% -59.86%

Page 103 of 127



CS SKI NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Ski
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget 2022-23 Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget
$ Chg FY25 Budget 

to FY24 Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 12,090,998 12,832,272 12,813,368 12,813,400 12,943,750 130,382 130,350 1.02% 1.02%
Facility Fee 842,769 844,813 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 3,415 0 100 0 0 (100) 0.00% -100.00%
Interfund Services 15,735 0 14,985 0 0 (14,985) 0 -100.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 12,949,502 13,680,500 12,828,353 12,813,500 12,943,750 115,397 130,250 0.90% 1.02%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 21,324 111,078 180,400 180,400 0 (180,400) (180,400) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 85,085 89,734 84,567 84,600 84,567 0 (33) 0.00% -0.04%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 2,260 0 11,520 0 0 (11,520) 0.00% -100.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 31,300 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 106,409 234,372 264,967 276,520 84,567 (180,400) (191,953) -68.08% -69.42%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 13,055,911 13,914,872 13,093,320 13,090,020 13,028,317 (65,003) (61,703) -0.50% -0.47%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 5,235,732 5,055,316 5,200,828 5,300,000 6,022,786 821,958 722,786 15.80% 13.64%
Professional Services 23,700 16,217 23,700 30,100 23,700 0 (6,400) 0.00% -21.26%
Services & Supplies 2,386,206 2,883,331 2,362,982 2,175,700 2,959,893 596,911 784,193 25.26% 36.04%
Insurance 234,500 283,200 276,100 301,311 371,168 95,068 69,857 34.43% 23.18%
Utilities 641,435 813,623 573,200 870,000 812,000 238,800 (58,000) 41.66% -6.67%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 558,200 478,282 513,550 460,000 574,300 60,750 114,300 11.83% 24.85%
Central Service Cost 524,073 559,388 720,649 720,700 667,562 (53,087) (53,138) -7.37% -7.37%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 9,603,846 10,089,357 9,671,009 9,857,811 11,431,409 1,760,400 1,573,598 18.20% 15.96%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 2,035,616 539,140 1,780,443 1,950,000 1,425,000 (355,443) (525,000) -19.96% -26.92%
Debt Service
Principal 19,550 19,565 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 219 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 19,769 19,565 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 11,659,231 10,648,062 11,451,452 11,807,811 12,856,409 1,404,957 1,048,598 12.27% 8.88%
Net Sources and Uses 1,396,680 3,266,810 1,641,868 1,282,209 171,908 (1,469,960) (1,110,301) -89.53% -86.59%

Page 104 of 127



CS SKI WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Ski
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget
$ Chg FY25 Budget 

to FY24 Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 12,090,998 12,832,727 12,813,368 12,813,400 12,943,750 130,382 130,350 1.02% 1.02%
Facility Fee 842,769 844,813 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 3,415 0 100 0 0 (100) 0.00% -100.00%
Interfund Services 15,735 0 14,985 0 0 (14,985) 0 -100.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 12,949,502 13,680,955 12,828,353 12,813,500 12,943,750 115,397 130,250 0.90% 1.02%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 21,324 111,078 180,400 180,400 0 (180,400) (180,400) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 85,085 89,734 84,567 84,600 84,567 0 (33) 0.00% -0.04%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 2,260 0 11,520 0 0 (11,520) 0.00% -100.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 31,300 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 106,409 234,372 264,967 276,520 84,567 (180,400) (191,953) -68.08% -69.42%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 13,055,911 13,915,327 13,093,320 13,090,020 13,028,317 (65,003) (61,703) -0.50% -0.47%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 5,235,732 5,055,316 5,200,828 5,300,000 6,507,059 1,306,231 1,207,059 25.12% 22.77%
Professional Services 23,700 16,217 23,700 30,100 23,700 0 (6,400) 0.00% -21.26%
Services & Supplies 2,386,206 2,883,331 2,362,982 2,175,700 2,959,893 596,911 784,193 25.26% 36.04%
Insurance 234,500 283,200 276,100 301,311 371,168 95,068 69,857 34.43% 23.18%
Utilities 641,435 813,623 573,200 870,000 812,000 238,800 (58,000) 41.66% -6.67%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 558,200 478,282 513,550 460,000 574,300 60,750 114,300 11.83% 24.85%
Central Service Cost 524,073 559,388 720,649 720,700 671,804 (48,845) (48,896) -6.78% -6.78%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 9,603,846 10,089,357 9,671,009 9,857,811 11,919,924 2,248,915 2,062,113 23.25% 20.92%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 2,035,616 539,140 1,780,443 1,950,000 1,425,000 (355,443) (525,000) -19.96% -26.92%
Debt Service
Principal 19,550 19,565 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 219 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 19,769 19,565 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 11,659,231 10,648,062 11,451,452 11,807,811 13,344,924 1,893,472 1,537,113 16.53% 13.02%
Net Sources and Uses 1,396,680 3,267,265 1,641,868 1,282,209 (316,607) (1,958,475) (1,598,816) -119.28% -124.69%

Page 105 of 127



CS RECREATION NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Recreation
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget
$ Chg FY25 Budget 

to FY24 Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 1,476,890 1,389,450 1,447,233 1,402,000 1,445,719 (1,514) 43,719 -0.10% 3.12%
Facility Fee 173,229 173,649 0 0 2,183,604 2,183,604 2,183,604 0.00% 0.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 117,000 117,000 116,984 16,984 67,000 (49,984) 50,016 -42.73% 294.49%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,767,119 1,680,099 1,564,217 1,418,984 3,696,323 2,132,106 2,277,339 136.30% 160.49%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 1,020 (7,439) 8,600 8,600 0 (8,600) (8,600) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 1,139,421 1,139,421 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 9,595 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,140,441 1,141,577 8,600 8,600 0 (8,600) (8,600) -100.00% -100.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 2,907,560 2,821,676 1,572,817 1,427,584 3,696,323 2,123,506 2,268,739 135.01% 158.92%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 1,675,676 1,628,429 1,627,354 1,739,600 2,059,669 432,315 320,069 26.57% 18.40%
Professional Services 5,850 4,900 5,850 0 5,850 0 5,850 0.00% 0.00%
Services & Supplies 638,361 1,695,265 680,560 500,700 786,572 106,012 285,872 15.58% 57.09%
Insurance 60,900 70,382 71,700 161,096 64,512 (7,188) (96,584) -10.03% -59.95%
Utilities 122,956 175,963 133,200 179,700 211,900 78,700 32,200 59.08% 17.92%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 45,720 16,368 33,620 9,700 21,800 (11,820) 12,100 -35.16% 124.74%
Central Service Cost 141,787 138,176 196,248 197,000 177,789 (18,459) (19,211) -9.41% -9.75%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,691,250 3,729,483 2,748,532 2,787,796 3,328,092 579,560 540,296 21.09% 19.38%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 2,227,168 2,073,426 245,000 5,000 1,252,200 1,007,200 1,247,200 411.10% 24944.00%
Debt Service
Principal 2,229 2,231 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,229 2,231 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 4,920,647 5,805,140 2,993,532 2,792,796 4,580,292 1,586,760 1,787,496 53.01% 64.00%
Net Sources and Uses (2,013,087) (2,983,464) (1,420,715) (1,365,212) (883,969) 536,746 481,243 -37.78% -35.25%

Page 106 of 127



CS RECREATION WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Recreation
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 1,476,890 1,389,450 1,447,233 1,402,000 1,445,719 (1,514) 43,719 -0.10% 3.12%
Facility Fee 173,229 173,649 0 0 2,183,604 2,183,604 2,183,604 0.00% 0.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 117,000 117,000 116,984 16,984 67,000 (49,984) 50,016 -42.73% 294.49%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,767,119 1,680,099 1,564,217 1,418,984 3,696,323 2,132,106 2,277,339 136.30% 160.49%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 1,020 (7,439) 8,600 8,600 0 (8,600) (8,600) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 1,139,421 1,139,421 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 9,595 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,140,441 1,141,577 8,600 8,600 0 (8,600) (8,600) -100.00% -100.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 2,907,560 2,821,676 1,572,817 1,427,584 3,696,323 2,123,506 2,268,739 135.01% 158.92%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 1,675,676 1,628,429 1,627,354 1,739,600 2,216,572 589,218 476,972 36.21% 27.42%
Professional Services 5,850 4,900 5,850 0 5,850 0 5,850 0.00% 0.00%
Services & Supplies 638,361 1,695,265 680,560 500,700 786,572 106,012 285,872 15.58% 57.09%
Insurance 60,900 70,382 71,700 161,096 64,512 (7,188) (96,584) -10.03% -59.95%
Utilities 122,956 175,963 133,200 179,700 211,900 78,700 32,200 59.08% 17.92%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 45,720 16,368 33,620 9,700 21,800 (11,820) 12,100 -35.16% 124.74%
Central Service Cost 141,787 138,176 196,248 197,000 183,515 (12,733) (13,485) -6.49% -6.85%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,691,250 3,729,483 2,748,532 2,787,796 3,490,721 742,189 702,925 27.00% 25.21%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 2,227,168 2,073,426 245,000 5,000 1,432,200 1,187,200 1,427,200 484.57% 28544.00%
Debt Service
Principal 2,229 2,231 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,229 2,231 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 4,920,647 5,805,140 2,993,532 2,792,796 4,922,921 1,929,389 2,130,125 64.45% 76.27%
Net Sources and Uses (2,013,087) (2,983,464) (1,420,715) (1,365,212) (1,226,598) 194,117 138,614 -13.66% -10.15%

Page 107 of 127



COMMUNITY SERVICES RECREATION ADMIN NO WAGE ALLOCATION UPDATE

Community Services Fund - Recreation Admin
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees (272,975) (385,497) 35,000 36,221 57,000 22,000 20,779 62.86% 57.37%
Facility Fee 754,952 966,226 0 0 205,400 205,400 205,400 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total 481,977 580,729 35,000 36,221 262,400 227,400 226,179 649.71% 624.44%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 25,872 69,331 218,900 218,900 0 (218,900) (218,900) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total 25,872 69,331 218,900 218,900 0 (218,900) (218,900) -100.00% -100.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 507,849 650,060 253,900 255,121 262,400 8,500 7,279 3.35% 2.85%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 287,961 247,624 277,078 325,300 334,240 57,162 8,940 20.63% 2.75%
Professional Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Services & Supplies 171,445 94,213 110,815 88,100 70,040 (40,775) (18,060) -36.80% -20.50%
Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Utilities 5,531 5,507 5,900 3,100 3,800 (2,100) 700 -35.59% 22.58%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Central Service Cost 20,649 24,020 26,818 27,000 22,755 (4,063) (4,245) -15.15% -15.72%
Defensible Space 100,000 89,956 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total 585,586 461,320 520,611 543,500 530,835 10,224 (12,665) 1.96% -2.33%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 0 2,717 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Debt Service
Principal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Expenditures and Uses 585,586 464,037 520,611 543,500 530,835 10,224 (12,665) 1.96% -2.33%
Net Sources and Uses (77,737) 186,023 (266,711) (288,379) (268,435) (1,724) 19,944 0.65% -6.92%

Page 108 of 127



Community Services Fund - Recreation Admin
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
Budget to 

Budget
$ FY25 Budget 

to Est. Act

% Change 
Budget to 

Budget 

% Change 
Est. Actual 

to FY25
Revenues
Sales & Fees (272,975) (385,497) 35,000 36,221 57,000 22,000 20,779 62.86% 57.37%
Facility Fee 754,952 966,226 0 0 205,400 205,400 205,400 0.00% 0.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total 481,977 580,729 35,000 36,221 262,400 227,400 226,179 649.71% 624.44%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 25,872 69,331 218,900 218,900 0 (218,900) (218,900) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total 25,872 69,331 218,900 218,900 0 (218,900) (218,900) -100.00% -100.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 507,849 650,060 253,900 255,121 262,400 8,500 7,279 3.35% 2.85%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 287,961 247,624 277,078 325,300 503,579 226,501 178,279 81.75% 54.80%
Professional Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Services & Supplies 171,445 94,213 110,815 88,100 70,040 (40,775) (18,060) -36.80% -20.50%
Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Utilities 5,531 5,507 5,900 3,100 3,800 (2,100) 700 -35.59% 22.58%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Central Service Cost 20,649 24,020 26,818 27,000 22,606 (4,212) (4,394) -15.71% -16.27%
Defensible Space 100,000 89,956 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total 585,586 461,320 520,611 543,500 700,025 179,414 156,525 34.46% 28.80%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 0 2,717 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Debt Service
Principal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Expenditures and Uses 585,586 464,037 520,611 543,500 700,025 179,414 156,525 34.46% 28.80%
Net Sources and Uses (77,737) 186,023 (266,711) (288,379) (437,625) (170,914) (149,246) 64.08% 51.75%

Page 109 of 127



C.S - Tennis - No Wage Allocation Update 

Community Services Fund - Tennis
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to 

FY24 Est. Act

% Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget 

% Change 
FY25 

Budget to 
FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 178,449 302,537 236,491 292,800 230,906 (5,585) (61,894) -2.36% -21.14%
Facility Fee 1,304 1,307 0 0 118,488 118,488 118,488 0.00% 0.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 179,753 303,844 236,491 292,800 349,394 112,903 56,594 47.74% 19.33%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (2,352) (5,983) 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (2,352) (5,983) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 177,401 297,861 236,491 292,800 349,394 112,903 56,594 47.74% 19.33%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 163,471 233,947 188,909 293,400 239,178 50,269 (54,222) 26.61% -18.48%
Professional Services 585 490 585 0 585 0 585 0.00% 0.00%
Services & Supplies 92,960 87,471 194,475 106,500 120,750 (73,725) 14,250 -37.91% 13.38%
Insurance 3,900 4,189 4,600 4,962 1,900 (2,700) (3,062) -58.70% -61.71%
Utilities 11,780 13,836 14,100 14,600 15,600 1,500 1,000 10.64% 6.85%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 10,578 14,480 10,800 3,700 7,608 (3,192) 3,908 -29.56% 105.62%
Central Service Cost 15,496 21,463 27,858 28,000 22,300 (5,558) (5,700) -19.95% -20.36%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 298,770 375,876 441,327 451,162 407,921 (33,406) (43,241) -7.57% -9.58%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 0 0 25,000 25,000 0 (25,000) (25,000) -100.00% -100.00%
Debt Service
Principal 1,290 1,291 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,304 1,291 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 300,074 377,167 466,327 476,162 407,921 (58,406) (68,241) -12.52% -14.33%
Net Sources and Uses (122,673) (79,306) (229,836) (183,362) (58,527) 171,309 124,835 -74.54% -68.08%

Page 110 of 127



C.S - Tennis - Wage Allocation Update 

Community Services Fund - Tennis
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
Budget to 

Budget
$ FY25 Budget 

to Est. Act

% Change 
Budget to 

Budget 

% Change 
Est. Actual 

to FY25
Revenues
Sales & Fees 178,449 302,537 236,491 292,800 230,906 (5,585) (61,894) -2.36% -21.14%
Facility Fee 1,304 1,307 0 0 118,488 118,488 118,488 0.00% 0.00%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 179,753 303,844 236,491 292,800 349,394 112,903 56,594 47.74% 19.33%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings (2,352) (5,983) 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (2,352) (5,983) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 177,401 297,861 236,491 292,800 349,394 112,903 56,594 47.74% 19.33%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 163,471 233,947 188,909 293,400 281,636 92,727 (11,764) 49.09% -4.01%
Professional Services 585 490 585 0 585 0 585 0.00% 0.00%
Services & Supplies 92,960 87,471 194,475 106,500 120,750 (73,725) 14,250 -37.91% 13.38%
Insurance 3,900 4,189 4,600 4,962 1,900 (2,700) (3,062) -58.70% -61.71%
Utilities 11,780 13,836 14,100 14,600 15,600 1,500 1,000 10.64% 6.85%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 10,578 14,480 10,800 3,700 7,608 (3,192) 3,908 -29.56% 105.62%
Central Service Cost 15,496 21,463 27,858 28,000 22,300 (5,558) (5,700) -19.95% -20.36%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 298,770 375,876 441,327 451,162 450,379 9,052 (783) 2.05% -0.17%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 0 0 25,000 25,000 0 (25,000) (25,000) -100.00% -100.00%
Debt Service
Principal 1,290 1,291 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 1,304 1,291 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 300,074 377,167 466,327 476,162 450,379 (15,948) (25,783) -3.42% -5.41%
Net Sources and Uses (122,673) (79,306) (229,836) (183,362) (100,985) 128,851 82,377 -56.06% -44.93%

Page 111 of 127



Beach Fund - No Wage Allocation Update 

Beach Fund
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to 

FY24 Est. Act

% Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget 

% Change 
FY25 

Budget to 
FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 623,890 616,642 1,297,900 1,275,000 1,047,200 (250,700) (227,800) -19.32% -17.87%
Facility Fee 2,556,840 2,909,434 3,525,340 3,525,340 2,561,460 (963,880) (963,880) -27.34% -27.34%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 3,180,730 3,526,076 4,823,240 4,800,340 3,608,660 (1,214,580) (1,191,680) -25.18% -24.82%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 11,400 63,791 96,400 96,400 0 (96,400) (96,400) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 11,400 63,791 96,400 96,400 0 (96,400) (96,400) -100.00% -100.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 3,192,130 3,589,867 4,919,640 4,896,740 3,608,660 (1,310,980) (1,288,080) -26.65% -26.30%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 1,190,505 1,274,803 1,162,001 1,513,400 1,624,748 462,747 111,348 39.82% 7.36%
Professional Services 17,850 4,900 17,850 400 12,000 (5,850) 11,600 -32.77% 2900.00%
Services & Supplies 904,504 452,357 660,004 466,300 696,716 36,712 230,416 5.56% 49.41%
Insurance 41,300 44,493 48,600 52,428 32,211 (16,389) (20,217) -33.72% -38.56%
Utilities 128,817 150,943 113,100 152,000 168,800 55,700 16,800 49.25% 11.05%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 0 244 106,480 70,200 91,300 (15,180) 21,100 -14.26% 30.06%
Central Service Cost 141,194 127,085 179,688 180,000 164,569 (15,119) (15,431) -8.41% -8.57%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,424,169 2,054,825 2,287,723 2,434,728 2,790,344 502,622 355,616 21.97% 14.61%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 890,128 213,932 4,442,500 100,000 2,510,000 (1,932,500) 2,410,000 -43.50% 2410.00%
Debt Service
Principal 6,295 6,299 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 6,365 6,299 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 3,320,662 2,275,056 6,730,223 2,534,728 5,300,344 (1,429,879) 2,765,616 -21.25% 109.11%
Net Sources and Uses (128,532) 1,314,811 (1,810,583) 2,362,012 (1,691,684) 118,899 (4,053,696) -6.57% -171.62%
Beg Balance 6,964,238 9,326,250
Ending Balance 6,964,238 9,326,250 7,634,566

Page 112 of 127



Beach Fund - Wage Allocation Update 

Beach Fund
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to 

FY24 Est. Act

% Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget 

% Change 
FY25 

Budget to 
FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues
Sales & Fees 623,890 616,642 1,297,900 1,275,000 1,047,200 (250,700) (227,800) -19.32% -17.87%
Facility Fee 2,556,840 2,909,434 3,525,340 3,525,340 2,561,460 (963,880) (963,880) -27.34% -27.34%
Intergovernmental - Operating Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interfund Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 3,180,730 3,526,076 4,823,240 4,800,340 3,608,660 (1,214,580) (1,191,680) -25.18% -24.82%
Other Financing Sources
Investment Earnings 11,400 63,791 96,400 96,400 0 (96,400) (96,400) -100.00% -100.00%
Insurance Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Non Operating Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Proceeds from capital assets dispositions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Operating Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Other Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 11,400 63,791 96,400 96,400 0 (96,400) (96,400) -100.00% -100.00%
Total Revenues & Other Sources 3,192,130 3,589,867 4,919,640 4,896,740 3,608,660 (1,310,980) (1,288,080) -26.65% -26.30%
Expenditures & Uses
Wages and Benefits 1,190,505 1,274,803 1,162,001 1,513,400 1,780,706 618,705 267,306 53.24% 17.66%
Professional Services 17,850 4,900 17,850 400 17,850 0 17,450 0.00% 4362.50%
Services & Supplies 904,504 452,357 660,004 466,300 696,716 36,712 230,416 5.56% 49.41%
Insurance 41,300 44,493 48,600 52,428 32,211 (16,389) (20,217) -33.72% -38.56%
Utilities 128,817 150,943 113,100 152,000 168,800 55,700 16,800 49.25% 11.05%
Cost of Goods & Services Sold 0 244 106,480 70,200 91,300 (15,180) 21,100 -14.26% 30.06%
Central Service Cost 141,194 127,085 179,688 180,000 166,761 (12,927) (13,239) -7.19% -7.36%
Defensible Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 2,424,169 2,054,825 2,287,723 2,434,728 2,954,344 666,622 519,616 29.14% 21.34%
Capital Expenditures
Capital Improvements 890,128 213,932 4,442,500 100,000 2,510,000 (1,932,500) 2,410,000 -43.50% 2410.00%
Debt Service
Principal 6,295 6,299 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Interest 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total 6,365 6,299 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Total Expenditures and Uses 3,320,662 2,275,056 6,730,223 2,534,728 5,464,344 (1,265,879) 2,929,616 -18.81% 115.58%
Net Sources and Uses (128,532) 1,314,811 (1,810,583) 2,362,012 (1,855,684) (45,102) (4,217,696) 2.49% -178.56%
Beg Balance 6,964,238 9,326,250
Ending Balance 6,964,238 9,326,250 7,470,566

Page 113 of 127



INTERNAL SERVICES FUND

Intenal Services Fund Summary
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget 

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 
Est. Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 

Est Act
Revenues

Interfund Services 3,467,103 2,833,010 3,584,623 3,239,106 4,828,714 1,244,091 1,589,608 34.71% 49.08%
Other Financing Sources

Investment Earnings (456) (263) 0
Total Revenues & Other Sources 3,466,647 2,832,747 3,584,623 3,239,106 4,828,714 1,244,091 1,589,608 34.71% 49.08%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages and Benefits 2,440,427 2,217,480 2,494,197 2,531,800 3,287,475 793,278 755,675 31.80% 29.85%
Professional Services 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 15,000 0.00%
Services & Supplies 959,912 1,036,636 973,509 955,400 1,510,765 537,256 555,365 55.19% 58.13%
Insurance 16,600 17,888 19,500 21,036 176 (19,324) (20,860) -99.10% -99.16%
Utilities 9,910 12,971 9,700 9,700 12,100 2,400 2,400 24.74% 24.74%
Central Service Cost 52,700 (52,700) 0 -100.00%

Sub-Total Expenditures and Uses 3,441,849 3,284,975 3,564,606 3,517,936 4,825,516 1,260,910 1,307,580 35.37% 37.17%
Capital Outlay 

Capital Improvement 458
Total Expenditures & Uses 3,441,849 3,284,975 3,564,606 3,518,394 4,825,516 1,260,910 1,307,122 35.37% 37.15%
Net Sources or Uses 24,798 (452,228) 20,017 (279,288) 3,198 (16,819) 282,486 -84.02% -101.15%

Page 114 of 127



Fleet - Internal Services 

Internal Services Fund - Fleet
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget 

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 Est. 
Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget
$ Chg FY25 Budget 

to FY24 Est. Act

% Change FY24 
Budget to FY25 

Budget 

% Change FY25 
Budget to FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues

Interfund Services 1,463,650 1,294,283 1,564,777 1,661,906 1,765,114 200,337 103,208 12.80% 6.21%
Other Financing Sources

Investment Earnings 108 698
Other   253

Total Revenues & Other Sources 1,463,758 1,294,981 1,564,777 1,661,906 1,765,114 200,337 103,208 12.80% 6.21%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages and Benefits 988,044 890,528 1,058,405 1,035,700 1,187,602 129,197 151,902 12.21% 14.67%
Professional Services 0 0 0.00%
Services & Supplies 467,560 520,085 474,650 532,800 576,900 102,250 44,100 21.54% 8.28%
Insurance 5,900 6,340 6,900 7,443 0 (6,900) (7,443) -100.00% -100.00%
Utilities 1,809 1,653 1,700 1,200 1,600 (100) 400 -5.88% 33.33%
Central Service Cost 52,700 0 0 (52,700) 0 -100.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total Expenditures and Uses 1,463,313 1,418,606 1,594,355 1,577,143 1,766,102 171,747 188,959 10.77% 11.98%
Capital Outlay 

Capital Improvement
Total Expenditures & Uses 1,463,313 1,418,606 1,594,355 1,577,143 1,766,102 171,747 188,959 10.77% 11.98%
Net Sources or Uses 445 (123,625) (29,578) 84,763 (988) 28,590 (85,751) -96.66% -101.17%

Page 115 of 127



Engineering - Internal Services 

Internal Services Fund - Engineering
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 
Est. Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to 
FY24 Est. 

Act

% Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget 

% Change 
FY25 

Budget to 
FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues

Interfund Services 1,018,807 954,488 1,015,200 898,000 1,380,600 365,400 482,600 35.99% 53.74%
Other Financing Sources

Investment Earnings 216 (284)
Other   

Total Revenues & Other Sources 1,019,023 954,204 1,015,200 898,000 1,380,600 365,400 482,600 35.99% 53.74%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages and Benefits 924,730 916,267 913,987 991,700 1,301,143 387,156 309,443 42.36% 31.20%
Professional Services 15,000 0 15,000 0 15,000 0 15,000 0.00%
Services & Supplies 62,461 74,248 45,864 44,600 57,782 11,918 13,182 25.99% 29.56%
Insurance 4,400 4,755 5,200 5,610 46 (5,154) (5,564) -99.12% -99.18%
Utilities 2,936 6,159 3,300 5,400 6,600 3,300 1,200 100.00% 22.22%

Sub-Total Expenditures and Uses 1,009,527 1,001,429 983,351 1,047,310 1,380,571 397,220 333,261 40.39% 31.82%
Capital Outlay 

Capital Improvement (230)
Total Expenditures & Uses 1,009,527 1,001,429 983,351 1,047,080 1,380,571 397,220 333,491 40.39% 31.85%
Net Sources or Uses 9,496 (47,225) 31,849 (149,080) 29 (31,820) 149,109 -99.91% -100.02%

Page 116 of 127



Buildings - Internal Services 

Internal Services Fund - Buildings
Sources and Uses

2022-23 
Budget

2022-23 
Actual 

2023-24 
Budget

2023-24 
Est. Actual

2024-25 
Budget

$ Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget

$ Chg FY25 
Budget to 
FY24 Est. 

Act

% Change 
FY24 

Budget to 
FY25 

Budget 

% Change 
FY25 

Budget to 
FY24 Est 

Act
Revenues

Interfund Services 984,646 584,239 1,004,646 679,200 1,683,000 678,354 1,003,800 67.52% 147.79%
Other Financing Sources

Investment Earnings (780) (677)
Other   

Total Revenues & Other Sources 983,866 583,562 1,004,646 679,200 1,683,000 678,354 1,003,800 67.52% 147.79%
Expenditures & Uses

Wages and Benefits 527,653 410,685 521,805 504,400 798,730 276,925 294,330 53.07% 58.35%
Professional Services 0 0 0.00%
Services & Supplies 429,891 442,303 452,995 378,000 876,083 423,088 498,083 93.40% 131.77%
Insurance 6,300 6,793 7,400 7,983 130 (7,270) (7,853) -98.24% -98.37%
Utilities 5,165 5,159 4,700 3,100 3,900 (800) 800 -17.02% 25.81%
Central Service Cost 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-Total Expenditures and Uses 969,009 864,940 986,900 893,483 1,678,843 691,943 785,360 70.11% 87.90%
Capital Outlay 

Capital Improvement 688
Total Expenditures & Uses 969,009 864,940 986,900 894,171 1,678,843 691,943 784,672 70.11% 87.75%
Net Sources or Uses 14,857 (281,378) 17,746 (214,971) 4,157 (13,589) 219,128 -76.58% -101.93%

Page 117 of 127



Fiscal 2024-25 Capital Improvement Projects Summary Sheet

Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3
Priority 4 (unfunded) 

Project Title

General Fund

Accounting/Information Systems
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Admin 33,000 30,000 63,000
Wireless Equipment Replacement and Maintenance 90,000 90,000
Network Hardware Replacement and Maintenance 95,000 240,000 335,000
Server Storage and Computing Hardware 275,000 75,000 350,000
Total Accounting/Information Systems 275,000 108,000 95,000 30,000 330,000 838,000

General and Admin
Admin Printer Copier Replacement - 893 Southwood
Administration Building

35,000 35,000

New Administration Building 1,000,000 10,000,000 11,000,000
Total General and Admin - - 1,000,000 10,000,000 35,000 11,035,000

Total General Fund 275,000 108,000 1,095,000 10,030,000 365,000 11,873,000

Utilities
Public Works Shared
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - PW Shared 160,000 699,000 659,999 424,000 334,000 2,276,999
Replace Public Works Front Security Gate 80,000 80,000
Utilities System and Plant Control Upgrades (SCADA) 250,000 250,000 500,000 1,000,000
Large Format Printer Replacement 29,000 29,000
HHW Prefab Chemical Storage Building 120,000 120,000
Total Public Works Shared 530,000 949,000 1,159,999 504,000 363,000 3,505,999

Water
Watermain Replacement - Ponderosa Ranch Road 800,000 800,000
Watermain Replacement - Future 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 8,000,000
R6-1 Tank Road Construction 130,000 . 130,000
R2-1 Reservoir Roof Replacement 340,000 340,000
R-2 Interior Tank Rehabilitation 130,000 130,000
Fire Hydrant Replacement Project 260,000 270,000 280,000 290,000 1,100,000
Water Reservoir Coatings and Site Improvements 175,000 175000 175000 220000 220000 965,000
Water Pumping Station Improvements 105,000 280,000 290,000 300,000 315,000 1,290,000
Burnt Cedar Water Disinfection Plant Improvements 160,000 1,600,000 1,760,000
SCADA Management Servers/Network - BCDP 100,000 100,000
LIMSs Software 60,000 60,000
BCWDP Emergency Generator Fuel Tank 300,000 300,000
Replace Commercial Water Meters, Vaults, and Lids 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 200,000
WPS Generator Fuel Tank Protection 75,000 75,000
BCWDP Production Meter 24" 65,000 65,000
Residential Water Meter Replacements 400,000 300,000 150,000 150,000 1,000,000
Total Water 2,535,000 4,855,000 3,350,000 3,000,000 2,575,000 16,315,000

Sewers
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Sewer 225,000 190,000 - - 415,000
Effluent Pipeline Project 15,700,000 10,783,500 29,783,500
Effluent Storage Tank and Pond Lining 4,000,000
SPS#1 Pump Station & Generator Bldg Roof
Replacement

280,000 280,000

Sewer Pumping Station Improvements 105,000 110,000 112,000 115,000 120,000 562,000
Sewer Pump Station BDR 165,000 165,000
SPS 16 Surge Protection BDR/Improvement 100,000 900,000 1,000,000
Aeration Basin System Improvements 500,000 4,000,000 4,500,000
Water Resource Recovery Facility Improvements 500,000 440000 190000 200000 1200000 2,530,000
Wetlands Effluent Disposal Facility Improvements 50,000 55000 225000 115000 120000 565,000
Sewer Main Rehabilitation 105,000 550000 340000 350000 360000 1,705,000
SCADA Management Servers/Network - WRRF 100,000 100,000
Replace & Reline Sewer Mains, Manholes & Appurtenances 70,000 70000 70000 70000 70000 350,000
Effluent Repairs on NDOT Highway 100,000 100,000 200,000
Total Sewers 20,630,000 13,478,500 6,027,000 850,000 1,870,000 42,155,500

Total Utilities 23,695,000 19,282,500 10,536,999 4,354,000 4,808,000 61,976,499

Internal Service
Fleet
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Fleet 18,000 62,000 80,000
Total Fleet 18,000 - 62,000 - - 80,000

Buildings
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Bldgs. 5,000 21,500 5,000 5,000 36,500
Total Buildings 5,000 21,500 5,000 5,000 36,500

Total Internal Service 18,000 5,000 83,500 5,000 5,000 116,500

Community Services
Championship Golf
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Champ Course 172,000 185000 148000 305000 419000 1,229,000
Championship Golf Cart Barn Siding Replacement 165,000 165,000

Proposed 
FY 2024-25

Proposed FY 
2025-26

Proposed 
FY 2026-27

Proposed FY 
2027-28

Proposed FY 
2028-29

Five Year 
Total

Page 118 of 127



Fiscal 2024-25 Capital Improvement Projects Summary Sheet

Driving Range Nets 110,000 110,000
Championship Course Bunkers 180,000 185,000 190,000 555,000
Cart Path Replacement - Champ Course 195,000 187,500 55,000 55,000 492,500
Driving Range Improvements 37,000 37,000
Championship Golf Course Electric Cart Fleet and GPS 620,000 620,000
Replace Icemaker Championship Golf Course Cart Barn 11,970 11,970
Grille Furniture 35,200 35,200
Grille Patio Table and Chairs 58,227 58,227
Material Storage Bins 275,000 275,000
Practice Green Expansion 35,000 190,000 225,000
Range Ball Machine Replacement 20,000 20,000
Pavement Maintenance of Parking Lots - Champ
Course & Chateau

615,000 615,000

Total Championship Golf 552,000 610,727 1,289,970 712,200 1,284,000 4,448,897

Mountain Golf
Wash Pad Improvements 100,000 100,000
Mountain Course Fuel Tank Replacement 100,000 500,000 600,000
Irrigation System Replacement 1,000,000 1,000,000
Mountain Course 58 Cart Fleet 491,200 491,200
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Mount. Course 13,000 150,000 185,500 108,000 - 456,500
Total Mountain Golf 113,000 1,141,200 285,500 108,000 1,000,000 2,647,700

Facilities
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Facilities 40,000 40,000
Resurface Patio Deck Replace Railings Replace Rock Facia - Chateau 27500 27,500
Chateau Community Room Ceiling and Beam
Refurbishing

25,000 25,000

Upgrade Chateau Community Room Lighting Control
Module

25,620 25,620

Portable Bars 18,375 18,375
Catering Ceremony Chairs 16,000 16,000
Replace Banquet Serviceware 75,000 72,000 147,000
Banquet Tables 10,000 35,090 45,090
Carpet Replacement at the Chateau 55,500 55,500
Paint Exterior Chateau 52,500 52,500
Furniture for Chateau 14,850 14,850
Landscape Improvements at Aspen Grove 19,800 19,800
Total Facilities 75,000 80,875 81,620 122,240 127,500 487,235

Ski

Fleet Vehicle Replacement 1,150,000 472,000 34,000 1,070,000 46,000 2,772,000
Ski Way and Diamond Peak Parking Lot
Reconstruction

- 480,000 6,300,000 6,780,000

Ski Lodge Facilities - Install Kitchen Grease
Interceptor

300,000 300,000

Replace Ski Lodge Facility Equipment- Electrical Entrance 175,000 175,000
Diamond Peak Fuel Storage Facility 750,000 750,000
Ski Lodge Facilities - Resurface Concrete Deck 90,000 90,000 180,000
Replace Main Lodge/Snowflake Lodge Dining
Furniture and Fixtures

54,000 54,000

Replacement of Main and Snowflake Lodge Kitchen Equipment 20,000 20,000
Crystal Express Ski Lift Maintenance and
Improvements

250,000 500,000 750,000

Lakeview Ski Lift Maintenance and Improvements 210,000 210,000
Lodgepole Ski Lift Maintenance and Improvements 150,000 200,000 350,000
Red Fox Ski Lift Maintenance and Improvements 75,000 75,000
Snowmaking Infrastructure Replacement 100,000 200,000 300,000
Replace Ski Rental Equipment 300,000 160,000 310,000 770,000
Replace Ski Rental Machinery 40,000 40,000
Replace 1966 Snowflake Lodge 6,000,000 6,000,000
Total Ski 1,930,000 1,746,000 1,124,000 13,580,000 1,146,000 19,526,000

Parks

Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Parks 70,000 40,000 161,100 122,000 108,000 501,100
Replace Playground - Ridgeline Park 250,000 250,000
Aspen Grove Flatscape and Retaining Wall
Enhancement and Replacement

250,000 250,000

Storage Container shed/buidling replacement 20,000 20,000
Preston Field Retaining Wall Replacement 500,000 500,000
Ridgeline fields at Incline Park bleacher replacement 75,000 75,000
Skate Park Enhancement 500,000 500,000
Central Irrigation Controller Upgrade 60,000 60,000
Replace Playgrounds - Preston 500,000 500,000
Fencing Repair Ridgeline Park and Preston Field 45,000 22,000 10,000 10,000 87,000
Erosion Control projects 40,000 40,000
GPS Field Striper 30,000 30,000
Parks Furnishings 20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 60,000
Parks Pavement Maintence 15,000 50,000 30,000 28,000 58,000 181,000
Total Parks 1,240,000 872,000 556,100 170,000 216,000 3,054,100

Tennis
Reconstruct Tennis Courts 5 thru 7 2,500,000 2,500,000
Reconstruct Tennis Courts 3 thru 4 1,500,000 1,500,000

Page 119 of 127



Fiscal 2024-25 Capital Improvement Projects Summary Sheet

Reconstruct Tennis Courts 1 and 2 10,000 1,500,000 1,510,000
Resurface Tennis Courts 8-9-10-11(Pickleball courts) 19,000 - 19,000
Ball Machines for Tennis Center 17,000 17,000
Total Tennis 2,510,000 1,519,000 1,517,000 - - 5,546,000

Recreation Center
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement - Recreation 120,000 - 120,000
Recreation Center Pavement Maintenance 40,000 13,000 53,000
Rec Center Exterior Wall Waterproofing & French
Drain - Xeroscape

77,000 77,000

Recreation Center & Tennis Parking Lot
Reconstruction and BMPs

1,450,000 1,450,000

Replaster Recreation Center Pool 200,000 200,000
Pool Facility Deck/Floor Re-coat and ceiling
improvements

38,000 38,000

Pool Starter block replacement 48,000 48,000
Diving Board replacement 40,000 40,000
Replace Bird Netting 17,720 17,720
Fitness Equipment 57,200 51,300 58,700 63,760 65,000 295,960
Recreation Center Printer Copier Replacement 980
Incline Way

25,000 25,000

HVAC System Replacement 1,035,000 1,035,000 2,070,000
Cardio Strength Room Downstairs Flooring 60,000 60,000
Electronic Key Entry 130,000 130,000
Pool Sub Structure Investigation 50,000 50,000
Reseal Ceiling in Natatorium 50,000 50,000
Total Recreation Center 1,558,200 1,529,020 1,508,700 63,760 65,000 4,724,680

Community Services Shared 
Fleet / Vehicle Replacement  - Comm Serv. Shared 67,000 67,000
Total Community Services Shared 67,000 67,000
Total Community Services 7,978,200 7,498,822 6,429,890 14,756,200 3,838,500 40,501,612

Project Title
Beaches
Beaches Retaining Wall Enhancement and Replacement 55,000 55,000
Storage Container Replacement 40,000 40,000
Snack Bar Furnishings- picnic tables 28,000 22,000 50,000
Ski Beach Boat Ramp Improvement Project 150,000 150,000
Ski Beach Bridge (2) Replacement 170,000 170,000
Burnt Cedar Beach Eastern Stormwater Improvements 190,000 190,000
Beach Furnishings 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 100,000
Central Irrigation Controller Upgrade 30,000 30,000
Third Creek Fence Redesign and Replacement 15,000 15,000

Ski and Incline Beach Landscape Enhancement 15,000 15,000

Beach Access Improvements 400,000 400,000
Reconstruct Pavement - Ski Beach 350,000 350,000
Reconstruct Pavement, Incline Beach 500,000 500,000
Pavement Reconstruction - Burnt Cedar Beach 835,000 835,000
Replace Playgrounds - Beaches 400,000 200,000 600,000
Replace Ski Beach Entrance Gate 50,000 50,000
Incline Beach Access Project 1,650,000 1,650,000
Pavement Management Beaches 65,000 18,000 19,000 20,000 77,000 199,000
Total Beaches 2,970,000 256,000 789,000 937,000 447,000 5,399,000

Grand Total 34,936,200 27,150,322 18,934,389 30,082,200 9,463,500 119,866,611

Proposed 
FY 2024-25

Proposed FY 
2025-26

Proposed 
FY 2026-27

Proposed FY 
2027-28

Proposed FY 
2028-29

Five Year 
Total

Page 120 of 127



Fiscal 2024-25 Capital Expenditures Breakdown 

FY25 Capital Expenditures - Breakdown 

100 - General Fund 
General Government Admin 24,939
Parks 215,643

Total 240,582

200 - Utility Fund 
Water 1,920,800
Sewer 1,088,000

Total 3,008,800

300- Community Services Fund 
Champ 30,700
Mountain 22,900
Facilities 38,400
Recreation 72,000
Tennis 36,000
Ski 407,680

Total 607,680

390 - Beach Fund 69,445

400 - Internal Services Fund 588,600

Grand Total 4,515,107

Page 121 of 127



Fiscal 2024-25 Capital Expenditures Breakdown 

Page 122 of 127



AUTHORIZED POSISTIONS
2024-2025 BUDGET

Position Number Desc Salary 
Grade

Status Notes Title formerly

Administrative Services

TRUSTEE n/g
GENERAL MANAGER Contract FTE
ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER 42 FTE Budgeting for FY 24/25
DISTRICT CLERK 33 FTE
MEETING/IT COORDINATOR 24 FTE New for FY 24/25
DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 40 FTE
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 42 FTE Currently unfilled
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 40 FTE
CONTROLLER 33 FTE
ACCOUNTANT 25 FTE 3 Positions
COMMUNITY SVCS BUDGET ANALYST 28 FTE
SENIOR ACCOUNTANT 27 FTE
MANAGEMENT ANALYST 28 FTE
PURCHASING & CONTRACTS MANAGER 33 FTE Currently unfilled
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TECHNICIAN 18 FTE
PAYROLL GENERALIST 22 FTE Currently unfilled
SR. IT ANALYST 28 FTE
DIR INFO SYSTEMS & TECHNOLOGY 38 FTE
IT/PROJECT MANAGER 32 FTE Job title change Software Specialist
IT NETWORK ADMINISTRATOR 26 FTE
POS/PRODUCT ADMINISTRATOR 22 FTE New for FY 24/25
IT TECHNICIAN 22 FTE 2 Positions
REVENUE MANAGER 29 FTE Currently unfilled
REVENUE OFFICE SUPERVISOR 24 FTE
REVENUE OFFICE TECHNICIAN 18 FTE Currently unfilled
DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 38 FTE
TALENT ACQUISITION SPECIALIST 28 FTE
HR/RISK MANAGER 33 FTE Job title change Sr HR Analyst/Safety Sprvsr
RECEPTIONIST/SR ADMIN CLERK 18 FTE
HR/BENEFITS COORDINATOR 25 FTE Job title change Payroll/Benefits Coordinator
HR/RECRUITING ASSISTANT 20 FTE
SAFETY SPECIALIST 25 FTE
SPECIAL PROJECTS n/g PT/OC

Public Works

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 44 FTE
UTILITIES SUPERINTENDENT 36 FTE
PW ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR 28 FTE
CUSTOMER SERVICE CLERK n/g PT 
PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN MANAGER 32 FTE
CUSTOMER SERVICE REP I/II G3 FTE
UTILITIES ASSET MGMT TECHNICIAN G9 FTE
UTILITIES MAINTENANCE SPECIALIST 32 FTE
PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE I G6 FTE
PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE I/II G7 FTE New for FY 24/25
COLLECTION/DISTRIBUTION SUPV 31 FTE
COLLECTION/DISTRIBUTION OIT G6 FTE
COLLECTION/DISTRIBUTION OP I G8 FTE 2 Positions
COLLECTION/DISTRIBUTION OP II G9 FTE 3 Positions
COLLECTION/DISTRIBUTION OP III/ASST SPVSR G11 FTE
DRIVER PUBLIC WORKS n/g PT
COMPLIANCE SUPRV/CHIEF INSPECTOR 31 FTE
INSPECTOR I - CERTIFIED G8 FTE
INSPECTOR II G9 FTE
SENIOR INSPECTOR G10 FTE
SENIOR ELECTRICIAN/INSTRUMENTATION  TECH G11 FTE
ELECTRICIAN/INSTRUMENTATION  TECH G9 FTE
METER TECHNICIAN I/II G7 FTE
SCADA TECHNICIAN/INSTRUMENTATION TECH G11 FTE Job title change SCADA Engineer
WETLANDS HUNTING COORDINATOR n/g OC
WATER/WASTEWATER OIT G8 FTE 2 Positions
WATER/WASTEWATER OPERATOR I G8 FTE
WATER/WASTEWATER OPERATOR II G9 FTE
WATER/WASTEWATER OPERATOR III G10 FTE
CHIEF CHEMIST 31 FTE
LABORATORY ANALYST I/II G8 FTE

Page 123 of 127



AUTHORIZED POSISTIONS
2024-2025 BUDGET

Position Number Desc Salary 
Grade

Status Notes Title formerly

WATER/WASTEWATER SUPERVISOR 31 FTE
ASST WTR/WW OPIII SUPV-WW LEAD G11 FTE
RESOURCE CONSERVATIONIST 29 FTE
PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAM COORDINATOR II 21 FTE
PUBLIC WORKS TECHNICIAN 21 FTE

Community Services/Beach

GENERAL MANAGER - GOLF OPERATIONS 38 FTE
SENIOR HEAD GOLF PROFESSIONAL 27 FTE
1ST ASSISTANT - CHAMPIONSHIP 18 FTE
OUTSIDE SERVICES SUPERVISOR n/g SEASONAL
MTN COURSE GOLF SHOP STAFF n/g SEASONAL
OUTSIDE SERVICES STAFF n/g SEASONAL
GOLF SHOP STAFF n/g SEASONAL
ASST GOLF PRO - TOURNAMENT COORDINATOR n/g SEASONAL
DISTRICT MERCHANDISER 20 FTE
LEAD GOLF SHOP STAFF n/g SEASONAL
STARTER/RANGER - CHAMP COURSE n/g SEASONAL
TEACHING PROFESSIONAL n/g SEASONAL
STARTER/RANGER - MTN COURSE n/g SEASONAL
MTN COURSE LEAD GOLF SHOP STAFF n/g SEASONAL
GROUNDS SUPERINTENDENT GOLF COURSES 33 FTE
ASST. SUPT CHAMPIONSHIP COURSE 24 FTE
MAINTENANCE CREW FOREMAN 18 FTE
MAINTENANCE GROUNDS WORKER n/g SEASONAL
IRRIGATION TECHNICIAN - GOLF n/g SEASONAL
HORITCULTURIST - GOLF n/g SEASONAL
ASST. SUPT MOUNTAIN COURSE 23 FTE
FOOD & BEVERAGE DIRECTOR 33 FTE
FOOD & BEVERAGE FOH MANAGER 28 FTE Job title change Assistant F&B Manager
EXECUTIVE CHEF 30 FTE
SOUS CHEF 21 FTE
COOK n/g SEASONAL
PREP COOK n/g SEASONAL
DISHWASHER n/g SEASONAL
FOOD & BEV ON DUTY SUPERVISOR n/g SEASONAL
BARTENDER n/g SEASONAL
SERVER n/g SEASONAL
BUSSER n/g SEASONAL
GRILLE HOST n/g SEASONAL
SNACK BAR ATTENDANT n/g SEASONAL
BEACH SNACK BAR ATTENDANT n/g SEASONAL
BAR CART ATTENDANT n/g SEASONAL
FOOD & BEVERAGE CASHIER n/g SEASONAL
LEAD F&B CASHIER n/g SEASONAL
EVENT COORDINATOR 20 FTE
SNOWFLAKE SUPERVISOR n/g SEASONAL
BANQUET BAR CAPTAIN n/g OC
BANQUET BARTENDER n/g OC
BANQUET SERVER n/g OC
BANQUET CAPTAIN n/g OC
BANQUET COOK n/g OC
BANQUET PREP COOK n/g OC
BANQUET DISHWASHER n/g OC
BANQUET CHEF 21 FTE
CHATEAU RECEPTIONIST/CLERK n/g SEASONAL
FACILITIES OPERATIONS ASST. n/g OC
FACILITIES OPERATIONS LEAD 16 FTE
SALES & EVENT COORDINATOR 23 FTE
SKI RESORT GENERAL MANAGER 38 FTE
SKI OPERATIONS MANAGER 33 FTE
RECEPTIONIST/ADMIN CLERK 18 FTE
LIFT OPERATIONS - SUPERVISOR 21 FTE Job title change Assistant Lift Manager
LIFT MANAGER 26 FTE
LIFT MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN 21 FTE
LEAD LIFT OPERATOR n/g SEASONAL
LIFT OPERATOR/TICKET CHECKER n/g SEASONAL
LIFT MAINTENANCE LABORER n/g SEASONAL

Page 124 of 127



AUTHORIZED POSISTIONS
2024-2025 BUDGET

Position Number Desc Salary 
Grade

Status Notes Title formerly

SNOWMAKER n/g SEASONAL
SLOPE MAINTENANCE MANAGER 26 FTE
ASSISTANT SLOPE MAINT MANAGER 24 FTE
GROOMER n/g SEASONAL
TERRAIN PARK ATTENDANT n/g SEASONAL
MOUNTAIN MAINTENANCE WORKER n/g SEASONAL
BASE OPERATIONS MANAGER 26 FTE
BASE OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR n/g SEASONAL
MAINTENANCE - PROPERTY OPS n/g SEASONAL
TRAM DRIVER n/g SEASONAL
SHUTTLE/TRAM DRIVER n/g SEASONAL
JR. PARKING ATTENDANT n/g SEASONAL
PARKING ATTENDANT n/g SEASONAL
SKI PATROL DIR/SAFETY COORD n/g SEASONAL
SKI PATROLLER n/g SEASONAL
DISPATCHER n/g SEASONAL
SKI PATROL ASSISTANT DIRECTOR n/g SEASONAL
ASST. DIR OF SKIER SERVICES n/g SEASONAL
DIRECTOR OF SKIER SERVICES n/g SEASONAL
SKI/SNOWBOARD SUPERVISOR n/g SEASONAL
SKI/SNOWBOARD INSTRUCTOR n/g SEASONAL
MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER 31 FTE Job title change Marketing Manager
ASSISTANT MKTG & COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER 29 FTE Job title change Marketing Coordinator
PUBLIC INFORMATION COORDINATOR 29 FTE Job title change Districtwide Communications Coordinator
MKTG VIDEO/PHOTO PROD COORD n/g SEASONAL
RENTAL SHOP MANAGER n/g SEASONAL
ASST. RENTAL SHOP MANAGER n/g SEASONAL
HYATT SHOP STAFF n/g SEASONAL
RENTAL TECHNICIAN n/g SEASONAL
REPAIR SHOP TECHNICIAN n/g SEASONAL
LEAD HYATT SHOP STAFF n/g SEASONAL
LEAD RENTAL TECHNICIAN n/g SEASONAL
RENTAL ATTENDANT n/g SEASONAL
CSC SUPERVISOR n/g SEASONAL
CSC INSTRUCTOR n/g SEASONAL
JR. CSC INSTRUCTOR n/g SEASONAL
CSC GUEST SERVICES n/g SEASONAL
CSC LEAD GUEST SERVICES n/g SEASONAL
CSC RENTAL TECHNICIAN n/g SEASONAL
REVENUE SAFE CLERK 16 FTE
TICKET OFFICE SUPERVISOR n/g SEASONAL
LEAD CASHIER n/g SEASONAL
CASHIER n/g SEASONAL
MOUNTAIN HOST n/g SEASONAL
PRIVATE REQUEST RATE n/g SEASONAL
COMMUNITY SERVICES AMBASSADOR 20 FTE New for FY 24/25
ASSISTANT COMM SVCS AMBASSADOR n/g PT Job title change Lead Beach Host (OT Eligible)
PARKING & BOAT RAMP ATTENDANT n/g SEASONAL
LEAD BEACH HOST II n/g SEASONAL
LEAD BEACH HOST I n/g SEASONAL
BEACH HOST I n/g SEASONAL
BEACH HOST II n/g SEASONAL
PARKS SUPERINTENDENT 33 FTE
PARKS SUPERVISOR 20 FTE
PARKS CREW SUPERVISOR 18 FTE
SENIOR MAINTENANCE WORKER n/g SEASONAL
MAINTENANCE WORKER n/g SEASONAL
IRRIGATION TECH - FTYR 16 FTE
PARKS ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT n/g PT
HEAD TENNIS & PICKLEBALL PROFESSIONAL n/g SEASONAL
TENNIS & PICKLEBALL CENTER SUPERVISOR n/g SEASONAL
TENNIS & PICKLEBALL INSTRUCTOR n/g SEASONAL
TENNIS & PICKLEBALL HOST n/g SEASONAL
TENNIS & PICKLEBALL COURT WASH n/g SEASONAL
PARKS & RECREATION CENTER MGR 24 FTE
REC COORD-FITNESS HLTH&WELLNESS 20 FTE
REC SUPERVISOR-AQUATICS 22 FTE
REC SUPERVISOR - SENIORS 22 FTE

Page 125 of 127



AUTHORIZED POSISTIONS
2024-2025 BUDGET

Position Number Desc Salary 
Grade

Status Notes Title formerly

REC SUPV - SPORTS & CMNTY PROG 22 FTE
PARKS & REC CLERK - I 16 FTE
SR. PARKS & RECREATION CLERK 18 FTE
ASST PARKS & RECREATION CLERK n/g PT
PARKS & RECREATION CLERK II 16 FTE
SENIOR RECREATION LEADER n/g PT
RECREATION LEADER n/g PT
BUS DRIVER RECREATION n/g PT
BUS DRIVER RECREATION n/g PT
SPORTS SITE SUPERVISOR n/g PT
SPORTS SPECIALIST n/g PT
SENIOR CHILD CARE LEADER n/g PT
CHILD CARE LEADER n/g PT
FITNESS FACILITY ROVER n/g PT
SR. FITNESS INSTRUCTOR n/g PT
FITNESS INSTRUCTOR n/g PT
PERSONAL TRAINER n/g PT
SR. AQUACISE INSTRUCTOR n/g PT
AQUACISE INSTRUCTOR n/g PT
PARK & REC MEETING RATE n/g PT
DIRECTOR OF PARKS & RECREATION 38 FTE
RECREATION ADMINISTRATON SPECIALIST 18 FTE
AQUATICS ASSISTANT EXEMPT 17 FTE
LEAD LIFEGUARD n/g SEASONAL
LIFEGUARD n/g SEASONAL
SWIM INSTRUCTOR n/g SEASONAL
SWIM COACH n/g SEASONAL
REC SUPV-OPS & COMNTY PROGRMG 22 FTE

Internal Services

FLEET SUPERINTENDENT 32 FTE
MECHANIC I G8 FTE
MECHANIC II G9 FTE
MECHANIC II CERTIFIED G9 FTE
ENGINEERING MANAGER 41 FTE
SENIOR ENGINEER 34 FTE Budgeting for FY 24/25
PRINCIPAL ENGINEER 38 FTE
ASSOCIATE ENGINEER 32 FTE
DISTRICT PROJECT MANAGER 34 FTE
PW CONTRACT ADMINSTRATOR II 25 FTE
BUILDINGS SUPERINTENDENT 29 FTE
ASSISTANT BUILDINGS SUPT 24 FTE
BUILDINGS MAINTENANCE II G6 FTE
BUILDINGS MAINTENANCE II G7 FTE
BUILDINGS MAINT III-ELECTRICAL G7 FTE
BUILDINGS MAINTENANCE III G7 FTE

Page 126 of 127



Wage Allocation Update 

Salary Allocations 
100% allocated to GF 
Burdened Cost  Impact to GF General Fund Savings Impact to 200 Impact to 300 Impact to 390

IT
123401 - DIR INFO SYSTEMS & TECHNOLOGY 243,274 48,655 194,619 53,520 124,070 17,029
123201 - SR IT ANALYST 168,323 33,665 134,658 37,031 85,845 11,783
123701 - IT NETWORK ADMINISTRATOR 140,951 28,190 112,761 31,009 71,885 9,867
123902 - IT TECHNICIAN 106,455 21,291 85,164 23,420 54,292 7,452
123901 - IT TECHNICIAN 104,109 20,822 83,287 22,904 53,096 7,288
123501 - IT/PROJECT MANAGER 209,435 41,887 167,548 46,076 106,812 14,660
123601 - POS PRODUCT ADMINISTRATOR 138,566 13,857 124,709 22,171 88,682 13,857

ADMIN/GM
111301 - PUBLIC INFORMATION COORD 158,444 7,922 150,522 - 150,522 -
111601 - DIRECTOR OF ADMIN SVCS 287,870 51,817 236,053 63,331 152,571 20,151
111101 - Assistant GM 341,031 68,206 272,825 34,103 204,619 34,103
111001 - GENERAL MANAGER 494,229 296,537 197,692 59,308 118,615 19,769
Total 2,392,687 632,849 1,759,838 392,873 1,211,009 155,959

Departments Impact
Champ Golf 191,031
Mt Golf 80,238
Rec Center 156,903
Tennis 42,458
Community Services 169,339
Ski 484,274
Beaches 155,958
Facilities 86,765
Water 196,436
Sewer 196,436

Page 127 of 127


	A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE*
	B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES*
	C. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS
	D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	E. CONSENT CALENDAR (for possible action)	
	1. Approval of the IVGID Board of Trustees Meeting Mi
	04-10-2024-IVGID-BOT-IVGID34-MULTI
	Incline Village Memorial Plaza Proposal
	Invoice_IVGID 35_2024-05-10


	F. GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action)	
	1. Review, Discuss and Approve Board Practice 6.2.0 -
	Memo - Practice 6.2.0 - What is needed related to the pricing policy and the pricing pyramid
	Exhibit A - Practice 6.2.0 - Pricing for Products and Services - Revised 08-31-2022 (1)
	Exhibit B - District_Pricing_Policy_Presentation from 2021
	Exhibit C - Program Proposal Form1
	Practice 6.2.0 - Pricing for Products and Services - Draft 05-20-2024

	2. Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget Workshop. (Requesting
	Item F.2. - Budget Workshop


	G. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - Limited to a maximum of three minutes in duration.
	H. ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)	



